
Mr. Anil Mehta is MMS from SP Jain Institute of 
Management & Research and is a graduate in 
Economics. With more than 35 years of experience 
in mortgage, banking, and insurance space, Mr. 
Mehta has been the leading force behind India 
Shelter for 10 years now. He has also served as 

the senior director at Max New York Life Insurance 
Company Limited, prior to handling ISFC.

Mr. Rupinder Singh is MBA, Marketing from FORE 
School of Management, New Delhi. Out of 20 
years of total work experience, Mr. Singh has 
handled the mortgage business across India for 

more than 15 years. He has led the mortgage 
fi nance business in Cholamandalam, where he 
managed a book of ~ H135 Bn. 

Mr. Anup Gupta holds MBA from IIM Calcutta 
and B-Tech from IIT Kharagpur. Mr. Anup Gupta 
is a Managing Director at Nexus Venture Partners. 
Previously, he was the Group Chief Operating 
Offi  cer at WNS (NYSE: WNS), a leading IT Enabled 

Services (ITES) company. Before that, Mr. Gupta 
was with eVentures India, a pioneer in the 
venture capital sector in India and a management 
consultant at Booz & Company. 

Mr. Anil Mehta
Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Mr. Rupinder Singh
Managing Director and Chief Executive Offi  cer

Mr. Anup Gupta
Nominee Director

Board of Directors profi le

Ms. Rachna Dikshit fi nished her CAIIB and 
pursued her Master’s in Political Science at 
the Allahabad University and graduated from 
Lucknow University. She served under the 
Reserve Bank of India for over a period of 33 years 
in various capacities including Regional Director, 
Punjab, Haryana and UT Chandigarh; General 
Manager, Financial Inclusion & Development 
Department, Chandigarh and New Delhi; General 

Manager, Department of Banking Regulation, 
Mumbai Central Offi  ce, to name a few of her 
accolades. During her tenure as the Regional 
Director, she was responsible for all supervisory/
operational functions of inter alia banks, NBFCs, 
and cooperative banks. She also chaired the 
Empowered Committee for MSME and co-
chaired State level Meetings including the SLBC, 
SLSC, and SLCC.

Ms. Rachna Dikshit
Independent Director

Mr Sunil Ramankant Bhumralkar is a Fellow 
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India with 37 years of experience working with 
leading accounting and auditing fi rms [ ‘fi rm/s’] in 
India. Mr. Bhumralkar was a senior audit partner 
for 24+years with S R Batliboi & Associates LLP ( 
a member fi rm of EY in India ) till his retirement 
eff ective July 2019. During his tenure with the 
fi rm, he was the Head of Assurance for South India 
and was part of the audit leadership team. He 

participated in and led audits of large MNC/Indian 
listed and unlisted companies across various 
industry sectors, with signifi cant experience in 
fi nancial reporting under Indian GAAP/IND AS, 
Internal fi nancial controls, corporate governance, 
and company law/SEBI requirements. After his 
retirement, he is working as a mentor/advisor to 
start-up/strategic growth companies.

Dr. Shailesh J Mehta holds a Ph.D. in Operation 
Research and Computer Science from Case 
Western Reserve University and a B.Tech from 
the Indian Institute of Technology (IIT), Bombay. 
He was the Chairman of the Board and CEO of 
Providian Financial Corporation. He has also been 
the president and COO of Capital Holding. Dr. 

Mehta is a Managing General Partner of Granite 
Hill Capital Partners since 2007. He has received 
several awards for excellence in leadership, as 
an individual and as a community leader. Dr. 
Mehta was awarded an Honorary Doctorate from 
California State University and recognised as 
Doctor of Humane Letters.

Mr. Sudhin Choksey is a fellow member of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and 
has done his graduation in Commerce (Honours) 
from The Sydenham College of Commerce & 
Economics, Bombay University. He was the 
recipient of Business Leader – Financial Services 
Award for 2015 from The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, New Delhi. Mr. Choksey 
has overall 42 years of professional experience 

in mortgage fi nance business and skilled in 
lending business, both in India and Overseas. 
Mr. Choksey was the former Managing Director 
of GRUH Finance Ltd. which was merged with 
Bandhan Bank. As a part of the scheme of merger, 
Mr. Sudhin Choksey joined Bandhan Bank as 
Executive Director (Designate) in October 2019 
and retired on February 16, 2021.

Mr. Sunil Ramankant Bhumralkar
Independent Director

Dr. Shailesh J Mehta
Nominee Director

Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey
Nominee Director

Mr. Sumir Chadha is MBA (with Distinction) from 
Harvard Business School and a BSE degree in 
Computer Science from Princeton University. 
He is a co-founder and Managing Director 
of WestBridge Capital, a leading investment 
fi rm focused on Indian public companies and 
selectively later stage private companies. He 
was also a co-founder and Managing Director of 
Sequoia Capital India. Prior to that, Mr. Chadha 

was part of the Principal Investment Area at 
Goldman Sachs & Co. He began his career as a 
management consultant at McKinsey & Co. He 
served as Chairman of the Indian Private Equity 
and Venture Capital Association (IVCA) for 2 years. 
He currently serves on the India Advisory Board 
of Harvard Business School and on the Advisory 
Board of the Princeton Institute for International 
and Regional Studies at Princeton University.

Mr. Sumir Chadha
Nominee Director
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Global economic overview 
The global economy grew an estimated 5.9% in 2021 compared to a 

de-growth of 3.3% in 2020 due to the pandemic. This improvement 

was largely due to increased vaccination rollout the world over and 

a revival in economic activity based on catch-up consumption   

The spot price of Brent crude oil increased 106.3% from USD 50.37 

per barrel at the beginning of 2021 to USD 107.29 as on 31 March, 

2022, strengthening the performance of oil exporting countries and 

moderating growth in importing nations. In December 2021, the US 

bank Federal Reserve announced a hike of 0.25% in the benchmark 

interest rate, the first interest rate hike since the pandemic. Global 

FDI reported an increase from $929 billion in 2020 to an estimated 

$1.65 trillion in 2021.   

The global economy is projected to grow at a modest 2.6% in 

2022 following the Russia-Ukraine crisis. A higher interest rate 

environment could affect emerging markets and developing 

economies with large foreign currency borrowings and external 

financing needs in 2022.  

Indian economic overview   
The Indian economy reported an attractive recovery in 2021-22, its 
GDP rebounding from a de-growth of 7.3% in 2020-21 to a growth 
of 8.7% in 2021-22. By the close of 2021-22, India was among the six 
largest global economies, its economic growth rate was the fastest 
among major economies (save China), its market size at around 1.40 
billion the second most populous in the world and its rural under-
consumed population arguably the largest in the world. 

India’s monsoon was abundant in 2021 as the country received 
99.32% of a normal monsoon. The estimated production of rice and 
pulses recorded volumes of 127.93 million tonnes and 26.96 million 
tonnes respectively. The total oilseeds production of the country 
recorded a volume of 371.47 million tonnes. 

There were positive features of the Indian economy during the year 
under review.   

India received the highest annual FDI inflow of USD 83.57 billion 
in FY2021-22, a validation of global investing confidence in India's 
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growth story. The government approved 100% FDI for insurance 

intermediaries and increased FDI limit in the insurance sector from 

49% to 74% in Union Budget 2021-22.    

India surpassed the C 88,000 CR target set for asset monetisation in 

2021-22, raising over C 97,000 Crore with roads, power, coal, mining, 

and minerals accounting for a large chunk of the transactions. 

The Indian government launched a four-year C 6 Lakh Crore 

asset monetisation plan (roads and highways, pipelines, power 

transmission lines, telecom towers, railways station re-development, 

private trains, tracks, goods sheds, dedicated freight corridor, 

railways stadiums, airports, projects in major ports, coal mining 

projects, mineral mining blocks, national stadia, redevelopment of 

colonies and hospitality assets).  

In 2021, India was the largest recipient of global remittances. The 

country received USD 87 billion during 2021, with the US being 

the largest source (20%). The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) spent over  

C 35,500 Crore in FY22 to manage the surplus liquidity in the 

banking system. In FY21, bank was C 109.51 Lakh Crore, growing by 

5.56% y-o-y. 

The RBI’s net interest outgo on the operations it conducted via its 

liquidity adjustment facility (LAF) was C 35,501 Crore, 98% increase 

y-o-y.  India's foreign exchange reserves stood at an all-time high 

of USD 642.45 billion as on 03 September, 2021, crossing USD 600 

billion in FOREX reserves for the first time.

India’s currency weakened 3.59% from C 73.28 to C 75.91 to a US 

dollar through FY 22. The consumer price index (CPI) of India stood 

at an estimated 5.3% in FY 2021-22. India reported improving 

Goods and Services Tax (GST) collections month-on-month in the 

second half of 2021-22 following the relaxation of the lockdown, 

validating the consumption-driven improvement in the economy. 

The country recorded its all-time highest GST collections in March 

2022 standing at C 1.42 Lakh Crore, which is 15% higher than the 

corresponding period in 2021.  

GST collection for 2020-21 and 2021-22 as under: -

Month 
FY 2020-21 
(D in Crore) 

FY 2021-22 
(D in Crore) 

April 32,172 1,39,708 

May 62,151 1,02,709 

June 90,918 92,849 

July 87,422 1,16,393 

August 86,449 1,12,020 

September 95,480 1,17,010 

October 1,05,155 1,30,127 

November 1,04,963 1,31,526 

December 1,15,174 1,29,780 

January 1,19,875 1,40,986 

February 1,13,143 1,33,026 

March 1,23,902 1,42,095  

(Source: pib.gov.in)

India ranked 63 in the 2020 World Bank’s Ease of Doing Business 
ranking. The country received positive FPIs worth C 51,000 Crores 
in 2021 as the country ranked fifth among the world’s top leading 
stock markets with a market capitalisation of $3.21 trillion in March 
2022.    

The fiscal deficit was estimated at ~ C 15.91 trillion for the year ending 
31 March, 2022 on account of higher government expenditure 
during the year under review.    

India’s per capita income was estimated to have Increased 18.3% 
from C 1.27 Lakh in 2020-21 to C 1.50 Lakh in 2021-22 following a 
relaxation in lockdowns and increased vaccine rollout.  

India's tax collections increased to a record C 27.07 Lakh Crore in FY 
2021-22 compared with a budget estimate of C 22.17 Lakh Crore. 
While direct taxes increased 49%, indirect tax collections increased 
30%. The tax-to-GDP ratio jumped from 10.3% in FY21 to 11.7% in 
FY22, the highest since 1999.  

Retail inflation in March at 6.95% was above the RBI’s tolerance level 
of 6% but fuel prices played no part in this surge. Retail inflation 
spiked to a 17-month high in March 2022, above the upper limit of 
the RBI’s tolerance band for the third straight month. 

(Source: Economic Times, Business Standard, IMF, World Bank, EIU, 
Business Standard, McKinsey, SANDRP, Times of India, Livemint, 
InvestIndia.org, Indian Express, NDTV, Asian Development Bank)

Indian economic reforms and Budget 2022-23 
provisions  
The Budget 2022-23 seeks to lay the foundation of the Indian 
economy over the ‘Amrit Kaal’ period of the next 25 years leading to 
100 years of independence in 2047. The government is emphasizing 
the role of PM Gati Shakti, Inclusive Development, Productivity 
Enhancement & Investment, Sunrise Opportunities, Energy 
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Transition and Climate Action, as well as Financing of Investments. 

The capital expenditure target of the Indian government expanded 
by 35.4% from C 5.54 Lakh Crore to C 7.50 Lakh Crore. The effective 
capital expenditure for FY23 is seen at C 10.7 Lakh Crore. An 
outlay of C 5.25 Lakh Crore was made to the Ministry of Defence, 
which is 13.31% of the total budget outlay. A boost was provided 
to India’s electric vehicle policy ‘Scheme for Faster Adoption 
and Manufacturing of (Hybrid and) Electric Vehicle in India’. An 
announcement of nearly C 20,000 Crore was made for the PM Gati 
Shakti National Master Plan to catalyse the infrastructure sector. An 
expansion of 25,000 km was initiated for 2022-23 for the national 
highways network. To boost the agricultural sector, an allocation 
of C 2.37 Lakh Crore was made towards the procurement of wheat 
and paddy under MSP operations. An outlay of C 1.97 Lakh Crore 
was announced for the Production Linked Incentive (PLI) schemes 
across 13 sectors.  

Outlook  
India’s medium-term optimism is derived from the fact that three 
down cycles – long-term, medium-term and short-term – could 
well be reversing at the same time. The long-term downtrend, as 
a result of nonperforming assets, scams and overcapacity could be 
over; the medium-term downtrend that was caused by the ILFS 
crisis, select banks collapse and weakening NBFCs could well be 
over; the short-term downtrend on account of the pandemic has 
weakened following the acceleration of the vaccine rollout.    

There is a possibility of each of these downtrends having played 
out, which could well lead to a multi-year revival in capital 
investments. Some USD 500 billion worth of investments are 
expected to be made in the wind and solar infrastructure, energy 
storage and grid expansion.    

The Indian economy is projected to grow by 8% in FY23 (World 
Bank estimate), buoyed by tailwinds of consistent agricultural 
performance, flattening of the COVID-19 infection curve, increase in 
government spending, favourable reforms and an efficient roll-out 
of the vaccine leading to a revival in economic activity.   

The Russia-Ukraine war has further aggravated the supply chain 
constraints, adding to the already high inflation growth. This has 
led to central banks around the world, including India, to hike the 
interest rates, effectively tightening cashflow in the economy.

Across the next three years, capital expenditure in core sectors - 
cement, metal, oil refining and power - should be about C 5 trillion. 
Besides, the government's production linked incentives (PLI)–led 
capex should generate an incremental C 1.4 trillion in sectors like 
consumer durables, pharmaceuticals, and automobiles.   

Housing finance sector overview
Housing finance sector has proven to be one of the most resilient 
sectors to economic cycles and seen rapid progress over the 
past decade. In 2022, the residential segment of the Indian real 
estate sector is expected to grow by 5% in terms of capital value. 
The traction in real estate is largely policy and economy-driven 
with historically low home loan rates, affordable property prices, 
reduction on stamp duty and consumer-friendly offers. 

Housing finance industry has navigated the Covid-19 pandemic 
with moderate disruptions in collection efficiency and a build-up 
in asset quality. After a muted growth in the loan book during Q1 
FY2022, there was a rebound in the loan book of affordable housing 
companies during the subsequent two quarters. The disbursements 
reached almost 85-90% of peak levels in Q4FY22. Collections were 
impacted in Quarter 1 but eventually gained momentum in the 
remaining quarters, leading to an overall improvement in collection 
efficiency by end of FY22. This was due to several factors such as 
growing demand for affordable housing, lower interest rates and 
waning effect of the Covid-19 pandemic because of increased 
vaccinations. During FY22, housing finance companies maintained 
their balance sheet liquidity off setting their operational expenses 
with credit cost moderation. They also opted for digitalised 
sourcing, processing, and disbursement of loans. The Indian home 
loan market is expected to grow by a CAGR of 22% from 2021 to 
2026, with affordable housing being a major growth driver. 

Affordable housing is largely characterised by a customer profile 
who is a first-time borrower, has an informal income source and is 
looking to seek funds to building a home for self-occupancy. The 
affordable housing finance segment has the largest share in the 
housing finance market. Most of the affordable housing loans have a 
small ticket size of C 10 Lakhs or less with less than 70% loan to value 
indicating lower lender risk and greater borrower involvement. In 
FY23, housing finance companies are expected to grow by 11% 
driven by the growing urban population and under-penetration in 
the housing finance market., which is expected to drive the growth 
in housing demand for the coming decades. 

Industry growth drivers
Population growth: The current Indian population is 1.38 billion 
growing at 2.1% on an average every year which will contribute 
to the demand growth for housing, resulting in a large untapped 
market for mortgage penetration. 

Steady urbanisation: Over 65% of Indian population comprises 
citizens below 35 years of age with most of them moving to 
different cities for educational or job purpose, contributing to the 
steady urbanisation growth. By 2030, around 60 Crore Indians will 
be living in cities that requires an annual 700 to 900 million square 
meters of residential and commercial space to accommodate them. 

Dearth in urban housing: Indian cities require an additional 10 

million units to cater to the housing needs of the Economically 

Weaker Section (EWS) and Lower Income Group Segment (LIG).

Shift in preference: There is a growing trend among the salaried and 

self-employed where they have replaced their rental payments with 

equated monthly instalments (EMI’s) for home loans.  

Reasonable cost: In comparison to other developing nations, India’s 

housing finance cost is the most reasonable making it a desirable 

investment option for alternative asset classes.

Ease of regulations: After the RERA implementation, India’s rank 

jumped from 52 to 27 in Dealing with construction permits as of 

2019. This reform is credited to have enhanced the ease of doing 

business in the real estate sector, making the entire process more 

transparent and buyer friendly. 

Country-wise mortgage penetration (%)

Denmark 88%

UK 67%

USA 56%

Singapore 52%

Hong Kong 45%

Germany 40%

Malaysia 34%

Korea Republic 31%

Thailand 20%

China 18%

India 11%

India (FY23 Estimated) 13%

Note: ^India data for FY19, others for CY15

(Source: Times of India, NHB, MoHUA, Economic Times, European 

Mortgage Federation, IMF, CRISIL, constructionworld.com)

Government policies for the housing finance 
companies & non-banking finance
Refinance support: Under Special Liquidity Facility-2, the RBI 

granted a support of C 10, 000 Crore to the National Housing Bank 

to aid the housing finance sector for a year.

Affordable housing fund: The Government created an Affordable 

Housing Fund in National Housing Bank with C10,000 Crore as initial 

investment taking leveraging the shortfall in priority sector lending 

of banks/financial institutions for the micro-financing of housing 

finance companies.

Alternative investment fund: With the objective to revive ~1,600 

stalled housing projects across prominent Indian cities, the Union 

Cabinet set up an Alternative Investment Fund with a corpus of  

C 25,000 Crore. 

(Source: RBI, The Hindu Business Line, Free Press Journal, Nhb.Org, 

Financial Express, Indian Express)

Income recognition and asset classification (IRAC) 
norms 
In accordance with international practices and recommendations 

made by the Narasimham Committee on the financial system, the 

Reserve Bank of India has introduced, IRAC that define when a loan 

should be declared as a non-performing asset (NPA). Once a loan 

is declared an NPA, any recovery will not be classified as income. 

IRAC also mandates that banks share information pertaining to large 

borrowers with the RBI for its Central Repository of Information on 

Large Credits (CRILC).

Provisions of Union Budget 2022 on the sector
The Union Budget 2022-23 allocated C 48,000 CR, which is 75% 

higher than previous year’s allocation, to Pradhan Mantri Awas 

Yojana (PMAY) in FY2022-23 for the purpose of completing 80 Lakh 

houses by the end of FY2022-23. The Pradhan Mantri Awaas Yojana 

was introduced in 2015, by the Central government, with the view 

to boost the "Housing for All" scheme in both urban and rural areas. 

The objective of this initiative is to address the housing shortage 

among economically weaker sections and low-income categories.   

The government has declared an additional funding of C 2.17 Lakh 

Crore to PMAY-G fulfil its target of building 2.95 Crore houses in the 

rural areas

The Government has extended its deadline to build pucca houses 

for rural families from 2022 to 2024. 

The government announced an outlay of C 20,000 Crore towards 

Gati Shakti for integrated logistics planning and coordinated 

implementation of infrastructure connectivity projects.

Outlook
The Indian housing finance sector could grow into a USD 750 billion 

industry owing to macro-economic factors like income growth, 

increasing penetration of affordable housing in non-urban areas, 

affordable interest rates, growing preference for homeownership 

and government support. 

The housing finance sector is anticipated to expand due to 

continuous population growth.

Projected Indian housing finance market growth
Loan assets (C trillion)

FY22E FY23E FY25E

31 37 54

(Source: IIFL, avendus)

Urban Population ('000) Housing Demand ('000)

(Source: Iiflonline, The Hindu Business Line, Economic Times, Business 
Standard, Hindustan Times, Business World, BW smartcities) 

41.6 56.9 78.9 91.6 99.4 213.8

00
1991 2001 2011 2021 2031 2050

25010,00,000

2008,00,000

1506,00,000

1004,00,000

502,00,000

48 | India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited  Annual Report 2021-22 | 49

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements



Company overview
India Shelter services the housing needs of first-generation 
homebuyers in urban and semi-urban areas. Your Company’s 
service offering comprises home loans for home purchase or 
construction, extension and renovation of existing housing units 
and leveraging property for loan.  India Shelter’s customer mix 
essentially includes low- and middle-income self-employed and 
salaried persons who may have a recurring need for housing credit 
at first to improve their present homes and then to finance a bigger 
home to accommodate their growing families. Thus, your Company 
has a sustainable business model where it extends housing credit 
to a young population with aspirations for better home fuelled by 
its income growth. 

SCOT analysis
Strengths
•	 Conducive government policies promoting financial inclusivity 

and self-reliance

•	 Presence in 15 states

•	 Use of technology to streamline operations and enhance 
customer experience

•	 Proven underwriting practices and strong governance

•	 Perfect blend of physical and digital model 

•	 Strong capital base backed by marque investors

Challenges
•	 Volatility in the financial market

Opportunities
•	 Demand growth for housing units due to increased urbanisation

•	 Growing aspiration for homeownership

•	 Under-penetration of housing finance 

•	 Growing traction in affordable housing 

Threats
•	 Global uncertainty like war or pandemic affecting the economy

•	 Inflationary pressures driving the interest rate in long term

•	 Increasing competition from existing as well as new players

Sanctions
Your Company sanctioned a total of C 1,939 Crores loans during 

FY22 as against C 1310 Crores in the previous year, a growth of 48%. 

Disbursements
Your Company disbursed C 1,295 Crores loans during FY22 as 

compared to C895 Crores in the previous year, a growth of 45%.

Assets under management (AUM)
Your Company’s AUM stood at C 3,073 Crores, including direct 

assignment & PTC- off book of 385 Crores, as on 31 March, 2022, as 

against C 2199 Crores in the previous financial year. As of 31 March, 

2022, the average loan sanctioned was more than C 10 Lakhs and 

the average tenure was 143 months in the AUM (on origination 

basis).

Non-performing assets (NPA’s)
The implementation of IRAC norms mandated by RBI resulted in 

a marginal increase in NPA. Your Company’s Gross NPA and Net 

NPA increased as on 31 March, 2022, to 2.12% and 1.60% as against 

1.78% and 1.23% respectively in the previous financial year. 

Capital adequacy ratio (CRAR)
Your Company’s CRAR as on 31 March, 2022 was 55.87% compared 

to 71.51% in the previous financial year, which was far above the 

minimum required level of 14%.

Affordable housing
Honourable Prime Minister envisioned ‘Housing for All’ by 2022 

when the Nation completes 75 years of its Independence. To achieve 

this objective, Central Government has launched a comprehensive 

Mission “Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (Urban) – Housing for All 

Mission”.  

As per the MoU signed with National Housing Bank (NHB), India 

Shelter extends CLSS to the Economically Weaker Sections (EWS), 

Lower Income Group (LIG) segments and Middle-Income Group 

(MIG I and II).

Under PMAY-CLSS, the Interest subsidy is credited upfront to the 

loan account of beneficiaries, resulting in reduced effective housing 

loan and Equated Monthly Instalment (EMI). Credit Linked Subsidy is 

available for housing loans availed for acquisition/new construction 

and addition of rooms, kitchen, toilet, etc.to existing dwellings as 

Five-year data for graphical representation
Sanctions (in C cr)

FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22

568 907 876 1,310 1.939

Five-year data for graphical representation
Disbursement (in C cr)

FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22

404 566 551 895 1,295

incremental housing. This benefit was available for MIG group up to 

31 March, 2021 and for EWS/LIG segment till 31 March, 2022.

The NHB has granted PMAY-CLSS subsidy of C 25.12 CR for 1140 

beneficiaries during FY2021-22 while the subsidy pertaining to 

53 beneficiaries has been refunded to NHB. Since the launch of 

the scheme, your Company received CLSS subsidy of C 30.43 

Crores for 1368 beneficiaries out of which subsidy pertaining to 60 

beneficiaries have been refunded to NHB. Your Company has duly 

provided the subsidy benefits to these eligible beneficiaries.

Branch network
India Shelter is present in 15 states through 130 branches as 

on 31 March, 2022. Your Company has its registered office in 

Gurugram, Haryana. Your Company has significant presence in 

Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Gujarat and its gradually 

strengthening its presence in Southern states. 

Resource mobilisation
Share capital
The issued and paid-up Equity Share Capital of your Company as 

on 31 March, 2022, stood at C 43,70,66,550 consisting of 4,37,06,655 

Equity Shares of C 10/- each compared to C 42,978,4050 consisting 

of 42978405 Equity Shares of C 10 each in the previous year.

Term loans from banks and financial Institutions
As on 31 March, 2022, the outstanding term loans from banks and 

financial institutions were C 1,495 Crores. Your Company received 

fresh sanctions from banks and financial institutions amounting to 

C 939 Crores. The average tenure of term loans raised during the 

financial year under review was more than 5 years. 

Refinance from National Housing Bank (NHB)
Under the National Housing Bank (NHB) refinance scheme, your 

Company received a sanction of fresh refinance assistance of C 270 

Crores during FY22. Your Company availed funds of C 70 Crores from 

NHB under the Refinance Scheme for Affordable Housing Fund and 

Regular Refinance Scheme and Refinance Outstanding at the end 

of the 2021-22 stood at C 344 Crores compared to previous year’s  

C 547 Crores.  Your Company’s undrawn sanctioned fund is of C 200 

Crores.  

Non-convertible debentures (NCD’s) 
During 2021-22, your Company raised aggregate amount of C 165 

Crores through the issue of Rated, Secured, Listed, Redeemable, 

Non-Convertible Debentures during the financial year FY22. As on 

31 March, 2022, the outstanding loans from NCD’s is 180 Crores.

Performance highlights: Segment overview
Income and Profits
During the year ended 31 March, 2022, the Total Income of your 

Company was C 459.80 Crore growing by 42.44% y-o-y. Your 

Company reported a Total Comprehensive Income of C 127.75 

Crore compared to C87.18 Crore growing by 46.55% y-o-y.

Statement of Profit and Loss
Key elements of profit & loss statement for the year ended 31 March, 

2022:

• 	 Net Interest Margin for the year was 12.23% as against 12.32% in 

the previous year

• 	 Your Company’s Operating Expense Ratio (to average total assets) 

was 5.21 for the year ended 31 March, 2022 compared to 4.80 last 

year

• 	 Total expenses of your Company grew by 39.58% during the year 

under review

• 	 The Earnings per Share (basic) was C 29.60 in 2021-22 as against C 

20.39 in the previous year

• 	 Return on average net worth for the year was 12.95% as against 

9.87% in the previous year

• 	 Interest Service Coverage Ratio for the year was 2.13 as against 

2.12 in the previous year

• 	 Debt-Equity Ratio for the year was 1.92 as against 1.59 in the 

previous year

• 	 Net Profit Margin for the year was 28.67% as against 27.59% in the 

previous year.

Human resource
Talented and diligent employees are an asset to your Company. 

India Shelter equips its employees with the relevant skills that help 

them excel in their field of expertise.

Your Company has a partnership-oriented HR policy. Apart from 

the conventional compensation, performance reviews and 

development, your Company also evaluates the employee’s work-

life cycle and provides inputs that can shape an enduring and 

fruitful career. 

Your Company organises several training programmes for its 

employees with internally and externally. With the intention to 

nurture into your Company’s leadership positions, India Shelter 

provides leadership development training covering specialised 

functions such as lending operations, KYC and AML, underwriting, 

POSH and information technology.

Employee health and safety 
During the second wave of the pandemic, we prioritised the well-

being of our employees through initiatives such as social distancing, 

thermal screening, and awareness campaigns. Our offices had 

a ready stock of face masks and sanitisers. We also undertook 

regular fumigation and sanitisation of our offices. Apart from this, 

we provided GTL and GPA insurance for all employees. We also 
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arranged vaccination drives and financial aid for employees and 

their families who suffered from Covid-19. 

Corporate social responsibility (CSR)
Your Company’s CSR activities are in compliance with the Schedule 

VII of the Companies Act, 2013.  Our CSR programmes are centred on 

promoting community awareness round education. Your Company 

has CSR action plans in place outlining how CSR programme will be 

implemented. 

Internal control framework
As per the provisions of Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act, 

2013, the Directors have an overall responsibility to ensure that your 

Company has implemented robust systems/ framework of internal 

financial controls to provide them with reasonable assurance 

regarding the adequacy and operating effectiveness of controls 

with regards to reporting, operational and compliance risks. 

India Shelter along with the Independent Chartered Accountant 

Firm as Internal Auditor has an Internal Audit Department, which 

conducts comprehensive audit of functional areas and operations 

of your Company to examine the adequacy of and compliance with 

policies, procedures, statutory and regulatory requirements.

Significant audit observations and follow-up actions thereon are 

reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Audit 

Committee reviews and evaluates adequacy

and effectiveness of your Company’s internal control environment 

and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations. Your 

Company has implemented all the recommendations of the Audit 

Committee.

Based on the information provided, nothing has come to the 

attention of the Directors to indicate that any material breakdown 

in the function of these controls, procedures or systems occurred 

during the year under review. There have been no significant 

changes in our internal financial controls during the year that have 

materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our 

internal financial controls.

Your Company has an internal control system, commensurate with 

the size, scale and complexity of its operations. Its Internal Auditors, 

review internal control and risk management measures, accounting 

procedures, highlight areas requiring attention and report their 

main findings and recommendations to the Audit Committee.

Risk management
Risk management and mitigation is essential to any business. At 

India Shelter, we identify risks and formulate mitigation plans to 

reduce or eliminate their impact in the best possible manner. These 

are some of the key business risks on form the basis of our risk 

management policies. 

Credit risk: Credit risk is the deterioration of Company’s asset quality 

due to uncertainty regarding the borrower’s ability to repay loan.

Mitigation: Your Company has a credit risk framework which factors 

in the borrower’s credit history, demographics, and income to 

lower the chances of credit risk. Your Company has stringent credit 

sanction process and undertakes post disbursement monitoring.  

Market risk: Changing market scenario could increase the value of 

liabilities or de-value assets.

Mitigation: Your Company’s exposure to market risk is limited to 

changing interest rates which are monitored through frequent 

evaluation of maturity profile and stress testing

Liquidity risk: Insufficient quantity of cash assets or equivalent at 

hand to meet urgent cash requirements.

Mitigation: Your Company has sufficient cash reserves in hand. 

Moreover, your Company has a sound Asset Liability Policy in place 

to ensure there is always adequate cashflow as well as undrawn 

credit facilities it can avail.

Reputation risk:  Unexpected and indirect loss owing to 

unfavourable experience or public perception.

Mitigation: Your Company has a robust corporate governance 

and compliance framework in place which is implemented in every 

aspect of its business operations

Technology risk: Loss due to system breakdown 

Mitigation: Your Company’s governance framework has in-built 

information technology practices to mitigate technology risks

Regulatory risk: Economic or reputational loss for non-compliance 

with the laws of the land

Mitigation: Your Company diligently follows the rules and 

regulations and ensures that there are no violations whatsover,

Board’s Report
To
The Members of
India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited
6th Floor, Plot -15, Institutional Area, Sector – 44, 
Gurgaon-122002

Your Directors have the pleasure of presenting the 24th Annual Report on the business and operations of your Company and the Audited 
Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March, 2022.

Financial Results
A brief highlight of the Standalone & Consolidated financial performance of your Company is presented below:

 (H in Lakh) 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Standalone Consolidated *

Year ended  
31 March, 2022

Year ended  
31 March, 2021

Year ended  
31 March, 2022

1 Revenue from operations

(i) Interest income 37,764.74 27,457.21 37,764.74 

(ii) Fees and commission income 1,602.65 999.26 1,602.65 

(iii) Net gain on fair value changes 458.85 291.85 458.85 

(iv) Net gain on de-recognition of financial instruments under amortised cost 
category

4,971.46 2,922.29 4,971.46 

 Total revenue from operations 44,797.70 31,670.61 44,797.70 

2 Other income 1,182.80 609.22 1,182.80 

3 Total income (1+2) 45,980.50 32,279.83 45,980.50 

4 Expenses    

(i) Finance costs 14,833.86 10,534.81 14,833.86 

(ii) Impairment on financial instruments 1,188.87 1,984.73 1,188.87 

(iii) Employee benefits expenses 10,140.62 6,168.58 10,140.62 

(iv) Depreciation and amortisation 653.90 509.84 653.90 

(v) Other expenses 2,473.14 1,786.18 2,473.14 

 Total expenses 29,290.39 20,984.14 29,290.39 

5 Profit before tax (3-4) 16,690.11 11,295.69 16,690.11 

6 Tax expense:    

 (1)	 Current tax 3,183.62 2,477.20 3,183.62 

 (2)	 Deferred tax charge/(credit) 661.78 79.63 661.78 

 Total tax expense 3,845.40 2,556.83 3,845.40 

7 Profit for the period (5-6) 12,844.71 8,738.86 12,844.71 

8 Other comprehensive income    

 (I)	 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (92.12)   (28.39)  (92.12)

 (ii)	 Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 
loss

23.18 7.15 23.18

 Total other comprehensive income  (68.94) (21.24) (68.94)

9 Total comprehensive income for the period (7+8) 12,775.77 8,717.62 12,775.77 

 Paid-up equity share capital (face value of C 10 per equity share) 4,370.67 4,297.84 4,370.67 

 Other equity as per balance sheet 103,241.97 89,429.12 103,241.97 

10 Earnings per equity share (EPS)    

 *(EPS for quarter not annualised)    

 Basic (C) 29.60 20.39 29.60 

 Diluted (C) 29.27 19.86 29.27 

* This is the first year of consolidation, hence previous year figures are not available.

52 | India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited  Annual Report 2021-22 | 53

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements



The shareholding pattern of your Company on 31 March, 2022 is as follows:

Sr. 

No. 

Name of shareholder % of Share Capital 

As on 31 March, 2022

% of Share Capital 

As on 31 March, 2021

1 Anil Mehta 1.88% 2.55%

2 Other Individual Investors 0.43% 2.17%

3 Aravali Investment Holdings 32.52% 24.65%

4 WestBridge Crossover Fund, LLC 24.83% 25.25%

5 Nexus Ventures III, Ltd. 22.79% 23.18%

6 Nexus Opportunity Fund II, Ltd. 6.66% 6.77%

7 Milestone Trusteeship Services Private Limited acting as Trustee for Madison 

India Opportunities Trust Fund 5.45% 5.54%

8 MIO Starrock (Formerly Known as Starrock) 3.90%

9 Madison India Opportunities IV 1.45% 1.47%

10 Milestone Trusteeship Services Private Limited, acting as trustee for MICP Trust 0.10% -

11 Sequoia Capital India Growth Investments I 0.00% 5.05%

12 Sequoia Capital India Investments III 0.00% 3.37%

TOTAL 100.00% 100.00%

Dividend
With a view to devote your Company’s resources towards growth 

activities, your Directors deem it proper to preserve resources and 

hence, do not propose any dividend for the financial year ended 31 

March, 2022.

Change in Share Capital
During the year under review, your Company had allotted

• 37,500 equity shares in terms of the provisions of the Employee 

Stock Option Plan 2012 on 29 April, 2021 for an amount 

aggregating C 7,62,000/-

• 1,44,000 equity shares in terms of the provisions of the Employee 

Stock Option Plan 2012 on 25 July, 2021 for an amount 

aggregating C 1,07,40,256/-

• 3,06,000 equity shares in terms of the provisions of the Employee 

Stock Option Plan 2012 (2,87,500) and 2017 (18,500) on 08 

August, 2021 for an amount aggregating C 2,63,85,780/-

• 1,50,000 equity shares in terms of the provisions of the Employee 

Stock Option Plan 2012 on 23 August, 2021 for an amount 

aggregating C 1,24,80,000/-.

• 90,750 equity shares in terms of the provisions of the Employee 

Stock Option Plan 2012 on 06 January, 2022 for an amount 

aggregating C 12,08,803/-.

Brief description of your Company’s working
Your Company is incorporated to carry on the business of housing 
finance by way of providing facilities in the form of term loans to 
individuals, firms, companies, cooperative societies and other 
institutions for construction, alteration, repair or for purchase of all 
types of accommodation and loans against property.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the 
financial position of your Company, which occurred between 
the end of the financial year of your Company to which the 
financial statements relate and the date of the report:
No material change and commitment occurred between the end 
of the Financial Year 2021-22 of your Company and this report date 
except as disclosed below that may affect the financial position of 
your Company. 

Change In nature of business  
During the financial year under review, there was no change in the 
nature of business of your Company.

Details of companies which have become its holding, 
subsidiary, associate or joint venture companies:
Holding Company
During the year under review WestBridge Crossover Fund, LLC is the 
holding company.

Subsidiary Company
During the year under review, your Company incorporated a 
Subsidiary company called "India Shelter Capital Finance Limited", 
dated 24 March, 2022 to carry on the business of short, medium and 
long term financing.

Associate or joint venture companies
As per the provisions of the Act, your Company did not have any 
Joint Ventures/Associates during the financial year under review:

Net Worth
As of 31 March, 2022, the net worth of your Company stood at C

1076 Crores compared to C 937 Crores on 31 March, 2021 registering 
an increase of 14.8%.

Performance of Company
Sanctions & Disbursement
During the year, your Company sanctioned loans to 19,730 
customers amounting to C 1939 Crores as compared to C 1310  
Crores in the previous year. 

During the year, your Company disbursed C 1295 Crore compared 
to C 895 Crore in the previous year. 

Assets Under Management (AUM)
Your Company had assets under management of C 3073 Crores 
compared to C 2199 Crores in the previous year and recorded a 
growth of 39.81% over previous year. 

Resource Mobilization
Your Company’s overall borrowing is guided by a Borrowing and 
Investment Policy approved by the Board of Directors. 

Your Company manages its cash flows through prudent Asset-
Liability Management and takes various measures, which include 
the diversification of funding sources, tenure optimization,  and 
prudent borrowing timing to maintain its borrowing cost at an 
optimum level. 

Your Company secured financing from a variety of sources including 
term loans, proceeds from the issuance of NCDs and refinance from 
the NHB. As of 31 March, 2022, your Company’s total borrowings 
stood at C 2059 Crores with the average cost of borrowing at 8.2%. 
Your Company remains committed towards maintaining a vigorous 
diversified resource profile.

Your Company issued the following Secured, Rated, Non-
Convertible, Cumulative, Redeemable, Taxable Debentures (NCD) 
of C 165 Crores in FY 2021-22.

ISIN NO. C In Crore 
Date of 

allotment
Date of 
Listing

INE922K07062 50 22-06-21 28-06-2021

INE922K07070 30 31-08-21 07-09-2021

INE922K07088 35 15-09-21 21-09-2021

INE922K07096 50 23-11-21 26-11-2021

Your Company redeemed following the Secured, Rated, Non-
Convertible, Cumulative, Redeemable, Taxable Debentures (NCD) 
in FY 2021-22. 

ISIN NO.
Date of 

Delisting
C (In Crore)

Type of 
Redemption

INE922K07039 27-07-2021 50 Fully

During the financial year under review, the interest on Non-
Convertible Debentures issued on a private placement basis were 
paid by your Company on their respective due dates.  

National Housing Bank (NHB) refinance
During the financial year, NHB reposed faith in your Company by 
disbursing a refinance of C 70 Crores. With this disbursement, your 
Company had an outstanding of C 344 Crores with the NHB as on 
31 March, 2022.  Your Company had an undrawn sanction of C 200 
Crores as on 31 March, 2022.
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Borrowings from Other Sources
During the year, your Company raised C 1046 Crores from Banks and 
Financial Institutions in the form of term loans; C 32 Crores from PTC 
transactions and C 273 Crores from Direct Assignment.

Your Company is a non-deposit taking Housing Finance Company 
and resolved in the Board Meeting held on 10 June, 2021 that it 
would not accept public deposits as per the licence provided by the 
National Housing Bank.

Your Company, being a Non-Deposit taking Housing Finance 
Company, did not accept any public deposits within the meaning 
of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 
Companies [Acceptance of Deposits] Rules, 2014 and amendment 
made thereunder.

Your Company has borrowed in compliance with the Section 
180 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Listing with stock exchange
Your Company is up to date in the payment of annual listing fees 
to Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) on which its debentures are listed.           

During the financial year under review, the interest on Non-
Convertible Debentures issued on a private placement basis were 
paid by your Company on their respective due dates and there were 
no instances of any interest amount not claimed by the investors 
or not paid by your Company after the date on which the same 
became due for payment.

The disclosures under the RBI Master Directions 2021 on NBFC and 
HFC dated 17 February, 2021 are as below:

(i) The total number of non-convertible debentures, which have 
not been claimed by the Investors or not paid by the housing 
finance company after the date on which the non-convertible 
debentures became due for redemption: Nil

(ii) The total amount in respect of such debentures remaining 
unclaimed or unpaid beyond the date referred to in clause (1) 
as aforesaid: Nil

Debenture trustee
Debenture Trust Agreement(s) were executed in favour of Catalyst 
Trusteeship Services Limited for NCDs issued on private placement 
basis. Following are the details of Catalyst Trusteeship Limited:

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
CIN: U74999PN1997PLC110262
GDA House, First Floor, Plot No. 85 S. No. 94 & 95,
Bhusari Colony (Right), Kothrud Pune MH 411038 IN 

Credit Rating
During the financial year under review , the credit rating of your 
company was affirmed to ICRA A (Stable) and CARE A (Positive):  

Agency Instrument
Rating

(Outlook)

ICRA Non-Convertible Debentures ICRA A (Stable)

ICRA Long Term Borrowings ICRA A (Stable)

CARE Long Term Borrowings CARE A (Positive)

Reserves
In terms of Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, 
every Housing Finance Company is required to transfer at least 20% 
of its net profit every year to a Statutory Reserve Account before 
any dividend is declared. Accordingly, your Company transferred 
an amount of C 26 Crore (Previous Year C 17 Crore) to 'Statutory 
Reserve' and it stands at C 70 Crores as on 31 March, 2022.

Profitability
During the financial year, your Company earned total revenues of 
C 460 Crore compared to C 323 Crore earned in the previous year 
an increase of 42.25%. Your Company earned a profit of C 128 Crore 
compared to C 87 Crore earned in the previous year, registering an 
increase of 40.56%.

Robustness of assets
Your Company has adhered to the Policy on Provisioning for NPAs 
and Write off approved by its Board Of Directors and as per the 
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Methodology. Provision computed as 
per the ECL methodology is higher than the provision computed in 
accordance with Income Recognition and Asset Classification (IRAC) 
Norms  specified by RBI.

Pursuant to the RBI circular dated 12 November 2021- “Prudential 
norms on income recognition, Asset classification, and Provisioning 
pertaining to Advances-Clarifications”, your Company has aligned 
its system of asset classification norms as directed by RBI. Such 
alignment has resulted in transition of sub 90 DPD assets of 
C 1,211.02 Lakhs as additional non-performing assets/Stage 3 as at 
31 March, 2022. Consequently, the GNPA of your Company as on 
31 March, 2022 is at 2.12% (1.63% without considering revised IRAC 
Norms) as compared to 1.78% as of 31 March, 2021. 

Recovery Mechanism
Your Company is a ‘Financial Institution’ under The Securitization 
and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of 
Security Interest (SARFAESI) Act, 2002 and it initiated proceedings 
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under The Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets 
and Enforcement of Security Interest (SARFAESI) Act, 2002 against 
defaulting borrowers for the recovery of dues. Your Company also 
filed cases under section 138 of Negotiable instrument Act,1881.

Your Company is disbursing 100% loans through the electronic 
mode. Your Company is working to maximise collection through 
electronic means.

Capital Adequacy Ratio
NHB Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 requires 
your Company to maintain a minimum capital adequacy of 15% on 
a standalone basis. Your Company’s capital adequacy ratio (CRAR) 
stood at 55.87% (comprising Tier I capital of 55.35% and Tier II capital 
of 0.52%) as on 31 March, 2022, compared to 71.51% (comprising 
Tier I capital of 70.81% and Tier II capital of 0.70%) as on 31 March, 
2021.

Branch Expansion
During the year, your Company added 15 additional branches 
resulting in a total of 130 branches in 15 states as on 31 March, 
2022. This increase in branches contributed to a better performance 
by your Company. Your Company now operates in the States 
of Rajasthan, Maharashtra, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Haryana, 
Chhattisgarh, Uttar Pradesh, Uttaranchal, Punjab, Tamil Nadu, 
Karnataka, Telangana, Andhra Pradesh, Delhi and Orissa. Your 
Company has undertaken measures to improve its visibility through 
marketing and advertising.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption
In compliance with Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014), your Company did 
not carry out in any activity relating to the conservation of energy 
and technology absorption during the year. Hence the requirement 
of a disclosure of particulars relating to the conservation of energy 
and technology absorption in terms of Section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo
The foreign exchange earned and the foreign exchange outgo 
during the year was as below:

Particulars
For year ended 

March, 2022
( Rupees in Lakhs)

For year ended 
March, 2021

(Rupees in Lakhs)

a) Total foreign exchange 
earned 0 0

b) Total foreign exchange 
outgo 197.67 150.00

Regulatory guidelines
During the year under review, the RBI/NHB issued various 
Notifications, Circulars and Guidelines to Housing Finance 
Companies. The Circulars and Notifications issued by RBI/NHB were 
placed before the Board of Directors at regular intervals to update 
Board members on compliance of the same. Your Company adhered 
to all Circulars, Notifications and Guidelines issued by RBI/NHB.

Your Company complied with the Master Directions, guidelines 
and circulars issued by the Reserve Bank of India, National Housing 
Bank, Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to the extent applicable to your 
Company, Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 , Labour Laws, 
Income Tax Act, Goods and Services Tax Act and other applicable 
Acts. 

Your Company also complied with the provisions of the Secretarial 
Standard 1 (SS-1) and Secretarial Standard 2 (SS-2) issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India relating to 'Meetings of 
Board of Directors' and 'General Meetings' respectively.

Your Company was levied penalty by NHB vide its letter 29 July, 
2021, of C 15,000 plus GST on your Company for non-compliance 
with provisions of the Paragraph 22 (2) of the Housing Finance 
Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 and the RBI Circular No. DOR.
No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20,with reference to the inspection 
of your Company as on 31 March, 2020, which was paid by your 
Company.

Environmental, Social & Governance (ESG) Practices
Your Company stayed strong to its commitment to positively impact 
the environment, our customers, employees, and community 
at large. Our core values guided our ESG practices, which seek to 
drive growth and empower communities through our corporate 
decision-making processes.

Environmental
We look at natural capital and the communities we operate in, as 
intergral elements to our business. That is why we work to strike 
a balance between the economic, social and environmental 
aspects of our decisions. For our environmental initiatives, we are 
keen to explore how our work can address various environmental 
challenges and incorporate technologies and processes that do 
not harm, but rather add value to the quality of the environment 
around us. Moreover, our push to go digital across service and 
product lines, helps reduce paper consumption and enables our 
customers to access a multi-channel digital solution, without the 
hassle of travelling to a branch office. Our technical evaluation 
incorporates environment and social aspects of collateral as a part 
of the assessment process.

Social
We strive towards the progress of society through our Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) policy. We have a CSR policy, which lays 
down the action plan for defining how CSR is to be implemented 
and is in compliance with the Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 
2013. The CSR programs undertaken by your Company largely 
fall in the areas of improving awareness of communities towards 
education.

Corporate governance
We are committed to maintaining the highest levels of integrity, 
corporate governance and regulatory compliance. These 
parameters form the bedrock of our corporate governance policy. 
We have proactively upheld good governance practices and 
are constantly striving to enhance our standards. Our Board of 
Directors are responsible for setting the course for and evaluating 
the bank’s performance with regards to corporate governance. The 
parameters of evaluation include compliance, internal control, risk 
management, information and cybersecurity, customer service and 
social and environmental responsibility.
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Your Company has been complying with the Standards of 
corporate governance required under the Companies Act,2013 and 
other applicable acts. Your Board has discharged the duties and 
responsibilities as required under the applicable statute(s) including 
the Companies Act.

Your Company comprises of Board of Directors, which has a defined 
schedule of matters reserved for its consideration and decision, 
apart from legally required matters. 

The Board of Directors of your Company comprises eight Directors, 
consisting of two Independent Directors (including one Woman 
Director), four  Non-Executive Nominee Directors, one Chairman 
and Non-Executive Director and one Managing Director and CEO 
as on 31 March, 2022, who bring in a wide range of skills and 
experience to the Board.

The Board of Directors of your Company as on 31 March, 2022 were:

Directors Designation DIN

Mr. Anil Mehta1 Chairman and Non-
Executive Director

02132315

Mr. Rupinder Singh2 Managing Director and 
Chief Executive Officer

09153382

Mr. Anup Gupta Nominee Director 02284944

Mr. Shailesh J. Mehta3 Nominee Director 01633893

Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas 
Choksey4

Nominee Director 00036085

Mr. Sumir Chadha Nominee Director 00040789

Ms. Rachna Dikshit5 Additional (Independent & 
Non-Executive) Director

08759332

Mr. Sunil Ramakant 
Bhumralkar6

Additional (Independent & 
Non-Executive) Director

00177658

The following changes took place in the composition of Board of 
Directors during the Financial year 2021-22:

1.	 The Board of Directors of your Company in their meeting 
held on 22 November, 2021, accepted the resignation of Mr. 
Anil Mehta from the position of Managing Director and Chief 
Executive Officer of your Company with effect from the closure 
of business hours as of 22 November, 2021 and re-designated 
him as the Chairman and Non-Executive Director of your 
Company with effect from 23 November, 2021.

2.	 The Board of Directors of your Company in their meeting held 
on 22 November, 2021, appointed Mr. Rupinder Singh as the 
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of your Company 
with effect from 23 November, 2021.

3.	 The Board of Directors of your Company in their meeting held 
on 02 November, 2021, accepted resignation of Mr. Shailesh 
J. Mehta from the position of Independent Director of your 
Company with effect from the closure of business hours as of 02 
November, 2021 and appointed him as the Nominee Director 
your Company with effect from 03 November, 2021.

4.	 The Board of Directors of your Company in their meeting held 

on 02 November, 2021 appointed Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas 
Choksey as Nominee Director of your Company with effect from  
03 November, 2021.

5.	 Ms. Rachna Dikshit retired from the Board with effect 11 February, 
2022 as an Independent Director. The Board of Directors of 
your Company in their meeting held on 01 February, 2022, re- 
appointed Ms. Rachna Dikshit as an Additional (Independent & 
Non-Executive) Director of your Company with effect from 12 
February, 2022 and shareholder’s confirmed her appointment 
as an Independent Director in their meeting held on 10 May, 
2022.

6 	 The Board of Directors of your Company in their meeting held 
on 31 March, 2022 appointed Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar 
as  an Additional (Independent & Non-Executive) Director your 
Company with effect from  31 March, 2022 and shareholder’s 
confirmed his appointment as an Independent Director in their 
meeting held on 10 May, 2022.

7.	 The Board of Directors of your Company in their meeting 
held on 02 November, 2021, accepted resignation of Mr. G V 
Ravishanker from the position of Nominee Director of your 
Company w.e.f 26 October, 2021.

Key managerial personnel
During the year under review, the Key Managerial Personnel of your 
Company were as follows:

a Mr. Rupinder Singh – Managing Director & CEO  
(from 23 November, 2021)

b Mr. Anil Mehta - Managing Director & CEO  
(till 22 November, 2021)

c Mr. Ashish Gupta- Chief Financial Officer

d Ms. Mukti Chaplot – Company Secretary

Committees of the Board 
Your Company has following eight Board-level Committees, which 
have been constituted in compliance with the requirements of the 
business and relevant provisions of applicable laws and statutes:  

1. Audit Committee 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

3. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

4. Enterprise Risk Management Committee 

5. Asset Liability Management Committee 

6. IT Strategy Committee 

7. Wilful Defaulter Identification & Review Committee and

8. Customer Service & Grievance Redressal Committee

The recommendations made by above Committees were accepted 
by the Board.

Board of Directors Meeting
During the Financial Year under review, the Board of your Company 
had met six times during the year under consideration on [1] 12 
May, 2021; [2] 09 September, 2021; [3] 02 November, 2021; [4] 22 
November, 2021; [5] 01 February, 2022; and [6] 31 March, 2022.

The attendance of the Board of Directors at the Board Meetings during the year and at the last Annual General Meeting [AGM] were as under:

Name Category Number of Meetings Last AGM 
attendedHeld Entitled Attended

Mr. Anil Mehta  
(DIN: 02132315)

Chairman & Non executive  
Director

6 6 5 Yes

Mr. Rupinder Singh 
(DIN: 09153382)

Managing Director and Chief 
Executive Officer

6 5 5 Yes

Ms. Rachna Dikshit
(DIN: 08759332)

Additional (Independent & Non-
Executive Director)

6 6 6 Yes

Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar 
(DIN: 00177658)

Additional (Independent & Non-
Executive) Director

6 - - -

Dr. Shailesh J Mehta 
(DIN: 01633893)

Nominee Director 6 6 5 Yes

Mr. Anup Gupta 
(DIN: 02284944)

Nominee Director 6 6 6 -

Mr. G V Ravishankar 
(DIN: 02604007)

Nominee Director 6 2 0 -

Mr. Sumir Chadha (DIN:00040789) Nominee Director 6 6 6 -

Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey
(DIN: 00036085)

Nominee Director 6 3 3 -

The attendance of the members at the Audit Committee Meetings during the year was as below:

Name Category Number of meetings

Held Entitled Attended

Mr. Anil Mehta  
(DIN: 02132315)

Non executive  Director 4 3 2

Mr. Rupinder Singh  
(DIN: 09153382)

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 4 1 1

Ms. Rachna Dikshit
(DIN: 08759332)

Additional (Non-executive and Independent 
Director)

4 4 4

Mr. Shailesh J Mehta  
(DIN: 01633893)

Nominee Director 4 3 3

Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar  
(DIN: 00177658)

Additional (Non-executive and Independent 
Director)

4 - -

Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee of your Company as on March 31, 2022 
comprises three members including two independent directors as 
below:

Directors Designation DIN

Mr. Rupinder Singh1 Managing Director and 
Chief Executive Officer

09153382

Ms. Rachna Dikshit Additional (Independent 
and Non-Executive) Director

08759332

Mr. Sunil Ramakant 
Bhumralkar2

Additional (Independent 
and Non-Executive) Director

00177658

*Mr. Anil Mehta and Mr. Shailesh Mehta ceased to be members of 
the Committee on 02 November, 2021.    

1.	 The Board of Directors of your Company in their meeting held 
on 22 November, 2021 appointed Mr. Rupinder Singh as the 

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of your Company 
with effect from 23 November, 2021.

2.	 The Board of Directors of your Company  in their meeting held 
on 31 March, 2022 appointed Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar 
as  an Additional (Independent & Non-Executive) Director your 
Company with effect from 31 March, 2022 and shareholder’s 
confirmed his appointment as Independent Director in their 
meeting held on 10 May, 2022.

The Audit Committee was reconstituted on 02 November, 2021 and 
31 March, 2022 and Mr. Rupinder Singh became a member of the 
Audit Committee on 02 November, 2021 and Mr. Sunil Bhumralker 
on 31 March, 2022.

The Audit Committee met four times during the year under 
consideration on [1] 11 May, 2021; [2] 07 September, 2021; [3] 02 
November, 2021; and [4]  27 January, 2022. Your Board has approved 
a Charter for the Audit Committee.
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The attendance of the members at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings during the year is as below:

Name Category Number of meetings

Held Entitled Attended

Ms. Rachna Dikshit 
(DIN: 08759332)

Additional (Non-executive and Independent 
Director)

5 5 5

Mr. Shailesh J Mehta (DIN: 01633893) Nominee Director 5 2 2

Mr. Anup Gupta (DIN: 02284944) Nominee Director 5 5 5

Mr. GV Ravishankar (DIN: 02604007) Nominee Director 5 1 1

Mr. Sumir Chadha (DIN:00040789) Nominee Director 5 3 3

Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar 
(DIN: 00177658)

Additional (Non-executive and Independent 
Director)

5 - -

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of your Company 
as on 31 March, 2022 comprises four members, including two 
Independent Directors as below:

Directors Designation DIN

Mr. Anup Gupta Nominee Director 02284944

Mr. Sumir Chadha Nominee Director 00040789

Ms. Rachna Dikshit Additional (Independent 
and Non-Executive) Director

08759332

Mr. Sunil Ramakant 
Bhumralkar1

Additional (Independent 
and Non-Executive) Director

00177658

* Mr. GV Ravishankar and Mr. Shailesh  Mehta, ceased to be members 
of the Committee on 26 October, 2021 and 02 November, 2021 
respectively. 

* The Board of Directors of your Company, in their meeting held on 
02 November, 2021, accepted the resignation of Mr. G V Ravishanker 
from the position of Nominee Director of your Company w.e.f 26 
October, 2021.

1 	 The Board of Directors of your Company  in their meeting held 
on 31 March, 2022 appointed Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar as  
an Additional (Independent & Non-Executive) Director of your 
Company with effect from  31 March, 2022 and shareholder’s 
confirmed his appointment as Independent Director in their 
meeting held on 10 May, 2022.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was reconstituted 
on 02 November, 2021 and 31 March, 2022 and Mr. Sumir 
Chadha became a member of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee on 02 November, 2021 and Mr. Sunil Bhumralkar  on 31 
March, 2022.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met five times 
during the year under consideration on [1] 12 May, 2021; [2] 28 
October, 2021; [3] 22 November, 2021; [4] 01 February, 2022 and [5] 
31 March, 2022.

Your Board has approved a Charter for the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee. The Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
is attached as Annexure 01.

Corporate Social Responsibility 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of your Company 
as on 31 March, 2022 comprised three members including one 
Independent Director as below:

Directors Designation DIN

Mr. Rupinder Singh1 Managing Director and 
Chief Executive Officer

09153382

Ms. Rachna Dikshit Additional (Independent 
and Non-Executive) Director

08759332

Mr. Sunil Ramakant 
Bhumralkar2

Additional (Independent 
and Non-Executive) Director

00177658

Mr. Anil Mehta ceased as members of the  of the Committee on 
November 02, 2021.  

The Board of Directors of your Company, in their meeting held on 
02 November, 2021, accepted the resignation of Mr. G V Ravishanker 
from the position of Nominee Director of your Company from 

26 October, 2021. Mr. GV Ravishankar ceased as member of the 
Committee on 26 October, 2021.  

1.	 The Board of Directors of your Company in their meeting 
held on 22 November, 2021 appointed Mr. Rupinder Singh as  
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of your Company 
with effect from 23 November, 2021.

2	 The Board of Directors of your Company  in their meeting held 
on 31 March, 2022 appointed Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar as  
an Additional (Independent & Non-Executive) Director of your 
Company with effect from 31 March, 2022 and shareholder’s 
confirmed his appointment as Independent Director in their 
meeting held on 10 May, 2022.

* The CSR Committee was reconstituted on 02 November, 2021 & 
31 March, 2022 and Mr. Rupinder Singh became member of the 
Committee on 02 November, 2021 and Mr. Sunil Bhumralkar on 31 
March, 2022.

The CSR Committee met one time in the year under consideration 
on 15 March, 2022.

The attendance of the members at the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings during the year is as below:

Name Category Number of meetings
Held Attended

Ms. Rachna Dikshit (DIN: 08759332) Additional (Non-executive and Independent Director) 1 1

Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey(DIN: 00036085) Nominee Director 1 1

Mr. Rupinder Singh (DIN: 09153382) Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 1 1

Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar (DIN: 00177658) Additional (Non-executive and Independent Director) 1 -

In line with the statutory requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 and it’s CSR Policy, your Company spent a sum of C 146.54  Lakh in 
the FY 2021-22  in the below manner:

Sr. No. Name of organisa-
tion

Category FY22  
(C in Lakhs)

1. Mahesh Foundation Mahesh  Foundation is empowering and enriching the lives of medically challenged and 
the underprivileged children. “CARE HOME, NUTRITION, HEALTHCARE and EDUCATION”

36.36

2. Vidhya Bhawan Vidya Bhawan Society was established in 1931 in Udaipur, Rajasthan, it seeks to establish 
linkages between education, society, and humanity.

30.00

3. Bansi Vidya Memorial 
Trust  (Leukemia 
Crusaders)

The Trust was formed in 2013 to work and contribute towards the noble cause of 
financially supporting leukemia or blood cancer affected children. 

15.00

4. Seva Mandir The Grassroots NGO founded in 1968. with following Two Goals: 

1) 	 Transforming Lives –tackle development problems

2) 	 Strengthening Communities –facilitate democracy

8.00

5. United Way 
Bengaluru

Community based organization affiliated with United Way Worldwide HQ’d in the USA. 
Mission is to advance the common good for people through our work in education, 
income stability health

0.23

6. The Wheeling 
Happiness

Wheeling Happiness foundation is the brainchild of co-founders Dr. Deepa Malik 
(Padmashri, Khel Ratna, Arjuna Awardee) & Devika Malik (Psychological Counsellor, 
Queen Elizabeth II, Vice-President of India & United Nations awardee for community 
service; National Youth Awardee).

2.25

7. PM Care Fund Fund set up by central govt. for following the COVID-19 outbreak, on March 27, 2020, 
to curb the virus' outbreak in India, and to alleviate suffering of the people due to the 
pandemic.

30.00

8. Clean Ganga Fund Fund set-up by the Central Government for rejuvenation of river Ganga. 19.71

9. Swachh Bharat Kosh It was launched in 2014 by the Department of Expenditure, The Ministry of Finance with 
an objective of improving cleanliness levels in rural and urban areas, including in schools.

5.00

10. TOTAL 146.54

The disclosures as per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are attached as Annexure 02. 

Your Company  developed and implemented a Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy, which was placed on the website at https://
www.indiashelter.in/policies-reports.php and is attached as 
Annexure 03.

Enterprise Risk Management  Committee
The Enterprise Risk Management Committee of your Company 
as on 31 March, 2022 comprises of six members including two 
independent directors as below:

Directors Designation DIN

Mr. Rupinder Singh1 Managing Director and 
Chief Executive Officer

09153382

Mr. Anup Gupta Nominee Director 02284944

Mr. Shailesh J. Mehta Nominee Director 01633893

Directors Designation DIN

Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas 
Choksey2

Nominee Director 00036085

Ms. Rachna Dikshit Additional (Independent 
and Non-Executive) Director

08759332

Mr. Sunil Ramakant 
Bhumralkar 3

Additional (Independent 
and Non-Executive) Director

00177658

*Mr. Anil Mehta ceased as members of the of the Committee on 02 
November, 2021. 

1.	 The Board of Directors of your Company, in its meeting  on 
22 November, 2021, appointed Mr. Rupinder Singh as the  
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of your Company 
with effect from 23 November, 2021.

2.	 The Board of Directors of your Company in its meeting on 02 
November, 2021, appointed Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey 
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as Nominee Director of your Company with effect from 03 
November, 2021.

3.	 The Board of Directors of your Company  in their meeting held 
on 31 March, 2022 appointed Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar as  
an Additional (Independent & Non-Executive) Director of your 
Company with effect from 31 March, 2022 and shareholder’s 
confirmed his appointment as Independent Director in their 
meeting held on 10 May, 2022.

The ERMC Committee was reconstituted on November 02, 2021 & 

31 March, 2022 and Mr. Rupinder singh, Mr. Anup Gupta and  Mr. 
Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey became a member of the Committee 
on 02 November, 2021 and  Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar on 31 
March, 2022.

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee met four times during 
the year under consideration on [1] 11 May, 2021 ; [2] 07 September, 
2021; [3] 02 November, 2021; and [4]  27 January, 2022. 

The attendance of the members at the Enterprise Risk Management 
Committee Meetings during the year was as below:

The attendance of the members at the Enterprise Risk Management Committee Meetings during the year is as below:

Name Category Number of meetings

Held Entitled Attended

Mr. Anil Mehta (DIN: 02132315) Non-Executive Director 4 3 2

Mr. Rupinder Singh (DIN: 09153382) Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 4 1 1

Ms. Rachna Dikshit (DIN: 08759332) Additional (Non-executive and Independent 
Director)

4 4 4

Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar 
(DIN: 00177658)

Additional (Independent and Non-Executive) 
Director

4 - -

Mr. Shailesh J Mehta (DIN: 01633893) Nominee Director 4 4 4

Mr. Anup Gupta (DIN: 02284944) Nominee Director 4 1 1

Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey
(DIN: 00036085)

Nominee Director 4 1 1

Your Company had Board-approved Credit and Risk Management 
Policies wherein all material risks faced by your Company were 
identified and assessed. Your Company  set up a policy framework 
for ensuring better management of its asset and liability profile.

During the year, the Enterprises Risk Management committee 
reviewed the risks associated with the business of your Company, 
its root causes and the efficacy of  measures  to mitigate them .

The Board of Directors of your Company, with the intent to 
implement a consistent, efficient, and economical approach to 
identify, evaluate, respond and mitigate key risks that may impact 
business objectives of your Company and in order to minimize the 
frequency and impact of risks,  adopted a Risk Management Policy. 

The  Risk Management Policy of your Company was  approved by 
the Board which is enclosed as Annexure 04, which is also available 
on the Website of your Company at https://www.indiashelter.in/
policies-reports.php.

Information Technology Strategy Committee 
Your Company has in place a Board Constituted Information 
Technology Strategy Committee comprising of five members as on 
31 March, 2022 including two independent director as below:

Directors Designation DIN

Mr. Rupinder Singh1 Managing Director and 
Chief Executive Officer

09153382

Mr. Shailesh J. Mehta Nominee Director 01633893

Ms. Rachna Dikshit Additional (Independent 
and Non-Executive) Director

08759332

Directors Designation DIN

Mr. Sunil Ramakant 
Bhumralkar2

Additional (Independent 
and Non-Executive) Director

00177658

Mr. Varun Guliani3 Head-IT -

*Mr. Anil Mehta ceased as members of the Committee on 02 
November, 2021.  

1. 	 The Board of Directors of your Company in its meeting held on 
22 November, 2021 appointed Mr. Rupinder Singh as Managing 
Director and Chief Executive Officer of your Company with 
effect from 23 November, 2021.

2.	 The Board of Directors of your Company  in their meeting held 
on 31 March, 2022 appointed Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar as  
an Additional (Independent & Non-Executive) Director of your 
Company with effect from 31 March, 2022. and shareholder’s 
confirmed his appointment as Independent Director in their 
meeting held on 10 May, 2022.

3. 	 Mr. Varun Guliani was not associated with your Company as 
on the date of the report and Mr. Abhinav Arya, CIO became a 
member of the committee effective from 20 April, 2022

The IT Strategy Committee was reconstituted on November 02, 2021 
and 31 March, 2022  and Mr. Rupinder Singh  became a member 
of the Committee on 02 November, 2021 and Mr. Sunil Ramakant 
Bhumralkar on 31 March, 2022.

The Information Technology Strategy Committee met twice during 
the year under consideration on [1] 28 July, 2021; and [2] 27 January, 
2022; 

The attendance of the members in the Information Technology Strategy Committee  meetings during the year is as below:

Name Category Number of meetings

Held Entitled Attended

Ms. Rachna Dikshit 
(DIN: 08759332) 

Additional (Non-executive and Independent 
Director)

2 1 1

Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar 
(DIN: 00177658)

Additional (Independent and Non-Executive) 
Director

2 - -

Mr. Shailesh J Mehta (DIN: 01633893) Nominee Director 2 2 2

Mr. Anil Mehta (DIN: 02132315) Non-Executive Director 2 1 1

Mr. Rupinder Singh (DIN: 09153382) Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 2 1 1

Mr. Varun Guliani Head-IT 2 2 2

There were Twenty Six meetings of other Committees as per the business requirements of your Company.

1. 31 May, 2021 Wilful Defaulter Committee

2. 22 September, 2021 Wilful Defaulter Committee

3. 29 December, 2021 Wilful Defaulter Committee

4. 31 March, 2022 Wilful Defaulter Committee

5. 31 May, 2021 Customer Service & Grievance Redressal Committee

6. 22 September, 2021 Customer Service & Grievance Redressal Committee

7. 19 December, 2021 Customer Service & Grievance Redressal Committee

8. 31 March, 2022 Customer Service & Grievance Redressal Committee

9. 28 April, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

10. 31 May, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

11. 15 June, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

12. 22 June, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

13. 28 July, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

14. 11 August, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

15. 25 August, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

16. 31 August, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

17. 15 September, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

18. 22 September, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

19. 29 October, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

20. 02 November, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

21. 23 November, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

22. 23 December, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

23. 29 December, 2021 Asset Liability Management Committee

24. 28 January, 2022 Asset Liability Management Committee

25. 25 February, 2022 Asset Liability Management Committee

26. 29 March, 2022 Asset Liability Management Committee

Director and Key Management Personnel
Retirement by Rotation and Re-appointment
As per Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sumir Chadha 
(DIN:00040789) and Mr. Anup Gupta (DIN: 02284944) Nominee 
Director of your Company, will retire by rotation at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for 
reappointment.

Resignation/Retirement of Independent Director
Pursuant to Section 149 (6), Section 152 and Section 161 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions (including 
any modification or re-enactment thereof), if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in their 
meeting held on 02 November, 2021 and the Board of Directors 
of your Company in their meeting held on 02 November, 2021, 
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took the note of the resignation of Mr. Shailesh J. Mehta from the 
position of Independent Director of your Company with effect 
from the closure of business hours as of 02 November, 2021 and 
appointed him Nominee Director of your Company with effect from 
03 November, 2021.

Appointment of Independent Director
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with 
schedule IV and Section 161(1) read with Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable 
provisions, sections, rules of the Companies Act, 2013, on the 
recommendation by the members of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee in their meeting held on 01 February, 2022 and Board Of 
Directors in their meeting held on 01 February, 2022, Ms Rachna 
Dikshit (DIN:08759332) was appointed as an Additional Director 
(Non-Executive & Independent) (DIN: 08759332) on the Board of 
your Company w.e.f. 12 February, 2022 and was confirmed as an 
Independent Director in the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 
10 May, 2022.

On the recommendation by the members of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee in their meeting held on 31 March, 2022, 
and Board Of Directors in their meeting held on  31 March, 2022,  Mr. 
Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar (DIN: 00177658) was appointed as an 
Additional Director (Non-Executive & Independent) (DIN: 08759332) 
on the Board of your Company from 31 March, 2022 and was 
confirmed as an Independent Director in the Extra-ordinary General 
Meeting held on 10 May, 2022.

Appointment/Resignation of Nominee Director
The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 
November 02, 2021 appointed Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey as 
Nominee Director of the company with effect from  November 03, 
2021.

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 
November 02, 2021, accepted resignation of Mr. G V Ravishanker 
from the position of Nominee Director of the company with effect 
from October 26, 2021.

Declaration by Independent Director
The declarations by the Independent Director(s) that they 

•	 Meet the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section (6) 
of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, has been obtained;

•	 Have registered to the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs 
(IICA), as specified in sub-rule (2) of Rule 6 of The Companies 
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014.

Declaration of Fit and Proper criteria
Your Company is adhering to the fit and proper criteria and your 
Board of Directors have approved the Fit and Proper Policy which 
assesses the Fit and Proper criteria for the Directors at the time 
of appointment and on a continuing basis, as per the criteria 
prescribed by RBI.

Remuneration to Directors 
During the year, your Company did not pay any remuneration 
to Non-executive Directors. However, sitting fees were paid to 

Independent Directors as per the provisions of Companies Act, 
2013.

The details of the managerial remuneration, approved by the 
shareholders as per Schedule V Part II- Section II (IV) of Companies 
Act, 2013, is attached as Annexure 05.

Annual Evaluation
Your Company follows best practices to ensure that the Board Of 
Directors understand their duties and adopt good governance 
practices. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee carried out the 
evaluation of each Director’s performance and the Board additionally 
carried out a formal evaluation of its  performance, Statutory Board 
Committees and all individual Directors without the presence of the 
Director concerned who was evaluated. 

During the year, Independent Directors of your Company also 
held separate meetings to review the performance of the Non- 
Independent Directors and the Board as a whole and assessed the 
quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between 
your Company management and the Board, which was necessary 
for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 
Major aspects of Board evaluation included who is to be evaluated, 
process of evaluation, including laying down  objectives and criteria 
to be adopted for the evaluation of different persons, feedback to 
the persons being evaluated and action plan based on the results.

Company’s Policy on Directors Appointment, 
Remuneration & Evaluation 
The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Board adopted a Nomination 
and Remuneration Policy, which, inter-alia, laid down the criteria 
for identifying the persons  qualified to be appointed as Directors 
and/or Senior Management Personnel of your Company, along with 
the criteria for the determination of the remuneration of Directors, 
KMPs and other employees and their evaluation and included 
other matters, as prescribed under the provisions of Section 178 of 
Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination & Remuneration Policy of your 
Company was placed on the website of your Company at  https://
www.indiashelter.in/policies-reports.php. The Remuneration paid 
to the Directors was in line with the remuneration policy of your 
Company.

Human Resources Development
Your Company followed the best human resource practices and 
had 2200 employees on its rolls as on 31 March, 2022 compared 
to 1576 employees as on 31 March, 2021, registering an increase 
of 39.59%.

Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 
2013 read with rules 
Your Company practiced zero tolerance towards any action on 
the part of any of its officials, which fell under the ambit of ‘Sexual 
Harassment’ at the workplace. Your Company promotes and 
recognizes harassment and the right to work with dignity. 

In this regard, India Shelter instituted an Internal Complaints 
Committee for the redressal of sexual harassment complaints 
(made by the victim) and for ensuring time-bound treatment of 
such complaints. The Internal Complaints Committee as on 31 
March, 2022 comprised of the following four members, out of which 
three members were women:

Presiding Officer Member-1 Member-2 NGO

Madhu Sharma Mukti Chaplot Nilay Samta Ahuja

An Appellate Committee is also constituted as below:

Members Designation

Ms. Rachna Dikshit
(DIN: 08759332)

Board representative

4 other members Equal number of male & female members 
from amongst ICC members

Your Company imparted training, for Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace as a part of induction training provided to all 
employees.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 22 of Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013 
read with Rules there-under, the Internal Complaint committee of 
your Company did not receive any complaint of sexual harassment 
during the year under review.  

Vigil mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy
Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made there 
under requires your Company to establish a vigil mechanism. Your 
Company has adopted Fraud Management Policy which includes 
whistle blower mechanism. The said policy has been uploaded on 
the Website of your Company. Your Company has also provided 
the facility to all the employees of your Company to report any 
suspected, alleged or actual fraud without disclosing their identity. 
A dedicated Email ID – whistleblowing@indiashelter.in has been 
made for this purpose which acts as a single point of contact for all 
the employees.

Further, there were no report under sub section (12) of section 143 
of the Companies Act has been filed by the Statutory Auditors as 
prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto 
the date of the report.

As regards to the fraud on your Company, there have been 2 
instances aggregating to C 10.35 Lakh wherein frauds have been 
perpetrated by the borrowers of your Company as disclosed in Note 
43.28 of the financial statements.

Particulars of Employee Related Disclosures
Your Company grants Employee Stock Options, share-based 
benefit to eligible employees  to attract and retain the best talent, 
encourage employees to align individual performance with your 
Company’s objectives and promote increased participation  in the 
success of your Company.

The details of the ESOP  formed a part of Notes to Accounts of the 
financial statements in this Annual Report. 

The details as per Rule 12 (9) of Companies (Share Capital and 
Debentures) Rules, 2014 were enclosed as Annexure 06.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related 
parties
The particulars of every contract or arrangements, entered into by 
your Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of 
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, were disclosed in Form 
No. AOC -2 as Annexure 07. Your Company  framed a Related Party 
Transaction Policy for your Company as per the NHB/RBI Directions. 
The same was enclosed as Annexure 08 to this report. 

Deposits
Your Company is registered as a non-deposit taking Housing 
Finance Company with National Housing Bank and  did not accept 
any deposits. Your Company did not accept any deposits from the 
public during the financial year ended 31 March, 2022.

Internal Audit and Internal Controls over Financial 
Reporting
As per the provisions of Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act, 
2013, the Directors have an overall responsibility for ensuring 
that your Company has implemented robust systems/framework 
of internal financial controls to provide them with reasonable 
assurance regarding the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
controls with regards to reporting, operational and compliance risks. 

Your Company has Internal Audit Department which conducts a 
comprehensive audit of functional areas and operations of your 
Company to examine the adequacy of and compliance with 
policies, procedures, statutory and regulatory requirements.

Significant audit observations and follow up actions thereon were 
reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Audit 
Committee reviews and evaluates adequacy and effectiveness 
of your Company’s internal control environment and monitors 
the implementation of audit recommendations. Your Company  
implemented all  recommendations of Audit Committee.

Based on information provided, nothing has come to the attention 
of Directors to indicate that any material breakdown in the function 
of these controls, procedures or systems occurred during the year 
under review. There were no significant changes in our internal 
financial controls during the year that materially affected, or are 
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal financial controls.

Your Company’s internal control are commensurate commensurate 
with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. Your Company’s 
Internal Auditors, reviewed internal control and risk-management 
measures, accounting procedures, highlight areas requiring 
attention and reported their main findings and recommendations 
to the Audit Committee.  

Dematerialisation of Shares and Non-Convertible 
Debentures
The equity shares of your Company were dematerialized by National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) with ISIN No. INE922K01016.  

During the year under review, following Non-Convertible 
Debentures of your Company have been admitted for 
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dematerialization by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 
and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL)

ISIN NO. C In Crore w.e.f

INE922K07062 50 22-06-21

INE922K07070 30 31-08-21

INE922K07088 35 15-09-21

INE922K07096 50 23-11-21

in addition to the already existing ISIN No INE922K07054  with effect 
from 16 June, 2020 and delisted ISIN bearing number NE922K07039 
w.e.f 27 July, 2021.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under 
section 186
As your Company is a housing finance company, the disclosure 
regarding particulars of loans given, guarantees given and security 
provided were exempt under the provisions of Section 186(11) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the provisions of Section 186, except 
sub-section (1) of the Act, are not applicable to your Company.

Disclosure under Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act:
Your Company did not issue any shares with differential rights and 
hence no information as per provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act 
read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) 
Rules, 2014 was furnished.

Disclosure under Section 67(3) of the Act:
During the year under review, there were no instances of non-
exercising of voting rights in respect of shares purchased directly 
by employees under a scheme. Hence no information pursuant to 
Section 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share 
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 was furnished.

Disclosure under Rule 8 of the Companies (accounts) 
Rules, 2014:
During the year under review your Company did not made any 
application nor any proceedings are pending under the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Further there were no instances of 
one-time settlement for any loans taken from the Banks or Financial 
Institutions.

Maintenance of cost records
The Central Government did not specify the maintenance of cost 
records under Section 148(1) of the Act, for the services of your 
Company.

Website disclosures
Your Company  made  disclosures on its website www.indiashelter.
in. All regulatory disclosures, compliances, public notices and 
policies have been regularly updated. Our customer can also reach  
us through the toll-free helpline number, contact details of the 
Principal Officer, submit complaints or grievances, if any, etc.

Extract of the annual return
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, copies of the Annual Returns 

of your Company prepared in accordance with Section 92(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 are placed on the 
website of your Company at https://www.indiashelter.in/policies-
reports.php..

Management Discussion and Analysis
The Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this report, 
which provides a detailed information of state of affairs of the 
operations of your Company..

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
In terms of Sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013, we, the Directors of your company, state that in respect of 
Financial Year 2021-22, that

a)	 In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with a proper 
explanation relating to material departures;

b)	 The Directors have selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of your Company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit and loss of your Company for that 
period;

c)	 The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of 
your Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;

d)	 The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going 
concern basis; 

e)	 Your Company has laid down internal controls which were 
adequate and were operating effectively; and

f)	 The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Auditors
Statutory Auditors
With reference to guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India with 
reference to para 8.3 of the RBI Guidelines for Appointment of 
Statutory Auditors circular no. RBI/2021- 22/25  dated April 27, 2021, 
the existing statutory auditors M/s Walker and Chandiok & Co., LLP  
tendered resignation via letter dated 28 August, 2021, which also 
resulted in a casual vacancy in terms of the provisions of section 
139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, read with the Companies (Audit 
& Auditors) Rules, 2014, and and RBI guidelines dated 27 April, 2021 
and other relevant provisions including any statutory enactment 
or modification thereof, appointment of M/s. T R Chadha & Co LLP, 
Chartered Accountants, having Registration number 006711N/
N500028 were approved  by Audit Committee by Circular resolution 
bearing No 01/2021-22 dated 01 September, 2021  and Board of 

Directors by Circular resolution bearing No 15/2021-22 dated 01 
September, 2021 subject to the approval of shareholders of your 
Company  and subsequently by the shareholders of your Company 
in the Annual General Meeting held on 29 September, 2021 as 
Statutory Auditors of India Shelter to hold the office from the 
conclusion of 23rd Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 
26th  Annual General Meeting.

Auditors’ Report
The Auditors' Report is unqualified. The Statutory Auditors have not 
made any adverse comments on the working of your Company.  The 
notes to the Financial Statements, read with the Auditors' Report, 
are self-explanatory and not require further clarification.

Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Audit Report 
In accordance with Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, Mr. Jitender Singh (Membership 
No.: A33610 & CP: 12463) was appointed as Secretarial Auditor to 
conduct the Secretarial Audit of your Company for 2021-22 by the 
Board of Directors in its meeting held on 02 November, 2021. Your 
Company provided all assistance and facilities to the Secretarial 
Auditor for conducting the audit. The Report of Secretarial Auditor 
for 2021-22 is annexed to this report as Annexure 9. The report is 
self-explanatory and there were no qualifications in the Auditor’s 
Report.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators/
courts/tribunals impacting the going concern status and your 
Company’s operations in future

There were no orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals, 
which would impact the going concern status of your Company 
and its future operations. 

Appreciation
Your Company acknowledges the role of all its key stakeholders 
- shareholders, borrowers, key partners and lenders for their 
continued support to your Company. 

The Directors place on record their gratitude for the support of 
various regulatory authorities including NHB, RBI, SEBI, IRDA, MCA, 
Registrar of Companies, Financial Intelligence Unit (India), Foreign 
Investment Promotion Board, Bombay Stock Exchange and 
depositories. 

While recognizing the challenging work environment, your 
Directors place on record their appreciation for the hard work and 
dedication of all the employees of your Company. 

Acknowledgement
This is an acknowledgement to all with whose help, cooperation 
and hard work, your Company is able to achieve the results.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-	 Sd/-
Mr. Anil Mehta	 Mr. Rupinder Singh
DIN:02132315	 DIN: 09153382

Place:Gurugram	 Place:Gurugram
Date: 12 May, 2022	 Date:12 May, 2022
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1.	 INTRODUCTION
	 India Shelter Housing Finance Limited (Company) strives to 

have a proper framework to attract & motivate good candidates, 
improve productivity and aid in retaining manpower by creating 
a congenial work environment, encouraging initiatives with 
personal growth through team work and by inculcating a sense 
of belonging and involvement, besides offering appropriate 
remuneration packages and superannuation benefits.

	 In terms of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, your Company was required to formulate a policy 
ensuring the criteria for evaluation of performance and 
determination of remuneration based on the performance 
of Directors  and KMPs. Further, as per the Non-Banking 
Financial Company- Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2021 (RBI HFC Directions), every non-public deposit 
accepting Housing Finance Company (HFC) with asset size of 
C 50 Crore and above, as per the last audited Balance Sheet 
were required to have a proper framework in relation to the 
remuneration of Directors, key managerial personnel and 
senior management personnel.

	 Accordingly, your Company proposed to adopt this Nomination 
and Remuneration Policy (Policy) with the approval of its Board 
of Directors (Board).

2.	 APPLICABILITY
	 This Policy is applicable for appointment/nomination and 

remuneration of the following:

2.1	 Directors; viz. Executive, Non-Executive and Independent 
Directors.

2.2	 Key managerial personnel.

2.3	 Senior Management employees.

	 Once approved by the Board, this Policy shall supersede all 
previous versions of Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

3.	 OBJECTIVES
	 This Nomination and Remuneration Policy was formulated to 

ensure a compliance with the following objectives:

3.1	 The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable 
and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors 
and KMPs with appropriate qualities, experience and 
skills required to be maintained to run your Company 
successfully;

3.2	 Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and 
meets appropriate performance benchmarks;

3.3	 Remuneration to Directors, KMPs and senior management 
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay, 

reflecting short and long-term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of your Company and its goals;

3.4	 To guide your Company in relation to appointment, 
removal of Directors & KMPs and evaluation of their 
performance;

3.5	 To recommend remuneration based on the financial 
position and trends and practices on remuneration 
prevailing in the same industry, while at the same time 
ensuring that your Company is able to attract the best 
talent to work with;

3.6	 To carry out an evaluation of the performance of Directors 
and KMPs and provide for reward(s) directly linked to their 
effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating 
to your Company’s operations;

3.7	 To retain, motivate and promote talent awhile ensuring  
the long-term sustainability of talented employees and 
creating competitive advantage; 

3.8	 To perform such other functions as may be necessary 
or appropriate for the performance of its duties and 
mandated by the Board.

4.	 DEFINITIONS
	 In this Policy, unless the context otherwise requires, following 

are the definitions:

4.1	 “Act” means Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder, as amended from time to time.

4.2	 “Board” means the Board of Directors of your Company.

4.3	 “Committee” means Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of your Company as constituted or 
reconstituted by the Board.

4.4	 “Company” means India Shelter Finance Corporation 
Limited.

4.5	 “Directors” means Directors appointed by the Board 
including executive, non- executive and independent 
directors.

4.6	 “Other Employees” means all employees other than the 
Directors, KMPs and Senior Management Personnel.

4.7	 “Independent Director” means a director referred to in 
Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

4.8	 “KMP” or “KMPs” means the following key managerial 
personnel:

(a)	 Chief Executive Officer and / or Managing Director or 
Manager of your Company;

Annexure-1
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(b)	 Chief Financial Officer of your Company;

(c)	 Company Secretary of your Company;

(d)	 Whole-Time Director of your Company; and

(e)	 Such other officer of your Company as may be 
decided by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee.

4.9	 “Member” means a Director of your Company appointed 
as member of the Committee.

4.10	“Policy” means this Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

4.11	“Senior Management Personnel” or “Senior Management” 
means personnel of your Company who are members of 
its core management team, excluding Board of Directors 
comprising all members of management one level below 
the Executive Directors, including the functional and 
departmental heads.

5.	 INTERPRETATION
	 Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions 

used in this Policy and not defined herein but defined in the 
Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time 
shall have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein.

6.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITEE
	 The composition, frequency of meeting and charter of the 

Committee shall be governed by the Committee Charter as 
may be approved/updated by the Board, from time to time.

7.	 CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT
7.1	 The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, 

qualification, expertise and experience of the person for 
appointment as Director or KMP recommend to the Board 
of his/ her appointment. 

7.2	 A person recommended for the position of Director, KMP 
and Senior Management Personnel, if applicable, should 
possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience 
for the concerned position. The Committee has discretion 
to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience 
possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the 
concerned position.

7.3	 Appointment of Independent Directors is subject to 
compliance of provisions of Section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with Schedule IV and rules thereunder.

7.4	 Your Company shall not appoint or continue the 
employment of any person as Whole-Time Director who 
has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the 
term of the person holding this position may be extended 
beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of 
shareholders by passing a special resolution in the general 
meeting of your Company based on the explanatory 
statement annexed to the notice for such motion 
indicating the justification for extension of appointment 
beyond seventy years.

8.	 TERM / TENURE
8.1	 Managing Director / Whole-time Director
	 Your Company shall not appoint or re-appoint any person 

as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director or Executive 
Director for a term exceeding five years at a time. No re-
appointment shall be made earlier than one year before 
the expiry of term..

8.2	 Independent Director
	 Subject to the provisions of the applicable laws, an 

Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to 
five consecutive years on the Board of your Company and 
will be eligible for re-appointment for another term upto 
five consecutive years by passing of a special resolution by 
your Company and disclosure(s) of such appointment in 
the Board’s report.

	 No Independent Director shall hold office for more than 
two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director 
shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years 
of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided 
that an Independent Director shall not, during the said 
period of three years, be appointed in or be associated 
with your Company in any other capacity, either directly 
or indirectly.

9.	 EVALUATION
	 The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance 

of every Director/KMP and required Senior Management 
Personnel based on the applicable regulations, at least once in 
a year.

10.	DISQUALIFICATIONS FOR APPOINTMENT OF 
DIRECTORS

	 No person shall be appointed as a Director of your Company 
who is disqualified as per provision of Section 164 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions or rules 
thereunder.

11.	REMOVAL
	 Due to the reasons for any disqualification or for any other 

reasons, the Committee may recommend to the Board with 
reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, a KMP and 
Senior Management Personnel as per the provisions of the 
applicable laws/regulations.

12.	RETIREMENT
	 The Directors, KMPs and Senior Management Personnel shall 

retire as per the terms of their appointment and subject to 
the provisions of the applicable laws. Your Company may 
retain the Directors or KMPs or Senior Management Personnel 
even after the attainment of retirement age, for the benefit 
of your Company, and such terms as may be recommended/ 
approved by the Committee or the authority approving such 
appointment.
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13.	REMUNERATION STRUCTURE
13.1	 Remuneration
13.1.1	 General

(a)	 The remuneration/compensation/commission etc. to 
be paid to the Director and KMP will be determined by 
the Committee and shall be recommended to the Board 
for its approval. The remuneration/compensation/
commission etc. shall be paid to the Director and KMP 
subject to the provisions of the Act and such other 
approvals as may be required in this regard.

(b)	 The remuneration and commission to be paid to the 
Directors and KMPs shall be in accordance with the 
percentage/slabs/conditions laid down in the Articles of 
Association of your Company and as per the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

(c)	 Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation 
structure may be recommended by the Committee to 
the Board which should be within the slabs approved 
by the Shareholders in the case of the Directors and 
KMPs.

(d)	 Where any insurance is taken by your Company on 
behalf of its Directors and KMPs for indemnifying them 
against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance 
shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable 
to any such personnel. Provided that if such person 
is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such 
insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration.

13.1.2	 Fixed pay- The Directors and KMPs shall be eligible for 
a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the 
Board on the recommendation of the Committee.

13.1.3	 Minimum Remuneration- If, in any financial year, your 
Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, 
your Company shall pay remuneration to its Directors 
and KMPs in accordance with applicable provisions of 
the Act.

13.1.4	 Provisions for excess remuneration- If any Director, KMP 
or Senior Management Personnel draws or receives, 
directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such 
sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or 
without the prior sanction of the central government, 
wherever required, he/she shall refund such sums to 
your Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in 
trust for your Company. Your Company shall not waive 
recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted 
by the central government.

13.2	 Remuneration to Independent Director
13.2.1	 Remuneration / Commission: The remuneration/

commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and 
conditions mentioned in the Articles of Association of 
your Company and the Act.

13.2.2	 Sitting Fees: The Independent Director shall be paid the 
same amount of sitting fee as are payable for attending 
the meeting of the Board of Directors from time to time. 
Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed 
C 1,00,000/- (One Lakh) per meeting of the Board or 
Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by 
the Central Government from time to time.

13.2.3	 Commission: Commission may be paid within the 
monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the 
limit not exceeding 1% of the profits of your Company 
computed as per the applicable provisions of the Act.

13.2.4	 Stock Options: An Independent Director shall not be 
entitled to any stock option of your Company.

13.3	 Remuneration to Other Employees including Senior 
Management Personnel

13.3.1	 The remuneration of the Other Employees shall be 
determined from time to time on the basis of role and 
position of individual employee including professional 
experience, responsibility, job complexity and market 
conditions and as per the guiding principle outlined 
above and considering the industry standard and cost 
of living.

13.3.2	 In addition to basic salary they may also provide 
perquisites and retirement benefits, wherever 
applicable.

13.3.3	 A performance appraisal shall be carried out annually 
and promotions/incentives/increments shall be based 
on performance basis.

13.3.4	 Your Company shall ensure due compliance with the 
applicable statutory/regulatory requirements from 
time to time, specifically for any designated Senior 
Management Personnel.

14.	POLICY REVIEW AND AMENDMENT
14.1	The provisions of this Policy shall be subject to the 

provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder and 
applicable regulations.

14.2	The Policy shall be reviewed by the Board from time 
to time as may be necessary and may be amended or 
modified either whole or in part as and when necessary.

14.3	In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. 
issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent 
with the provisions laid down under this policy, then such 
amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. shall prevail 
upon the provisions hereunder and this policy shall stand 
amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down 
under such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc.

15.	DISCLOSURE
	 The details of this Policy and the evaluation criteria as applicable 

shall be disclosed in the Annual Report as part of the Board’s 
Report therein.

1.	 Brief outline of your Company’s CSR policy
	 India Shelter is a growing company and is committed towards social welfare of the common people. It caters to the housing needs 

of the self-employed, informal segment of customers, belonging to a middle income group, primarily from the semi-urban and rural 
markets. Your Company firmly believes in its commitment to all stakeholders - customers, employees and community. 

	 India Shelter’s key CSR initiatives were undertaken with a long-term view of delivering sustainable and enduring benefits to society at 
large. 

	 Your Company's CSR policy lays down an action plan for defining how CSR needs to be implemented and is in compliance with the 
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR programmes undertaken by your Company largely fall in the areas of improving 
awareness of communities towards education and medical aid.

2. 	 The composition of the CSR Committee as on 31 March, 2022
Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation /Nature of Directorship No. of meetings 
of the CSR 

Committee held 
during the year

No. of meetings of 
the CSR Committee 

attended during 
the year

1 Ms. Rachna Dikshit 
(DIN: 08759332)

Additional (Non-executive & Independent 
Director)

1 1

2 Mr. Sudhin Bhagwandas Choksey
(DIN: 00036085)

Nominee Director 1 1

3 Mr. Rupinder Singh 
(DIN: 09153382)1

Managing Director and Chief Executive 
Officer

1 1

4 Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar 
(DIN: 00177658)2

Additional (Non-executive & Independent 
Director)

NA NA

	 * The Board of Directors of your Company in their meeting held on 02 November, 2021, accepted the resignation of Mr. G V Ravishanker 
from the position of Nominee Director of your Company with effect from 26 October, 2021. Mr. GV Ravishankar ceased to be a member  
of the Committee on 26 October, 2021.  

1	 The Board of Directors of your Company in their meeting held on 22 November, 2021 appointed Mr. Rupinder Singh as Managing 
Director and Chief Executive Officer of your Company with effect from 23 November, 2021.

2	 The Board of Directors of your Company  in their meeting held on 31 March, 2022 appointed Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar as  an 
Additional (Independent & Non-Executive) Director your Company with effect from  31 March, 2022 and shareholder’s confirmed 
his appointment as Independent Director in their meeting held on 10 May, 2022.

	 The CSR Committee was reconstituted on November 02, 2021 & 31 March, 2022 and Mr. Rupinder Singh became member of the 
Committee on 02 November, 2021  and Mr. Sunil Ramankant Bhumralkar on 31 March, 2022.

3. 	 Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are 
disclosed on the website of your Company

	 The Composition of the CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved are available on the website of your Company at the 
following links:

•	 CSR Committee
	 https://www.indiashelter.in/downloads

•	 CSR Policy
	 https://www.indiashelter.in/downloads

•	 CSR Projects
	 https://www.indiashelter.in/csr

Annexure-2

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies  

(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]
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4. 	 Details of impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable

	 The average CSR obligation of your Company does not exceed the prescribed threshold limit in pursuance of Section 135(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The impact assessment report is not applicable to your Company.

5. 	 Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014 and the amount required for set-off for the financial year, if any: NIL

Sr. 
No. 

Financial Year Amount  available for set-off from 
the preceding financial years (in C)

Amount required to be set-off for the  
financial year, if any (in C)

1. 2021-22 NA NA

2. 2020-21 NA NA

3. 2019-20 NA NA

6. 	 Average net profit of your Company for last three financial years

	 The average profit of your Company for the last three financial year was C 7,327 Lakh.

7.	 (a)	 Two percent of average net profit of your Company as per section 135(5): C 146.53 Lakhs.

	 (b) 	 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years.: NIL

	 (c) 	 Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

	 (d) 	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c) : C 146.53 Lakhs

8. 	 Details of CSR spent or unspent during the financial year:

Total amount spent 

for the Financial Year

(in C)

Amount unspent (in C)

Total amount transferred to the 
unspent CSR Account as per section 

135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule 
VII as per the second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

1,46,54,000 - - - - -

	 ii) Total amount unspent for the FY 2021-22: NA

	 (a)	 Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NA
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

Sr. 
No.

Name 
of the 
project

Item from 
the list of 
activities 

in 
Schedule 
VII to the 

Act

Local 
Area 
(Yes/
No)

Location of the 
project

Project 
duration

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project 

(in C)

Amount 
spent 
in the 

Current 
Financial 
Year (in C)

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account for the 
project as per 
Section 135(6) 

(in C)

Mode of 
Implementation- 

direct 
(Yes/No)

Mode of implementation-
through implementing 

agency

State District Name CSR 
Registration 

number

1 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

	 (a)	 Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sr. 
No.

Name of the project Item from the list 
of activities in 

schedule VII to the 
Act

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No)

Location of the project Amount 
spent for the 
project (C in 

Lakh).

Mode of 
implementation 
- direct (Yes/No)

Mode of implementation - 
through implementing agency.

State District Name CSR Registration 
number

1 Supporting students to 

continue education in 

Vidhya  Bhawan Schools

Promoting education Yes Rajasthan Udaipur 30 No Vidhya Bhawan CSR00003180

2 Supporting women 

and children in distress 

through shelter home 

and child line

Promoting gender 

equality, empowering 

women

Yes Rajasthan Udaipur 8 No Seva Mandir CSR00000288

3 Medical Treatment of 

Needy children suffering 

from leukemia

Promoting health 

care, including 

preventive health care

Yes Haryana Different 

cities

15 No Bansi Vidya 

Memorial Trust 

(Leukaemia 

Crusaders)

CSRO0023442

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sr. 
No.

Name of the project Item from the list 
of activities in 

schedule VII to the 
Act

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No)

Location of the project Amount 
spent for the 
project (C in 

Lakh).

Mode of 
implementation 
- direct (Yes/No)

Mode of implementation - 
through implementing agency.

State District Name CSR Registration 
number

4 Construction of skill 

and innovation center 

for hiv infected and 

underprivileged women

Promoting gender 

equality, empowering 

women

Yes Karnataka Belagavi 36.36 No Mahesh 

Foundation

CSR00003827 

5 Covid vaccination Promoting health care 

including preventive 

health care

Yes Karnataka Bangalore 0.23 No United Way 

Bengaluru

CSR00000324

6 Provided sports kits to 

150 para-athletes

Promote rural sports, 

nationally recognised 

sports, Paralympic 

sports and Olympic 

sports

Yes Haryana Different 

cities

2.25 No The Wheeling 

Happiness

CSR00024121

7 PM Cares Fund Contribution to the 

Prime Minister’s 

National Relief Fund

- - - 30 No PM Cares Fund

8 Clean Ganga Fund Ensuring 

environmental 

sustainability,

- - - 19.71 No Clean Ganga 

Fund 

9 Swachh Bharat Kosh Eradicating hunger, 

poverty, malnutrition 

and sanitation

- - - 5 No Swachh Bharat 

Kosh

146.54

(c)	 Amount spent in administrative overheads: Nil

(d)	 Amount spent on impact assessment, if applicable: Nil

(e)	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e):  C 146.54 Lakhs

(f)	 Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Amount 
(C In Lakhs)

(i) Two percent of the average net profit of your Company as per Section 135(5) 146.53 

(ii) Total amount spent for the financial year 146.54

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NIL

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any NIL

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] -

9.	 (a)	 Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sr. 
No.

Preceding
financial
year

Amount
transferred to
unspent CSR

Account under section 
135 (6) (in H)

Amount spent in 
the reporting
financial year

(in H)

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as 

per section 135(6), if any.

Amount remaining 
to be spent in

succeeding financial 
years  
(in H)

Name of 
the Fund

Amount 
(in H)

Date of 
transfer

- - - - - - - -
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(b) 	 Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): NIL

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

Sr. 
No.

Project 
ID

Name of the 
project

Financial 
year in 

which the 
project was 
commenced

Project 
duration

Total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 
project 

(in Lakh)

Amount 
spent on the 
project in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year (in Lakh)

Cumulative 
amount spent 

at the end 
of reporting 

Financial Year 
(in Lakh)

Status of the project 
completed/ongoing

1 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

10.	 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: (asset-wise details)
(a)	 Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): 09 March, 2022 

(b)	 Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset:  C 36.36 Lakh

(c)	 Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc:  Mahesh 
Foundation, 792, Siddeshwar Nagar Kanabargi, Belagavi

(d)	 Provide details of the capital asset(s), created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset): Mahesh 
Foundation’s Skill and Innovation Center 

11.	Specify the reason(s), if your Company has failed to spend 2% of the average net profit as per Section 
135(5).

	 Not applicable.

Sd/-	 Sd/-     
Ms. Rachna Dikshit	 Rupinder Singh
Chairman of the CSR Committee 	 MD & CEO
DIN: 08759332	 DIN: 09153382

1.	 Background 
	 Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 mandates the 

following companies to formulate and adopt a Corporate 

Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy and draw out a framework for 

CSR:

a)	 Net worth of C 500 Crore or more; or

b)	 Turnover of C 1000 Crore or more; or

c)	 Net profit of C 5 Crore or more

	 In accordance with the said mandate, since India Shelter 

qualifies on the criteria mentioned, it is required to formulate 

and adopt CSR Policy.

	 The objective of this Policy is to provide an overall CSR 

framework, which shall at all relevant times be closely aligned 

with the requirements of relevant provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013.

2.	 Overview
	 India Shelter proposes to make a positive difference to society. 

Your Company firmly believes that it has commitment to all 

its stakeholders - customers, employees and the community 

in which it operates and it can fulfil this commitment only 

by sustainable and inclusive growth. Your Company aims to 

improve quality of life through its positive intervention in the 

community.

	 India Shelter’s key CSR initiatives will be undertaken with a 

sustainable long-term view to benefit the society at large.

3.	 CSR Governance 
	 At India Shelter, the Board of Directors of your Company has 

established a CSR Committee which has been entrusted 

with formulating a CSR Policy and transparent monitoring 

mechanism for implementation of the CSR projects or 

programs or activities undertaken by your Company. The 

Committee shall also annually monitor the Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy of your Company.

4.	 Policy 
	 The scope of activities which, your Company will undertake 

towards fulfilment of its CSR shall be in line with Schedule VII of 

the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time, and 

any other applicable laws, regulations etc. 

	 Your Company shall give preference to the local area and/or 

areas in the vicinity, for spending the amount earmarked for 

CSR activities. The CSR projects or programs or activities that 

benefit only the employees of your Company and their families 

shall not be considered as CSR. 

5.	 Collaboration for CSR 	
	 The CSR Committee after seeking approval from the Board of 

Directors of your Company may undertake its CSR activities 

either directly or through a registered trust or a registered 

society or a company established by your Company or its 

holding or subsidiary or associate company under section 8 of 

the Companies Act, 2013. Further, your Company may choose 

to collaborate with other companies for undertaking projects 

or programs or CSR activities in such a manner that the CSR 

Committees of respective companies are in a position to report 

separately on such projects or programs in accordance with 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 

and amendments thereto.

6.	  CSR Budget	

	 The annual budget for India Shelter’s CSR initiative shall be 

approved by the CSR Committee and Board of Directors of your 

Company. 

7. 	 CSR Expenditure: 	
	 Your Company shall endeavour to spend, in every financial year, 

at least 2% of the average net profits made during the three 

immediately preceding financial years or as per regulatory 

guidelines, in pursuance of its CSR Policy and if your Company 

fails to spend such amount, the Board shall, in its report specify 

the reasons for not spending the amount, and, unless the 

unspent amount relates to any ongoing project referred in 

Companies Act, 2013, transfer such unspent amount to a Fund 

specified in Schedule VII, within a period of six months of the 

expiry of the financial year.

	 CSR expenditure shall include all expenditure relating to CSR 

activities approved by the Board on the recommendation of 

its CSR Committee, but does not include any expenditure on 

an item not in conformity or not in line with activities which 

fall within the areas or subjects, specified in Schedule VII of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

	 Any surplus arising out of the CSR activities shall not form part 

of the business profit of a company and shall be ploughed back 

into the same project or shall be transferred to the Unspent 

CSR Account and spent in pursuance of CSR policy and annual 

action plan of your Company or transfer such surplus amount 

to a Fund specified in Schedule VII, within a period of six 

months of the expiry of the financial year.

Annexure-3

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

74 | India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited  Annual Report 2021-22 | 75

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements



	 Where a company spends an amount in excess of requirement 

provided under sub-section (5) of section 135 , such excess 

amount may be set off against the requirement to spend under 

sub-section (5) of section 135 up to immediate succeeding 

three financial years subject to the conditions that –

(i)	 the excess amount available for set off shall not include 

the surplus arising out of the CSR activities, if any, in 

pursuance of sub-rule (2) of this rule. 

(ii)	 the Board of your Company shall pass a resolution to that 

effect

	 The CSR projects or programs or activities undertaken only in 

India shall qualify as CSR Expenditure.

	 The CSR spending can be either revenue expenditure or capital 

expenditure or both. 

	 (Note: “Average Net Profit” shall be calculated in accordance 

with the provisions of section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013)

8.	  Capacity Building: 	
	 If your Company chooses to undertake CSR activities directly, it 

may resort to capacity building, which shall be the expenditure 

on training the CSR staff regarding the CSR project. However, 

as mandated by the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

such expenditure including expenditure on administrative 

overhead shall not exceed 5% of the total CSR expenditure of 

your Company in one financial year or such limits as may be 

prescribed under the legislation from time to time.

9.	  CSR Reporting: 	
	 The CSR Committee shall forward a report to the Board on an 

annual basis containing following particulars:

•	 The list of CSR projects or programmes that are approved to 

be undertaken in areas or subjects specified in Schedule VII 

of the Companies Act, 2013; 

•	 The manner of execution of such projects or programmes as 

specified in sub-rule (1) of Rule 4; 

•	 The modalities of utilization of funds and implementation 

schedules for the projects or programmes; 

•	 Monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or 

programmes; and 

•	 Details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects 

undertaken by your Company 

•	 Compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of your Company.

	 The Board may alter such plan at any time during the financial 

year, as per the recommendation of its CSR Committee.

	 The Board’s Report of a company pertaining to any financial year 

shall include an annual report on CSR containing particulars as 

specified in the Companies Act, 2013.

10. 	Monitoring and Feedback 	
	 The CSR Committee shall meet as and when the need arises 

to review and guide the CSR activities of your Company. They 

shall meet inter alia to monitor the progress of CSR programs, 

CSR spending, and review if any changes are required.

	 Your Company will incorporate the details of CSR activities, 

including a physical and financial process in the annual report 

of your Company. The minutes of the CSR Committee shall be 

presented to the Board for its review and scrutiny.

	 Your Company may communicate its CSR efforts to all its 

employees and external stakeholders through emails, its own 

website, and other appropriate dissemination channels.

	 The Board of Directors of your Company shall mandatorily 

disclose the composition of the CSR Committee, and CSR 

Policy and Projects approved by the Board on their website, if 

any, for public access.

	 Following activities may be undertaken for monitoring of CSR:

•	 Appropriate documentation of the CSR Policy, annual CSR 

activities, executing partners, and expenditure entailed will 

be undertaken on a regular basis and the same may be 

available in the public domain

•	 In order to closely monitor and manage the field action 

projects, the Audit team at the Corporate Office may conduct 

periodic field visits, impact studies and social audits on an 

annual basis, through itself or independent professional 

third party institutions, especially on the strategic and high 

value programs.

•	 CSR initiatives will also be reported in its Annual Report

1.	 Introduction
	 India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited herein after referred as or ‘India Shelter’ is a housing finance company registered with the 

National Housing Bank (NHB). Your Company extends housing loans and loans against property. 

	 Financial services business is exposed to various types of risks which, if not managed properly, could lead to a disruption in business and 
impact the attainment of main objectives of the organization. Risk management works towards identifying and managing threats that 
could adversely impact the organization. This involves reviewing operations, processes and procedures of the organization, identifying 
potential threats and likelihood of their occurrence and taking appropriate actions to address the most likely threats. 

	 Objectives of the Risk Management Policy:

•	 Establish methodologies for identification, measurement and management of Risk

•	 To build profitable and sustainable business with conservative risk management approach

•	 To have risk management as an integral part of the organization’s business strategy. 

•	 To undertake business activities that are well understood and within acceptable risk appetite. 

•	 To manage the risks proactively across the organization.

•	 To adopt best risk management practices leading to shareholder value creation and increased stakeholder confidence. 

•	 To develop a strong risk culture across the organization.

2. 	 Target audience
	 The members of the Board, ERMC, ALCO, Risk Department, HOD and Auditors of your Company shall be the primary audience for this 

document. The document shall not be circulated beyond mentioned individuals and other such individuals / institutions as may be 
reviewed by MD & CEO / CFO and Risk Head.

3. 	 Applicability and validity of the policy
•	 There shall be an annual review of the Policy. 

•	 India Shelter with the approval of the Board of Directors, can at any time modify or amend, either the whole or any part of this Policy. 

•	 Operational changes to the policy can be done with approval of MD and CEO

•	 Statutory changes will be read mutatis mutandis in the policy document even if not amended

•	 Any clause or reference in the policy document which is contrary to or on violation of statutory or regulatory shall be deemed to be 
severed from the policy.

4. 	 Regulatory and statutory reference
•	 RBI vide its Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated 

17 February, 2021 and NHB vide its circular no. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016, 09 February 2017, had instructed HFCs to adopt 
guidelines on corporate governance. 

•	 Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires Audit Committee to evaluate Internal Finance Controls and Risk Management 
Systems and report to the board and 

•	 Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 requires Companies to include in their Board report a statement indicating development 
and implementation of a Risk Management Policy for your Company including identification therein of risks, if any, which in the 
opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of your Company for companies required to appoint independent directors and 
have an audit committee.

5. 	 Key elements of Enterprise Risk Management framework
	 The key elements of your Company’s Enterprise Risk Framework include:

•	 Risk Strategy and Appetite: Long-term plan of how risk management effectively supports the achievement of the organisation’s goals

Annexure-4

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

76 | India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited  Annual Report 2021-22 | 77

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements



• Risk Governance: This structure within which responsibility and accountability for risk management and oversight is defined, managed 
and communicated throughout an organisation

• Risk culture: Values and behaviors of the entity that shape risk decisions

• Risk assessment and Measurement: Qualitative and quantitative approaches, processes, tools and systems to identify, assess, and 
measure risks

• Risk management and Monitoring: Management’s response to manage, mitigate, or accept risk and create value through the use of 
risk and control information to improve business performance across the enterprise 

• Risk reporting and Insights: Provide insight into the strengths and weaknesses of risk management activity and enhance the 
transparency of risks that could have an impact on achievement of objectives.

• Data and technology: Includes development and deployment of risk management tools, software, database, technology architecture, 
and systems that support risk management activities.

6.  Risk appetite
 The risk appetite is the amount of risk, on a broad level, that your Company is willing to take on in pursuit of value. It is the total impact 

of risk that your Company is prepared to accept in the pursuit of its strategic objectives. It shall be documented in a formal risk appetite 
statement that shall be recommended by the Enterprise Risk Management Committee and approved by the Board along with the 
Policy. The risk appetite statement should be defined by the following key characteristics:

• Sets clear strategic direction and tolerances around controls;

• Reflective of strategy, including organizational objectives, business plans and stakeholder expectations;

• Reflective of all key aspects of the business;

• Considers the skills, resources and technology required to manage and monitor risk exposures in the context of the risk appetite;

• Inclusive of a tolerance of loss or negative events that can be reasonably quantified;

• Periodically (annually) reviewed and reconsidered with reference to evolving industry and market conditions

 The governance and reporting framework shall ensure that day-to-day decisions are made in line with the organization’s risk appetite. 
Data shall be captured to measure performance against the risk appetite statement of the organization. Standard risk and incident 
reporting methodologies should be used to monitor breaches of risk appetite and tolerance levels. 

 The detailed Risk Appetite Framework,laid down for your Company, has been appended to this policy document in Annexure 1.

7.  Governance Structure
 The governance structure in place to approve, modify and ensure effective operation of the Enterprise Risk Management framework is 

depicted in the organization chart below. 

A minimum of 
three directors with 
independent directors 
forming a majority

Board of Directors

Asset Liability Committee 

Risk management 
Department 

Enterprise Risk Management 
Department (RMD)

Audit CommitteeEnterprise Risk Management 
Committee

• Independent Directors
• MD
• Compliance Officer

• MD
• CFO
• Risk Head

 In order to achieve the objectives of the policy, certain key roles and responsibilities are defined and described for the following:

• Leadership and Governance (setting policy and principles)

• Implementation (achieving policy objectives)

• Independent Review (checking compliance)

8.1 Leadership and Governance
8.1.1 The Board
 The Board of Directors oversee your Company’s risk management processes and controls, while the management is charged with 

the day-to-day management of your Company’s risks. The Board:

• Approves the strategic plans and objectives for Risk Management framework for your Company which is recommended by 
ERMC and periodically (annual) reviews the Risk Management framework;

• Establish a management structure capable of implementing your Company’s Risk Management framework;

• Develops policies and procedures around risk, which are consistent with the organization’s strategy and risk appetite;

• Takes steps to foster risk awareness

• Encourages an organizational culture of risk adjusting awareness

• Take note and review the Audit Committee and Enterprise Risk Management Committee minutes

• Any other matter requiring the Board’s approval

8.1.2 Enterprise Risk Management Committee (ERMC)
 The Enterprise Risk Management Committee will act within the ambit of duties assigned to it by the Board. The Committee will 

be presented with detailed reviews of risk exposures across your Company. Its functions will include the following:

• Reviews and approves compliance with risk policies, risk methodologies and tools, including assessments, reporting and loss 
event databases and monitors breaches / triggers of risk tolerance limits and recommendation of corrective action to mitigate 
the effects of risk whenever they arise above the level defined by the committee

• Reviews reports of significant issues prepared by internal risk oversight functional groups, including risk exposure related to 
specific issues, concentrations and limits excesses 

• Nurtures a healthy and independent risk management function in your Company Inculcates risk culture within the organization   

• Establishment of  an Enterprise Risk Management framework and policy for your Company and recommendation of the same 
to the Board of Directors for approval;

• Assessment of reputational, governance, business and strategic implications of risks identified and ensuring that these 
are reported and manage potential risks which may arise from regulatory changes or changes in the economic/political 
environment;

8.1.3 Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
 The work area of ALCO will be decided based on the power and authority delegated by Board of Directors, more particularly in 

ALCO policy or Committee Charter.

8.1.4  Audit Committee
 Audit Committee shall evaluate the internal financial controls and risk management systems on a quarterly basis. The risk 

management responsibility for the Audit Committee will mainly be towards operational risk, as follows:  

• Identifying and presenting operational risks in the course of regular internal audits with recommendations for corrective actions. 

• Focusing the internal audit work for significant risks and auditing the risk management processes across the organization

8.2 Implementation
8.2.1 Risk Management Department (RMD)
 The Risk Management Department shall be headed by the Head – RMD (who may report to the Managing Director) and will have 

responsibilities towards the implementation of the ERM framework as specified in this policy. The responsibilities of the RMD will 
include the following:

• Assemble information to build an overall risk profile of your Company, understanding and communicating these risks, and 
analyzing the information, changes/trends in the risk profile - Key information will include risk indicators, loss event data and 
self-assessment results and communicating the results to the Risk Management Committee or other interested parties. 
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•	 Review of your Company’s risk limitation and adjust your Company’s risk exposure using appropriate strategies, in light of your 
Company’s overall risk appetite;

•	 Assist in development of and manage processes to identify and evaluate businesses areas using risk control self-assessments;

•	 Monitoring risk exposure to losses and internal control lapses, including regular reporting of pertinent information to the 
Enterprise Risk Management Committee;

•	 Annual review of risk control self-assessment process, key risk indicators, loss event database and risk reporting processes;

•	 Review and monitor that strategies and actions previously approved by the Risk Management Committee are being properly 
executed on an ongoing basis;

8.2.2 	Business/Function Heads
	 Business/function heads represent the heads of units/departments and are responsible for risk taking, accepting, implementing 

and monitoring related controls and mitigants. 

	 The responsibilities of the business/function heads will include the following:

•	 Taking ownership of the risks faced in their businesses/functions;

•	 Understanding the profile of risk facing the business/function and monitoring change in the business and risk profile. Business/
function heads may be expected to present their risk profiles and action plans to the RMC and developing strategies to mitigate 
them in consultation with RMD

•	 Designing, collecting, reporting and capturing data pertaining to risk indicators and related reports. Resulting information will 
be distributed to the respective departments/units and RMD.

•	 Identification of loss events within the business/function and regular reporting of these events with complete details to the 
RMD, including root cause analysis and control evaluation;

•	 Ensuring implementation of the risk policies, processes, risk tools and other structures developed by the RMD within the 
respective business/function;

•	 Continuously identifying risks and assessing risks in terms of likelihood and impact and assessing the existing controls and 
management techniques in terms of their ability to manage the identified risks;

•	 Promptly alerting the executive management (through the RMD department) to any matter that could potentially lead to your 
Company incurring material, unexpected damage or risk incidents;

8.2.3 	Finance Department
	 The Finance Department is responsible for facilitating the process of capture of internal loss data. The responsibilities of the 

Finance Department in this regard are as follows:

•	 Monitoring of accounting records in order to ensure that losses are appropriately captured in the Accounts created for this 
purpose;

•	 Generation of periodic reports in order to facilitate analysis of loss events across each business/function and according to each 
loss type and annual review of identified loss events in order to assess the need to open new loss accounts.

9 	 Key risks
	 Risks and uncertainties form an integral part of India Shelter’s business which by nature entails taking risks. Each transaction that India 

Shelter undertakes changes its risk profile. The table below summarizes the key risks India Shelter needs to address.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Risk Management

Credit Risk

Default Risk by 
counterparty

Operational Risk

System

External Events

People

Process

Market Risk

Interest Rate

Liquidity

Strategic Risk

External Risks

Emerging Risks

Other Risks

Legal

Compliance

Reputation

	 Credit Risk
	 Credit Risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of the counter-party to meet its credit obligations in accordance with the agreed contract 

terms. It is the result of either inability or unwillingness of a borrower or counter-party to meet commitments in relation to lending or 
any other financial transactions. 

	 The losses could take the form of outright default or alternatively, losses from changes in portfolio value arising from actual or perceived 
deterioration in credit quality that is short of default. The objective of credit risk management is to minimize the risk and maximize India 
Shelter is risk adjusted rate of return by assuming and maintaining credit exposure within the acceptable parameters.

	 Operational Risk
	 Operational Risk is inherent in all product, activities, processes and systems of India Shelter. It is the risk of loss arising from inadequate 

or failed internal processes, people and systems. Risk education for familiarizing the complex operations at all levels of staff can reduce 
operational risk. Operational risk events are associated with weak links in the internal control procedures. Operational Risk involves 
breakdown in internal controls and corporate governance leading to error, fraud, performance failure, compromise on the interest of 
PFS resulting in financial loss.  

	 Putting in place proper corporate governance practices by itself would serve as an effective risk management tool. India Shelter shall 
strive to promote a shared understanding of operational risk within the organization, especially since operational risk is often intertwined 
with market or credit risk and it is difficult to isolate.

	 Market Risk
	 Market Risk may be defined as the possibility of loss to India Shelter caused by the changes in the market variables. It is the risk that the 

value of on/off-Balance Sheet positions will be adversely affected by movements in equity and interest rate markets, currency exchange 
rates and commodity prices. Market risk is the risk to India Shelter’s earnings and capital due to changes in the market level of interest 
rates or prices of securities, foreign exchange and equities, as well as the volatilities, of those prices. Market Risk consists of:

a)	 Liquidity Risk 

b)	 Interest Rate Risk 

c)	 Foreign Exchange Risk 

	 Maintaining an optimal Balance Sheet structure and cash flow patterns shall be the keystone of the Market Risk management strategy. 
A detailed description about managing market risks is available in the ALM policy. 

	 Liquidity Risk 
	 Liquidity risk arises where your Company is unable to meet its obligations as and when they arise. Liquidity risk will be measured at a 

structural level and a dynamic short term level.

	 India Shelter, on virtue of being a highly capitalized company with its capability to raise long term funds has never faced a situation of 
being probable Out of Money. However, certain effective measures such as limiting the short term funds in overall fund mix, keeping 
sufficient liquidity in hand at all times should be taken by your Company. Further the liquidity risk should be monitored on quarterly 
basis by the Enterprise Risk Management Committee.    

	 Interest Rate Risk
	 Interest rate risk management and reporting helps identify potential risks to earnings and capital resulting from adverse fluctuations in 

market interest rates. 

	 Interest Rate Risk arises from the inability of transmit the changes to the borrowers when the same has been received from the lenders. 
This is exacerbated in case a company has a mis-match in interest rate type for its loans. The Interest Rate Risk along with the Liquidity 
Risk should be monitored by the Enterprise Risk Management Committee.

	 Foreign Exchange Risk
	 Foreign exchange risk is a financial risk that exists when a financial transaction is denominated in a currency other than the domestic 

currency of your Company. The Foreign exchange risk arises when there is a risk of an un favourable change in Exchange rate between 
the domestic currency and the denominated currency before the date when the transaction is completed.

	 Strategic Risk
	 Risks that derive from the decisions that the management takes about the products or services that the organization provides. It includes 

risks associated with developing and marketing those products or services, economic risks affecting product sales and costs, and risks 
arising from changes in the technological environment which impact on sales and production.  

	 Strategic Risk needs to be assessed both in qualitative and quantitative terms. Assessment of an incidence or a potential risk aims at 
quantifying the risk in financial terms to the extent possible.  
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	 Reputation Risk 
	 India Shelter is also exposed to Reputation Risk arising from failures in governance, business strategy and process, regulatory-compliance 

and legal risk. These risks are generally covered under Operational risks. Reputational risk is the risk of potential damage to your Company 
due to deterioration of its reputation. The reputation of your Company may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with laws, regulations, 
rules, reporting requirements, standards and codes of conduct applicable to its activities, rather than compliance with the internal limits 
or procedures. 

	 Proactive measures to minimize the risk of losing reputation could be a sound risk management framework, good corporate governance, 
high level ethics and integrity, rigorous anti money laundering procedures, good business practices and reporting of all breaches which 
lead to reputational risk to the attention of senior management and the Board.

	 Compliance Risk
	 Compliance risk is the risk arising from non-adherence to prescribed law in force, regulations, policies, procedures and guidelines which 

may give rise to regulatory actions, litigations, deficiency in product or services depending on the level of non-adherence. The corporate 
governance function is primarily designed to avoid the incurrence of compliance regulatory-legal risk.

	 Legal Risk
	 The possibility of incurring losses or negative contingencies as a result of flaws in contracts or transactions that may affect the institution’s 

legal position and/or ability to function; legal risks are a direct result of human error, fraud, negligence or carelessness in the design, 
formalization, application or implementation of contracts or transactions. Legal risk is also caused by non-compliance with current laws 
or regulations.

	 Legal risk can primarily be caused by:

•	 A fraudulent transaction 

•	 A claim including a defense to a claim or a counterclaim being made or some other event occurring which results in a liability for your 
Company or other loss 

•	 Failing to take appropriate measures to protect your Company’s interests including the assets owned by your Company; or 

•	 Change in law which results in any of the transactions becoming illegal or bad in law or results on any of the above

	 Roles and Responsibilities
	 A comprehensive list of risks matrix is provided herewith:

Type of risk Risk ownership Constitution Key roles and responsibilities

Credit Risk Credit Committee/
Board

Members and special 
invitees if any

•	 Frame credit policy, set prudential limits

•	 Implementing and monitoring of Risk Management 
Framework

•	 Periodic review of the effectiveness of the Risk Management 
Plan and activities

•	 Monitor portfolio risk

Market Risk

•	 Interest rate 
Risk

•	 Liquidity Risk

• 	 Foreign 
Exchange Risk

ALCO/Board •	 CEO

•	 Risk Head

•	 Company Secretary

•	 Compliance Officer

•	 Overall responsibility to monitor and manage enterprise-wide 
risk

•	 Approval and periodic evaluation of ALCO Policy

• 	 Provide directions for formulation of policies

Operational Risk

•	 People

•	 Process

•	 System

• 	 External Events

Board/Risk 
Management 
Department and 
Functional Heads

Risk Head will be 
supervising the 
department.

Business Heads

•	 To ensure compliance with internal policies on risk 
management and regulatory guidelines issued by RBI / NHB

•	 To ensure that Risks are identified and steps to mitigate are 
laid down and adhered to

•	 Initiate action when portfolio triggers are breached

• 	 MIS/Reporting on a regular basis

Type of risk Risk ownership Constitution Key roles and responsibilities

Strategic 
Risk (Includes 
Emerging & 
External Risks)

MD & CEO MD & CEO, Business 
Head of various 
products

•	 Compare the risk versus expected ROI. All business strategy 
initiation should have risk Vs return assessment at the launch 
of new initiatives.

•	 Undertake data analytics for key decisions based on the 
defined critical parameters 

•	 Periodic Review of the effectiveness of the strategies

• 	 For every Strategic Business initiative prepare alternate plans.

Reputational 
Risk

Compliance Dept./ 
Customer Service/ 
Functional Heads

NA •	 All media communications would be handled by Company’s 
Management team. 

•	 Timely response to statutory/regulatory queries/requirements. 

•	 Respond to the customers’ queries and needs within the 
committed turn-around time. 

• 	 Be vigilant to customer’s/stakeholder’s/media feedback 
(including social media) and take quick remedial actions

Compliance Risk Compliance 
Department

NA •	 Guidance to business & support functions on all compliance 
laws, rules & standards

•	 Compliance function shall guide your Company for seeking 
clarifications/interpretation of various regulatory statutory 
guidelines

•	 Analysis and review of new products, policies and processes 
from a compliance perspective

• 	 Co-ordination of the regulatory/statutory inspections and 
correspondence with the authorities

Legal Risk Legal Department NA •	 Ensure that India Shelter does not enter into a transaction, 
which does not allocate rights and obligations and associated 
risks in the manner intended

•	 Prevent entering into a transaction which is or may be 
determined to be void or unenforceable in whole or with 
respect to a material part 

•	 Ensure that the basis of representations or investigations used 
to make investment decision are not misleading or false or 
which fail to disclose material facts or circumstances

• 	 Ensuring that India Shelter does not misunderstand the effect 
of one or more transactions.

10 	Risk Management
	 Your Company may lay down the guidelines regarding the response to the various risks faced by the business.  It may accordingly form 

the mitigation strategies which would be reviewed periodically whenever deemed fit. 

10.1	 Risk Identification and Assessment Process
•	 Risks are adverse consequences of events or changed conditions 

•	 Their occurrence may be identified by the happening of trigger events 

•	 Their occurrence is uncertain and may have different extents of likelihood

10.2	 Risk prioritization and exposure process 
	 In this process, the consequences of the risk occurrences may be quantified to the maximum extent possible, using quantitative, 

semi-quantitative or qualitative techniques. Process of risk quantification for your Company has to be qualitative, supported by 
quantitative impact analysis. It would consider the actual cost impacts (like claims by customer, regulatory penalties, and financial 
loss) as well as opportunity costs (like loss in realization of revenue, customer dissatisfaction) may be captured to arrive at the total 
cost impact of materialization of the risk.
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10.3 	 Risk Management Strategy 
	 This involves identifying relevant strategies or tools to effectively mitigate possible risk events. Based on the Risk Appetite/Risk 

Tolerance level determined and reviewed from time to time, the India Shelter would formulate its Risk Management Strategy. The 
strategy will broadly entail choosing among the various options for risk mitigation for each identified risk. The risk mitigation can 
be planned using the following key strategies: 

• 	 Risk Avoidance: By not performing an activity that could carry risk. Avoidance may seem the answer to all risks, but avoiding risks 
also means losing out on the potential gain that accepting (retaining) the risk may have allowed. 

• 	 Risk Transfer: Mitigation by having another party to accept the risk, either partial or total, typically by contract or by hedging.  

• 	 Risk Reduction: Employing methods/solutions that reduce the severity of the loss 

•	 Risk Retention: Accepting the loss when it occurs. Risk retention is a viable strategy for small risks where the cost of insuring 
against the risk would be greater over time than the total losses sustained. All risks that are not avoided or transferred.  

	 As part of risk management strategy, your Company may enter into derivative transactions (Including OTC). The purpose of such 
transactions should be to hedge the identified exposure like interest rate risk or currency risk and not to speculate. Further, for 
each product type or identified risk, prior approval of ALCO is mandatory. 

	 ALCO to ensure that periodic review of such transactions (at least quarterly) is undertaken by the committee to have the regular 
monitoring in place. Further, such transactions to be subject to annual audit review.  

10.4 	 Risk Communication, Reporting and Monitoring 
	 Risk communication, reporting and monitoring, is a critical phase in the ERM framework. The framework will end as a project 

rather than a process if the risks are not monitored, communicated and reported on a constant basis. 

•	 Risk communication helps develop an appropriate risk culture in the organization. The risk monitoring and reporting is used 
as a management decision support system enabling them to perceive the overall risks of the organization and analyze the 
progress made on the same 

•	 The risk mitigation strategy may be communicated to concerned stakeholders. Risk management policies framed should be 
rolled out to the employees wherever applicable.  

	 As a part of the ERM framework, risk registers are developed which facilitates valuation of risk reward relationship for various 
business units. It is a tool for monitoring of ERM key risks which are Credit, Operational and Market risk respectively along with 
business performance.

	 In addition to monitoring loss events, your Company shall build a process for reporting and monitoring of results derived from 
the ERM tools. The process would define the frequency, mode and level of reporting to senior management as well as your 
Company’s units depending on factors such as level and quantum of risk and changes in environment. Risk reports would 
especially reflect key risk areas and risk sensitive units so as to motivate units to take timely corrective action. Monitoring should 
be ideally integrated with your Company’s general activities and review system of internal and external reports such as Audit and 
MIS.

	 Ongoing monitoring of actual performance v/s policy caps, early warning Indicators, key takeaways from RMC and ALCO, 
customer/site/competition visits etc. are reviewed monthly, exceptions, if any, are reported in related committee, and acted upon 
as advised by the committee:

Type of risk Reporting

ERM ERMC

Credit risk ERMC

Market Risk ALCO

Operational Risk ACB as part of audit reports

	 Status update on implementation of previous committee decisions is reported in subsequent committee meeting.

	 Your Company has a Compliance Department that shall independently monitor regulatory developments and ensure that a 
mechanism for identification and implementation of regulatory requirements is in place. Implementation of the latest regulatory 
requirements shall be tested by the Internal Audit Department on the basis of inputs received from the Compliance Department. 
This serves to address the regulatory risks faced by the organization.

	 The Compliance department prepares and submits periodical returns on fraud cases to the NHB and to the Board. The fraud cases 
reported as per the manner prescribed by the NHB guidelines.

10.4.1	 Key Risk Indicators
	 As mentioned in the definition of operational risk, operational losses are caused by four main factors viz. people, processes, 

systems or external factors.

	 KRIs are metrics/measures that are derived from these factors to indicate an early warning of or to monitor increasing risk or 
control failures in an activity. The key utility of KRIs is that one can set limits against the trends and monitor the same to work 
towards increasing controls where needed and mitigate risks. Tolerance levels should be defined while setting KRIs. In addition, 
these should be defined considering the risk appetite of your Company, risk and opportunity identification, risk treatment and 
risk reporting. They should be continuously monitored and enhanced risk should be reported by the Risk Department to the 
Chief Risk Officer and the Business/Function Head. 

10.4.2	 Risk Control Self-Assessment (RCSAs)
	 RCSA is a process of regular, transparent and subjective assessment of your Company’s operational risk and controls undertaken 

by the businesses/functions. This is facilitated by the RM SPOC assigned to the respective business/function. This will help in 
identifying control gaps and consequent actions proposed to remediate the gaps. The businesses/functions will be able to 
assess the operational risks inherent in their activities and analyze the strengths or weaknesses of controls in place.

	 Essentially RCSA can be used towards aspects such as identification and mitigation of operational risks, reporting of control 
deficiencies, monitoring of changes in control environment and assessment of operational risk profile. The focus of RCSA process 
is to ensure that all operational risks are understood and are being effectively monitored and controlled to improve business and 
operational efficiency.

11	 Loss Event Database
	 An important component of the Enterprise Risk Management framework of your Company is the maintenance of an active database 

containing details of internal and external loss events. This data is useful for determining the frequency and severity of risk events as well 
as for calculating expected/unexpected losses. The benefits of maintaining such a database are as follows:

• 	 Creating awareness about the nature and extent of the risk events occurring across your Company and the amount of loss incurred 
as a result of such events;

• 	 Capturing information related to risk events in order to refine the other components of the Enterprise Risk Management framework 
such as Risk Control Self-Assessment and Key Risk Indicators (KRIs);

• 	 Measuring risk exposure more accurately and identifying trends across your Company

12	 Change Management
	 In order to ensure that the Enterprise Risk Management framework is contemporary and effective in achieving the risk management 

objectives of your Company, a structured change management approach shall be followed. This will ensure a structured approach to 
making the Risk Management framework responsive to changes in the internal and external environment of your Company. 

	 A framework shall be put in place to ensure that the change management of the framework occurs in a structured manner. The four 
phases in the structured approach to change management shall be as follows:

•	 Assessment and identification: Periodic (annual) review of the various components of the enterprise risk management framework 
with respect to the internal and external environment of your Company in order to ensure that the same are contemporary and 
effective in achieving the objectives of risk management. 

•	 Planning and Implementation: If an assessment is made that changes are required to one/more of the components of the Enterprise 
Risk Management framework, a detailed plan should be put in place including identification of relevant stakeholders responsible for 
driving the change, objectives to be achieved and finalization of an implementation plan. Implementation of such changes shall be 
subject to oversight of the Risk Management Committee. 

•	 Review: The change management process pertaining to the Enterprise Risk Management framework shall be subject to the constant 
review of the Risk Management Committee which shall monitor implementation of the same and alignment with the objectives 
defined at the planning stage. The changes made to the framework components shall be recommended for approval of the Board by 
the Risk Management Committee. Final approval of the changes made shall be approved by the Board.
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Introduction
Your Company recognizes that the managed acceptance of risk lies at the heart of the business. As a result, effective risk management 

capabilities represent a key source of competitive advantage for your Company. By managed acceptance of risk, your Company seeks to 

generate shareholder value by selectively taking exposure to risks for which it is well compensated. Your Company will additionally accept 

exposure to risks for which it is not directly compensated, where these are an inevitable by-product of its business activities. These risks will 

be reduced to the extent it is cost-effective to do so. 

In general therefore, your Company’s control procedures and systems are designed to manage enterprise, credit, liquidity, market and 

operational risks, rather than eliminate them. However, at certain times, there may also exist some risks for which your Company has no 

tolerance and which are actively avoided. The identification and exploitation of specific business opportunities, including the evaluation of 

the risk-versus-reward characteristics of such opportunities, is the remit of the individual businesses. This Risk Appetite Statement is meant to 

provide a framework to guide the businesses in their risk acceptance and management activities in order to ensure that the risks accepted are 

within the overall tolerance levels of your Company. The limit structures and tolerances in respect of specific risk types are separately defined 

in line with the broad guidance provided by this statement.

Financial Risk Appetite Statement
Your Company will limit its exposure to adverse outcomes by ensuring that risk-taking takes place within appropriate boundaries. This 

ensures that earnings and growth are achieved in a responsible manner and not merely by assuming disproportionate downside exposure. 

In doing so, your Company protects the interests of its key stakeholders. In order to provide objective and quantifiable means to ensure that 

the various businesses and your Company as a whole have accepted risks that are within the overall tolerance levels of your Company, certain 

objective measures of enterprise risk have been identified, namely:

Capital
•	 Tier-1 capital adequacy ratio should not fall below 12% of owned funds

•	 Tier-2 capital adequacy ratio should not exceed Tier-1 capital

•	 Overall capital adequacy ratio should not fall below 15% of owned funds

Earnings volatility
•	 The probability of negative earnings for one year should be less than 5%. (Earnings at risk)

Liquidity and Interest rate risk
Liquidity Risk Management Parameters Triggers

1 Cumulative negative gap on cash flows upto one month -15%

2 Cumulative negative gap on cash flows beyond one month upto one year -15%

3 Cash Coverage Ratio Above 1x

Interest Rate Risk

Interest Rate Risk Management Parameters Triggers

1 Impact of 0.25% consecutive increase in market interest rate per quarter over 2 years 
(200 bps change) on the Net Interest Margin (assuming constant assets and liability 
position)

Below 10% of NIM of Year-1 and 20% of NIM 
of Year-2

Foreign Exchange Risk 
Foreign Exchange Risk Parameters Triggers

1 Vendor Payment Amount > 0.25 mn $ to be hedged is payable after 3 months

2 Liability/Borrowings Entire exposure to be hedged unless specifically approved by ALCO and allowed as per regulatory 
guidelines 

Annexure 1
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Investment Risk

Parameter Limit

Mutual Fund Investments in AUM As per Borrowing and Investment Policy

Fixed Deposits in Banks As per Borrowing and Investment Policy

Investment Ceiling – Treasury (Mutual Funds) As per Borrowing and Investment Policy

Credit Risk
Detailed triggers are provided below:

Triggers Policy Trigger Limit

Concentration Limits (Quarterly)

LTV Portfolio Simple Avg > 65%

Max Loan Amount 50 Lakhs not to be >10% of O/s Portfolio

Bounce rate (Insufficient Funds) >20%

Cash Collection (Amt) >20%

Delinquency Trigger (Quarterly end)

30+ >5%

90+ >3%

Rates(Quarterly)

Decline Rate (1- Sanction/Login)% >70%

FCU Rejection Rate >10%

Conformance to Risk Appetite
The various businesses are required to ensure that the risks accepted are within the overall tolerance levels of your Company and the 
individual businesses. The risk appetite of your Company is thus practically implemented by the various businesses/functions as follows:

•	 Definition of Risk Limits & Thresholds: Risk limits are put in place by each business/function to enable practical implementation/monitoring 
of conformance to the risk appetite of your Company. Due consideration is given to the Business/Function characteristics while establishing 
the same. Further, quantitative risk limits are to be defined at a product level.

•	 RMC Approval: The Business/Function risk limits and thresholds defined and the monitoring and reporting mechanism is approved by the 
Managing Director of your Company. This is put up to the Risk Management Committee for approval which evaluates alignment of the 
same with the overall risk appetite of your Company and effectiveness of the same in ensuring that the risk to which Business/Function is 
exposed is within the risk appetite of your Company as a whole. 

•	 Communication: The Business/Function risk limits and thresholds are communicated throughout the Business/Function. 

•	 Monitoring & Reporting: A mechanism for monitoring the various risk limits and thresholds defined is put in place to ensure adherence to 
the same.  

Key risk indicators
•	 File movement (Inspection & Compliance)

•	 Deferral & PDD Tracking

•	 Customer complaints

•	 Near fraud misses

•	 Attrition Rate

•	 Collection account recon

•	 Material outsourced contracts > 20 Lakhs contractual fees for year

•	 Delinquency
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Following Directors were paid Managerial Remuneration:

1.	 Mr. Anil Mehta, Chairman  and Non-executive Director as on 31 March, 2022 for his tenor as MD & CEO  (till 22 November, 2021)

2.	 Mr. Rupinder Singh MD & CEO as on 31 March, 2022 (Additional Director since 12 May, 2021 and re-designated as MD & CEO of your 
Company  from 23 November, 2021)

The details of the Managerial Remuneration as approved by the shareholders as per Schedule V Part II  Section II (IV) of Companies Act, 2013 
is as below:

Mr. Anil Mehta Mr. Rupinder Singh

Remuneration Till 22 November, 2021

Fixed Pay: C 2,84,66,812  per annum 

Variable Pay: Upto 60% of Fixed or as per the bonus 
plan of your Company, whichever is higher as approved 
by the Board of Directors/Committee.

W.e.f 12 May, 2021

Fixed Pay: C 1,65,00,000 per annum

Variable pay: Upto 100% of fixed pay or as per the bonus 
plan of your Company, whichever is higher, as approved by 
the Board of Directors/Committee.

With effect from 01 July, 2021 

Fixed pay: C 1,73,25,000 per annum

Variable pay: Upto 100% of Fixed Pay or as per the bonus 
plan of your Company, whichever is higher, as approved by 
the Board of Directors/Committee

With effect from 02 November, 2021

Fixed pay: C 2,30,00,000 per annum

Variable pay: Upto 100% of fixed pay or as per the bonus 
plan of your Company, whichever is higher, as approved by 
the Board of Directors/Committee

Rent free accommodation: 10% of fixed pay

Insurance (GPA & GTL as per the policies of your Company 
and GMC- Family Floater with sum assured of C 60 Lakhs): 
Actuals, not to exceed C 5,00,000/-

Service contract He resigned from the designation of MD & CEO  
on 22 November, 2021.

He was re-designated as the MD  and  CEO for a term of four 
years from 23 November, 2021 and by shareholders in the 
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 15 December, 2021. 
The remuneration, as stated above, has been approved for a 
period of 3 years. 

Stock option 
details

Refer to table- A for stock options outstanding  below 
on the date of this report.

Refer to Table- B for stock options outstanding  below on the 
date of this report.
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(Managerial Remuneration as per Schedule V Part II- Section II (IV) of Companies Act, 2013)

Table- A
Particulars Number Issue Price Vesting/

Accrual 
Period

Exercise Period

ESOPs 3,90,000 At fair market 
value

Five years Five years and 3 months from the date of vesting;

Exercised all options and Board of Directors allotted 97,500 equity 
shares each vide Circular Resolution dated 08 January, 2019 and  
06 January, 2020. Further, Board of Directors allotted 1,20,000 equity 
shares each vide Circular Resolution dated 10 January, 2021 and 
allotted 75,000 equity shares vide Circular Resolution dated 06 January, 
2022.

Right to subscribe 
to Equity shares

3,55,000 At fair market 
value

Four years Seven years from the date of relevant subscriptions

Table- B
Particulars Number Issue Price Vesting/

Accrual 
Period

Exercise Period

ESOPs 2,00,000 At fair market 
value

Four years Five years and three months from the date of first vesting of the 
relevant Option

ESOPs 7,35,000 At fair market 
value

Five years  Five years and three months from the date of first vesting of the 
relevant Option 
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ESOP

Particulars ESOP 2012
Number of options

ESOP 2017
Number of options

ESOP 2021
Number of options

Total

Granted  23,45,500  7,70,000  19,04,595 50,20,095

Vested  16,53,250  1,85,500  - 18,38,750

Exercised  14,04,300  18,500  - 14,22,800

Total number of shares arising as a result 
of exercise of option

 14,04,300  18,500  - 14,22,800

Lapsed  8,41,200  2,29,000  22,500 10,92,700

Exercise Price 13.27/14.18/16.84/20.32/83.20 118.48/159.01/179.
92/184.55/189.56/1

97.80 

309.59/315.57/340.71 NA

Variation of terms of options during the 
year

NA Yes, Clause no. 
8.4.2 of the scheme 

modified.

NA

Money realized by exercise of options  6,06,97,393  24,65,780 0 6,31,63,173

Total number of options in force  1,00,000  5,22,500  18,82,095 25,04,595

Employee wise details of options granted 
to:

Key Managerial Personnel - -  10,40,000 10,40,000

Any other employee who receives a 
grant of options in any one year of option 
amounting to five percent or more of 
options granted during that year

- -  2,75,000 2,75,000

Identified employees who were granted 
option, during any one year, equal to 
or exceeding one percent of the issued 
capital (excluding outstanding warrants 
and conversions) of your Company at the 
time of grant;

- -  7,35,000 7,35,000

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by your Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) 
of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. 	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

(a) 	 Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: NIL

(b) 	 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: NIL

(c) 	 Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: NIL

(d) 	 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: NIL

(e) 	 Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: NIL

(f) 	 Date (s) of approval by the Board: NIL

(g) 	 Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

(h) 	 Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188: NIL

2. 	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

Name(s) of the related party and nature 
of relationship

Mr. Anil Mehta Mr. Gaj Raj Singh (Father of Mr. Anil 
Mehta)

(b) 	Nature of contracts/arrangements/
transactions

Sale of Assets Rent Agreement

(c) 	 Duration of the contracts / 
arrangements/transactions

NA Renewed by the Board of Directors in their 
meeting held on 17 February, 2020 for 3 
years w.e.f 01 March, 2020.

(d) 	Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions including 
the value, if any:

Assets have been sold to Mr. Anil Mehta 
amounting to 8.63 Lakhs.

Lease will have a tenor of 3 years from the 
commencement date (01 March, 2020) of 
lease amount of C 31,028 per month and 
can be renewed after every 11 months 
with an increase of 5%. *

(e) 	 Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA. The said sale of assets has been 
noted by Board of Directors in their 
meeting held on 12 May, 2022.

17 February, 2020

(f) 	 Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil Nil

	 *Note: The said agreement shall be amended in the name of Mr. Adit Mehta, son of Mr. Anil Mehta w.e.f 01 March, 2022 for three years 
for a rent of 34,208/- with escalation of 5% every 12 month.
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FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
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1.	 INTRODUCTION
	 India Shelter Housing Finance Limited (India Shelter) conducts 

itself with highest standards of integrity and has always 

endeavored to follow them in letter and the spirit of  law. 

Related party transactions can present a potential or actual 

conflict of interest which may be against the best interest, 

of India Shelter and its shareholders. India Shelter does not 

promote any transaction,which may be at variance with the 

established principles of Corporate Governance or which do 

not meet the highest standard of ethics or integrity.

	 In terms of the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, your Company is required to follow the procedure 

as prescribed for conducting the Related Party Transactions. 

Also, Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – 

Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 

has prescribed that Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) should 

evolve a Related Party Transaction Policy (Policy) and disclose 

the same in the annual report and its website..

2.	 APPLICABILITY
	 India Shelter shall enter into any contract or arrangement with 

a related party only post consent of the Board of Directors 

given by a resolution at a meeting of the Board with respect to 

the following or as may be prescribed under Section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013:

(a) 	 sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

(b) 	 selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of 

any kind;

(c) 	 leasing of property of any kind;

(d) 	 availing or rendering of any services;

(e) 	 appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods, 

materials, services or property;

(f) 	 such related party’s appointment to any office or place 

of profit in your Company, its subsidiary company or 

associate company; and

(g) 	 underwriting the subscription of any securities or 

derivatives thereof, of your Company:

	 Where any contract or arrangement is entered into by a 

Director or any other employee, without obtaining the consent 

of the Board or approval by a resolution in the general and if 

it is not ratified by the Board or, as the case may be, by the 

shareholders at a meeting within three months from the date 

on which such contract or arrangement was entered into, such 

contract or arrangement and if the contract or arrangement 

is with a related party to any director, or is authorised by any 

other director, the Directors concerned shall indemnify your 

Company against any loss incurred by it.

	 However, a transaction entered into by India Shelter in its 

ordinary course of business other than transactions, which are 

not on an arm’s length basis, shall not be covered under the 

ambit of the Policy.

3.	 OBJECTIVES
	 This Policy is intended to ensure due and timely identification, 

approval, disclosure and reporting of transactions between 

India Shelter and any of its Related Parties in compliance with 

the applicable laws and regulations as may be amended from 

time to time.

	 The provisions of this Policy are designed to govern the 

approval process and disclosure requirements to ensure 

transparency in the conduct of Related Party Transactions in 

the best interest of India Shelter and its shareholders and to 

comply with the statutory provisions in this regard.

4.	 DEFINITIONS
	 In this Policy, unless the context otherwise requires, following 

are the definitions:

4.1	 “Act” means Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 

thereunder, as amended from time to time.

4.2	 “Arm’s Length Transaction” means a transaction between 

two related parties that is conducted as if they were 

unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest

4.3	 “Board” means the Board of Directors of your Company.

4.4	 “Committee” means Audit Committee of your Company 

as constituted or reconstituted by the Board.

4.5	 “Company” means India Shelter Finance Corporation 

Limited.

4.6	 “Directors” means Directors appointed by the Board 

including executive, non-executive and independent 

directors.

4.7	 “Ordinary course of business” means the usual 

transactions, customs and practices undertaken by your 

Company to conduct its business operations and activities 

and includes all such activities which your Company 

can undertake as per Memorandum and Articles of 

Association. The Board and Audit Committee may lay 
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down the principles for determining ordinary course of 

business in accordance with the statutory requirements 

and other industry practices and guidelines.

4.8	 “Independent Director” means a director referred to in 

Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

4.9	 “KMP” or “KMPs” means the following key managerial 

personnel:

a.	 Chief Executive Officer and / or Managing Director or 

Manager of your Company;

b.	 Chief Financial Officer of your Company;

c.	 Company Secretary of your Company;

d.	 Whole Time Director of your Company; and

e.	 Such other officer of your Company as may be 

decided by the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee.

4.10	 “Member” means a Director of your Company appointed 

as member of the Committee.

4.11	 “Material Related Party Transaction” means a transaction 

with a Related Party if the transaction / transactions to be 

entered into individually or taken together with previous 

transactions during a financial year, exceeds 10% (ten 

percent) of the annual consolidated turnover of your 

Company as per the last audited financial statements of 

your Company “

4.12	 “RBI Guidelines” means and includes Master Direction- 

Non-Banking Financial Company- Housing Finance 

Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, RBI  

Notifications, Circulars and other such communications 

thereto

4.13	 “Relative” with reference to a Director or KMP means 

persons as defined under the Companies Act, 2013  and 

rules prescribed thereunder as below

4.14	 “Related Party” have the meaning as defined in Section 

2(76) of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb) 

of the Securities and Exchange Board Of India (Listing 

Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015

4.15	 “Related Party Transaction” have the meaning as defined 

under Regulation 2(1)(zc) of the Securities and Exchange 

Board Of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 which means transfer of 

resources, services or obligations between a listed entity 

and a related party, regardless of whether price is charged 

and a transaction with a related party shall be construed 

to include a single transaction or a group of transactions 

in a contract, including but not limited to the following –

a.	 sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

b.	 selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property 

of any kind;

c.	 leasing of property of any kind;

d.	 availing or rendering of any services;

e.	 appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of 

goods, materials, services, property;

f.	 appointment to any office or place of profit in your 

Company

g.	 underwriting the subscription of any securities or 

derivatives thereof, of your Company

4.16	 “Senior Management Personnel / Senior Management” 

means personnel of your Company who are members of 

its core management team excluding Board of Directors 

comprising all members of management one level below 

the executive directors, including the functional and 

departmental heads.

5.	 INTERPRETATION
	 Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions 

used in this policy and not defined herein but defined in 

the Companies Act, 2013 or NHB Act, 1987, NHB Directions, 

Notifications, Circulars or guidelines as may be amended from 

time to time shall have the meaning respectively assigned to 

them therein.

6.	 DEALING WITH RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
6.1	 Each Director and Key Managerial Personnel is responsible 

for providing advance notice to the Board or Audit 

Committee of any potential Related Party Transaction 

involving himself/herself or their relatives, including 

any additional information about the transaction that 

the Board or Audit Committee may request. The Board 

shall record the disclosure of Interest; and the Audit 

Committee will determine whether the transaction does, 

in fact, constitute a Related Party Transaction requiring 

compliance with this policy

6.2	 The Notice of any potential Related Party transaction shall 

be intimated to the Board/Committee, well in advance so 

that the Board/ Committee have adequate time to review 

the transaction.

6.3	 All related party transaction shall require prior approval 

of the Audit Committee/Board, however, in cases where 

transaction has been done inadvertently or due to 

requirement of urgency the Audit Committee/Board may 

ratify the decision. However, this ratification should be 

done within three months of the contract having taken 

place otherwise the transaction shall be voidable at the 

option of Board/Committee.

6.4	 While considering any transaction, the Committee/ 

Board shall take into account all relevant facts and 
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circumstances including the terms of the transaction, 

the business purpose of the transaction, the benefits to 

your Company and to the Related Party, and any other 

relevant matters. No member of the Committee / Board 

shall be present during the period the transaction related 

to the transaction

6.5	 Audit Committee shall review , at least on a quarterly 

basis, the details of Related Party Transaction entered 

in to by India Shelter pursuant to each of the approval 

given. Approval given by the Audit Committee shall be 

valid for till revoked.

6.6	 Related Party Transaction with are either not in the 

‘Ordinary Course of Business’ or are not at ‘arm’s length 

price’ and exceeds the threshold under section 188 of the 

companies Act, 2013 shall also require prior approval of 

the shareholders through special resolution.

6.7	 No members of your Company shall vote in a special 

resolution where related party contract or arrangement 

is being considered if such a member is a Related Party in 

Contract or Arrangement which is being considered.

7.	 POLICY REVIEW AND AMENDMENT
7.1	 The provisions of this policy shall be subject to the 

provisions of the Act & RBI guidelines and rules and 

regulations made thereunder.

7.2	 The policy shall be reviewed by the Board from time 

to time as may be necessary and may be amended or 

modified either whole or in part as and when necessary.

7.3	 In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. 

issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent 

with the provisions laid down under this policy, then 

such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. shall 

prevail upon the provisions hereunder and this policy 

shall stand amended accordingly from the effective date 

as laid down under such amendment(s), clarification(s), 

circular(s) etc.

16.	DISCLOSURE
	 The company shall disclose the particulars of contracts or 

arrangements entered with the Related Parties in such form 

and manner as may be required under the provisions of the 

Act and rules made thereunder.

	 The details of this policy and the evaluation criteria as applicable 

shall be disclosed in the Annual Report as part of the Board’s 

Report therein and shall also be displayed on the website of the 

company.

To,
The Members,
India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited
CIN: U65922HR1998PLC042782
Registered Office Address: 6th Floor, Plot No. 15,
Sector - 44, Institutional Area,
Gurgaon- 122002, Haryana, India

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable 
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices 
by India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited (hereinafter called 
‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion 
thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s statutory registers, 
books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby 
report that in my opinion, the Company, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 2022 has complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter.

I have examined the statutory registers, books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2022 according 
to the provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 
thereunder; 

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the 
rules made thereunder;

(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws 
framed thereunder;

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules 
and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings;

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 

a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 to the extent it is applicable to Debt Securities; 

b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

c.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  

(vi)	 The other laws which are specifically applicable to the 
Company based on its sector/ industry are:

a.	 Regulations issued by National Housing Bank; 

b.	 Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013;

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the 
following:

a.	 Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with 
the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. 
mentioned above.

I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted and are 
fit and proper with proper balance of Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors. 

As per Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014, 

The following class or classes of companies shall have at least two 
directors as independent directors:

(i) the Public Companies having paid up share capital of ten Crore 
rupees or more; or

(ii)	 the Public Companies having turnover of one hundred Crore 
rupees or more; or

Annexure-9

FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 March, 2022
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

 (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
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(iii)	 the Public Companies which have, in aggregate, outstanding 
loans, debentures and deposits, exceeding fifty Crore rupees.

The Company being a public company having paid up share capital 
of ten Crores or more, shall have to appoint at least two directors as 
independent directors.

However, pursuant to the applicable provisions of Section 149 read 
with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013,

An independent director who resigns or is removed from the 
Board of Directors of the listed entity shall be replaced by a new 
independent director by listed entity at the earliest but not later 
than three months from the date of such vacancy.

Mr. Shailesh J Mehta resigned from the office of Independent 
Director w.e.f. 03 November, 2021, and Mr. Sunil Ramankant 
Bhumralkar was appointed by the Board on the recommendation of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on 31 March, 2022 
as an Additional (Independent) Director which is beyond the time 
limit as prescribed.  

During the year under review, Mr. Rupinder Singh, Mr. Sudhin 
Bhagwandas Choksey and Mr. Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar has 
been appointed as MD & CEO, Nominee Director and Additional 
(Independent) Director respectively whereas Mr. Anil Mehta, 
Mr. G.V. Ravi Shankar and Mr. Shailesh J Mehta resigned from the 
office of MD & CEO, Nominee Director and Independent Director 
respectively. Also Mr. Anil Mehta has been reappointed as a Non-
Executive Director, Mr. Shailesh J Mehta has been reappointed as 
Nominee Director and Ms. Rachna Dikshit has been regularised as 
Non- Executive & Independent Director.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board 
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
least seven Business days in advance, and in case of shorter notice, 
compliance as required under the Act has been made by the 
Company and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were 
carried out with requisite majority. Further, there were no dissenting 
views by any member of the Board or Committee(s) during the 
period under review. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in 
the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, the Company has: 

	 Issued and allotted 5000 Non-Convertible Debentures having 
face value of C 1,00,000/- each through private placement 
approved by the meeting of members of Asset Liability 
Management Committee dated 22 June, 2021.

	 Allotted 37,500 equity shares pursuant to the provisions of the 
Employee Stock Option Plan 2012, by Resolution by Circulation 
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 April, 2021.

	 Allotted 144,000 equity shares pursuant to the provisions of the 

Employee Stock Option Plan 2012, by Resolution by Circulation 
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 July, 2021.

	 Allotted 306,000 equity shares pursuant to the provisions of the 
Employee Stock Option Plan 2017, by Resolution by Circulation 
approved by the Board of Directors on 08 August, 2021.

	 Allotted 150,000 equity shares pursuant to the provisions of the 
Employee Stock Option Plan 2012, by Resolution by Circulation 
approved by the Board of Directors on 23 August, 2021.

	 Issued and allotted 300 Non-Convertible Debentures having 
face value of C 10,00,000/- each through private placement 
approved by the meeting of members of Asset Liability 
Management Committee dated 31 August, 2021.

	 Issued and allotted 350 Non-Convertible Debentures having 
face value of C 10,00,000/- each through private placement 
approved by the meeting of members of Asset Liability 
Management Committee dated 15 September, 2021.

	 Issued and allotted 500 Non-Convertible Debentures having 
face value of C 10,00,000/- each through private placement 
approved by the meeting of members of Asset Liability 
Management Committee dated 23 November, 2021.

	 Allotted 90,750 equity shares pursuant to the provisions of the 
Employee Stock Option Plan 2012, by Resolution by Circulation 
approved by the Board of Directors on 06 January, 2022.

	 Increased the managerial remuneration of Mr. Rupinder Singh, 
MD & CEO of the Company to fixed pay of C 2.30 Crores p.a. and 
variable pay of upto 100% of fixed pay based on performance 
metrics. The members of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Board of Directors in their meetings dated 
22 November, 2021, recommended such increase which was 
subsequently approved by the members of the Company at 
the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 15 December, 
2021. 

	 Amended the Employee Stock Option Plan 2012 and 2017 and 
approval of Employee Stock Option Plan 2021 in the meeting 
of Board of Director dated 12 May, 2021.

	 With reference to inspection of the Company as on 31 March, 
2020, National Housing Bank (NHB), in exercise of the powers 
vested under Section 52(A) of the National Housing Bank Act, 
1987, vide its letter 29 July, 2021, has imposed a monetary 
penalty of C 15,000/- plus GST on the Company for non-
compliance with provisions of the Paragraph 22 (2) of the 
Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 and the 
RBI Circular No. DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20.

Jitender Singh
Practicing Company Secretary

	 Mem. No. A33610
Date: 12 May, 2022	 C.P. No. 12463
Place: New Delhi 	 UDIN: A033610D000311096

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which 
is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral part of this report.

‘Annexure – A’

To,
The Members,
India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited
CIN: U65922HR1998PLC042782
Registered Office Address: 6th Floor, Plot No. 15,
Sector - 44, Institutional Area,
Gurgaon- 122002, Haryana, India

My secretarial audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these secretarial records based on my audit.

2.	 I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 
contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. 
I believe that the processes and practices, I followed, provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3.	 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.	 Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening 
of events, etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. 
My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with 
which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Jitender Singh
Practicing Company Secretary

	 Mem. No. A33610
Date: 12 May, 2022	 C.P. No. 12463
Place: New Delhi 	 UDIN: A033610D000311096
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Report on the Audit of the standalone financial statements
1.	 Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited 
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes 
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on 
that date, and notes to the standalone financial statements, 
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the 
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and profit and other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows 
for the year ended on that date.

2.	 Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of standalone financial statements in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Standalone financial statements.

3.	 Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Standalone financial statements of the current year. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
Standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. We have determined the matters described below 
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the 
Member of 
India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

a. Impairment on Financial Instruments

As at 31 March 2022, the Company has reported gross 
loans assets amounting to Rs.2,65,687.27 lakhs and other 
financial assets amounting to Rs.6,236.01 lakhs against 
which impairment of Rs.3,434.82 lakhs and Rs.40.80 lakhs 
respectively have been recorded.

Ind AS 109 Financial instruments (Ind AS 109) requires 
the Company to provide for impairment of its financial 
instruments (designated as amortized cost or fair value 
through other comprehensive income) using the 
expected credit loss (ECL) approach.

ECL involves an estimation and a significant degree of 
judgement by the management for development of 
ECL model and its corresponding application in the ECL 
model. These judgement and estimates include:

1.	 Estimating the behavioral life of the product

2.	 Data inputs in relation to ECL model

Read and assessed the Company’s accounting policies for impairment 
of financial instruments (Refer note 2.9) and their compliance with 
Ind AS 109 and the governance framework approved by the Board of 
Directors.

Read and assessed the Company’s policy with respect to one-time 
restructuring offered to customers pursuant to the “Resolution 
Framework 2.0- Resolution of COVID-19-related Stress of Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises” issued by RBI on May 5, 2021 and tested the 
implementation of such policy on a sample basis.

We have evaluated the management response upon implementation 
of various RBI circulars and tested the implementation of requirements 
as per these circulars on sample basis.

We also performed end to end process walkthroughs to identify the key 
systems, applications and controls used in the ECL processes.

We tested the relevant manual controls, general IT and application 
controls over key systems used in the ECL process.

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

3.	 Application of the macroeconomic factors on a 
forward-looking basis

4.	 Modification of assets in terms of restructuring

5.	 Determination of loan book segmentation based 
on homogeneity, probability of defaults, loss given 
defaults and exposure at default.

6.	 Management Overlay based on risk assessment and 
qualitative adjustments

7.	 Compliance with RBI circulars and assess the level of 
credit impairment of financial instrument.

8.	 Disclosures as required by IND AS 109 and RBI 
Circular

Refer Note no. 5 & 7 of the standalone financial 
statements.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the management estimates by 
understanding the process of ECL estimation and related assumptions 
and tested the controls around data extraction and validation.

We tested the operating effectiveness of the controls for staging of 
loans and advances based on their past-due status.

Tested a sample of performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether any 
Significant Increase in Credit Risk indicators were present requiring 
them to be classified under higher stages.

Assessing the appropriateness of changes made in macro-economic 
factors and management overlays to calibrate the risks that are not yet 
fully captured by the existing model.

We tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of ECL provision 
performed by the Company.

We assessed the disclosures included in the Ind-AS standalone financial 
statements with respect to such allowance / estimate are in accordance 
with the requirements of Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 107 Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures and also as per RBI Guidelines.

b. Evaluation of Company’s IT systems and Controls

The Company’s key financial accounting and reporting 
processes are highly dependent on information systems 
including automated controls in information systems, 
such that there exists a risk that, gaps in the IT control 
environment could result in the financial accounting and 
reporting records being misstated.

We identified ‘IT systems and controls’ as key audit matter 
because of the high level of automation being used by 
management and the scale and complexity of the IT 
architecture.

Our audit procedures include assessment and identification of key IT 
applications, and further verifying, testing, and reviewing the design 
and operating effectiveness of the IT system on the basis of reports /
returns and other financial and non-financial information generated 
from the system on a test check basis. Our audit procedures included:

a)	 Obtained an understanding of the IT control environment, IT 
policies during the audit period.

b)	 Testing IT general controls related to User and Application controls, 
Change Management Controls and Data backup.

Where we identified the need to perform additional procedures, we 
placed reliance on manual reconciliations between systems and other 
information sources.

4.	 Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual 
report but does not include the standalone financial statements 
and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the Standalone financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We 
have nothing to report in this regard.

5.	 Management's Responsibility for the Standalone financial 
statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is 

responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, including other comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) 
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, the 
Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
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matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends 
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.

6.	 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Standalone financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the Standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures in the Standalone financial statements 
made by the Management and Board of Directors.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management 
and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the Standalone financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the Standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
Standalone financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions 
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of 
any identified misstatements in the Standalone financial 
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the Standalone financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

7.	 Other Matter

The Financial Statement also includes figures of the Company 
for the year ended March 31, 2021, audited by the predecessor 
firm of statutory auditor vide its report dated May 12, 2021, in 
which the predecessor auditor has expressed an unmodified 
opinion. Accordingly, we do not express any conclusion on 
aforesaid financial statement for the said year and have relied 
upon the said reports for the purpose of our report on this 
financial statement.

8.	 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

	 I.	 As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 
2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government 
in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the 
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

	 II.	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our 
audit we report that:

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

	 b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

	 c)	 The Standalone balance sheet, the Standalone 
statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the Standalone statement 
of changes in equity and the Standalone statement of 
cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account.

	 d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial 
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
section 133 of the Act.

	 e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
are disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of 
the Act.

	 f )	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to Standalone financial 
statements of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial 
controls with reference to Financial Statement.

	 g)	 With respect to the matter to be included in the 
Auditors’ Report under section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by 
the Company to its directors during the current year 
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of 
the Act

III.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

a)	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its financial position 
in its Standalone financial statements - Refer Note 33 
of Standalone financial statements;

b)	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses;

c)	 There were no amounts which were required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company;

d)	 (i)	 The Management has represented that, to the 
best of its (knowledge and belief, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in 
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the Company to or in any other 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii)	 The Management has represented, that, to 
the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been received by the company 
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(iii)	 Based on audit procedures that we have 
considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, 
contain any material misstatement.

e)	 During the year, the company has not paid or 
declared any dividend.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Reg. No-: 006711N/N500028

Aashish Gupta
(Partner)

Place: Gurgaon	 Membership No. 097343
Date: 12 May 2022	 UDIN No- 22097343AIWDRV9137
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To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that;

i.	 In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment 
and Intangible Assets:

(a)	 (A)	 The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of property, plant and equipment and 
relevant details of right-of use assets;

	 (B)	 The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars of intangible assets;

(b)	 The Company has a program of physical verification of 
these Property, Plant and Equipment whereby all these 
assets are verified once in three years. In our opinion, the 
periodicity of the physical verification is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. For the assets where physical verification exercise 
was completed, no material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification;

(c)	 The title deeds of the immovable properties (other than 
properties where the company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) 
disclosed in the financial statements included under 
property, plant and equipment are held in the name of 
the Company;

(d)	 The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and 
Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible 
assets during the year;

(e)	 No proceedings have been initiated during the year or 
are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2022 
for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) (as 
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder;

ii	 (a)	 The Company is a service company primarily engaged 
in lending business. Accordingly, it does not hold any 
inventories. Thus, the provision of clause 3(ii)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company;

(b)	 The Company has not been sanctioned any working 
capital limit from banks or financial institutions on the 
basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the 
provision of clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company;

iii.	 The Company has not made investments in and provided any 
guarantee or security to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties. However, the Company has 
granted secured and unsecured loans to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships and to others parties during the 
year in respect of which;

(a)	 Since the Company is principally engaged in providing 
loans reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable;

(b)	 In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the loans 
granted during the year are prima facie not prejudicial to 
the Company’s interest;

(c)	 The Company is principally engaged in the business 
of providing loans. In respect of loans granted by the 
Company, the schedule of repayment of principal 
and payment of interest has been duly stipulated and 
the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of 
interest have been regular as per stipulation except for 
certain cases, the summary of which are as disclosed 
by the management in Note 5 of notes of the Financial 
Statements.

	 For the purpose of the above disclosure, the company 
has considered the Reserve Bank of India circular DOR.
No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21dated August 06, 2020 on 
Resolution Framework for COVID-19 related stress and RBI 
circular DOR.STR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated May 05, 
2021 (as amended time to time) wherein moratorium is to 
be granted to customers in relation to repayment of dues, 
due to which the repayment schedule of such customers 
has been modified to that extent;

(d)	 In respect of loans granted by the Company, the overdue 
amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet 
date is as reported in Note 5(viii) of notes of the Financial 
Statements. The total amount overdue for more than 
90 days amounts to Rs. 5,703.90. Lakh with respect to 
850 borrowers (995 loan accounts). The Company has 
generally taken reasonable steps in its normal course of 
business for recovery of overdue principal and interest in 
respect of such loans;

(e)	 As Company is principally engaged in providing loans, 
hence the reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is 
not applicable;

(f )	 The Company has not granted any loans or advances, in 
the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without 
specifying any terms or period of repayment during the 
year.

iv	 The Company has not granted any loans, made investments, or 
provided guarantees and securities which attract the provisions 
of section 185 and section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

V	 The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts 
which are deemed to be deposits from the public to which 
the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the 
provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions 
of the Act and the Rules framed there under apply. Accordingly, 
the provision of clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company;

vi	 The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance 
of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act 
for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, 
the provision of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company;

vii	 (a)	 The amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account 
in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods 
and Services tax, provident fund, employees’ state 
insurance, income tax, cess and other applicable statutory 
dues have been regularly deposited by the Company 
with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the 
Company did not have any dues on account of sales tax, 
service tax, value added tax, duty of customs and duty of 
excise;

		  There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect 

of Goods and Services tax, provident fund, employees’ 
state insurance, income tax, cess and other applicable 
statutory dues which were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 
for a period of more than six months from the date they 
become payable;

	 (b)	 Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above 
which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2022 on 
account of disputes are given below:

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date

Nature of Act Forum Period (AY) Demand 
Amount 

Amount Deposited Amount not deposited

Income Tax Act CIT Appeals AY 2017-18 445.23 89.05 356.18

viii	 There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded 
income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961);

ix	 (a)	 The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of 
loans or other borrowings to or in the payment of interest 
thereon to any lender, during the year;

(b)	 The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by 
any bank or financial institution or other lender;

(c)	 Term loans availed by the Company during the year have 
been generally applied for the purpose for which they 
were obtained other than temporary deployment in liquid 
assets which are recoverable on demand;

(d)	 On an overall examination of financial statements of the 
company, we report that no funds have been raised on 
short term basis. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ix)
(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

(e)	 On an overall examination of the financial statements 
of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds 
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its Subsidiary company or its associates’ 
companies;

(f )	 The company has not raised loans during the year on the 
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures 
or associate companies, and accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3(ix) (f ) of the Order is not applicable;

X	 (a)	 The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under 
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable;

(b)	 The Company has not made any preferential allotment 
or private placement of shares or convertible debentures 
(fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year 
and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is 
not applicable;

xi	 (a)	 We report that no fraud by the company has been noticed 
or reported during the year nor have we been informed of 
any such case by the management. As regards to fraud on 
the company, there have been 2 instances aggregating to 

Rs. 10.35 Lakh wherein frauds have been perpetrated by 
the borrowers of the Company as disclosed in note 43.28 
of the financial statements.;

(b)	 No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during 
the year and upto the date of this report;

(c)	 As represented to us by the Management, there were 
no whistle blower complaints received by the Company 
during the year;

xii	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting 
under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable;

xiii	 In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to 
all applicable transactions with the related parties and the 
details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards;

xiv	 (a)	 In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business;

(b)	 We have considered the internal audit reports issued to 
the Company for the period under audit;

xv	 The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with him and if so, 
whether the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act have 
been complied with;

xvi	 (a)	 As the Company is a Non-Banking Financial institution and 
registered under National Housing Bank (NHB) Act, 1987, it 
has been exempted from the requirement of registration 
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act; 1934.

(b)	 The Company has a valid certificate of registration from 
National Housing Bank;

(c)	 The Company is not a core investment company and 
hence reporting under clause (xvi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable;

(d)	 There are no core investment company as a part of the 
group;
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xvii	 The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial 
year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding 
financial year;

Xviii	As per RBI circular no. RBI/2021-22/25 Ref No. DoS.CO.ARG/
SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021 the Statutory 
Auditors have resigned upon completion of their term of 
appointment as per the requirement of the said circular. 
There has not been any issues, concerns or objections raised 
by the outgoing auditors, based on our communication with 
outgoing auditor as required under ICAI Code of Ethics;

Xix	 According to the information and explanations given to us and 
on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of 
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
other information accompanying the financial statements, our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans 
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes 
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they 
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall 
due;

Xx	 As disclosed by management in note 29.2 of the financial 
statements and as verified by us, the gross amount required to 
be spent by company towards Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) during the year has been duly spent during the year. 
Hence reporting under clause (xx)(a) and clause (xx)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable;

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Reg. No-: 006711N/N500028

Aashish Gupta
(Partner)

Place: Gurgaon	 Membership No. 097343
Date: 12 May 2022	 UDIN No- 22097343AIWDRV9137

ANNEXURE – B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA 
SHELTER FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED-
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to  financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of INDIA SHELTER FINANCE CORPORATION 
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with 
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, both applicable to 
an audit of Internal Financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with 
reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to 
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference 
to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to 
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system with reference 
to financial statements and such internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2022, based on the internal control with reference to 
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Reg. No-: 006711N/N500028

Aashish Gupta
(Partner)

Place: Gurgaon	 Membership No. 097343
Date: 12 May 2022	 UDIN No- 22097343AIWDRV9137
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Notes
As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Assets

(1) Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 3  14,380.16  23,309.46 

(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4  18,649.21  18,058.31 

(c) Loans 5  2,62,252.45  1,98,116.96 

(d) Investments 6  17,532.00  -   

(e) Other financial assets 7  6,195.21  2,808.55 

(2) Non-financial assets

(a) Current tax assets (net) 8  -    3.55 

(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 9  295.06  933.65 

(c) Property, plant and equipment 10  1,657.28  1,403.13 

(d) Other intangible assets 11  46.54  107.74 

(e) Other non-financial assets 12  777.66  1,174.97 

(f ) Assets held for sale 336.54  347.85 

Total assets  3,22,122.11  2,46,264.17 

Liabilities and equity

Liabilities

(1) Financial liabilities

(a) Trade payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 13  -    12.12 

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

13  459.41  450.63 

(b) Debt securities 14  18,659.85  8,222.38 

(c) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 15  1,88,341.12  1,40,906.65 

(d) Other financial liabilities 16  3,336.51  2,088.81 

(2) Non-financial liabilities

(a) Provisions 17  513.32  359.73 

(b) Current tax liabilities (Net) 8  432.22  -   

(c) Other non-financial liabilities 18  2,767.04  496.89 

Total liabilities  2,14,509.47  1,52,537.21 

(3) Equity

(a) Equity share capital 19  4,370.67  4,297.84 

(b) Other equity 20  1,03,241.97  89,429.12 

Total equity  1,07,612.64  93,726.96 

Total liabilities and equity  3,22,122.11  2,46,264.17 

Notes
For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

Revenue from operations

(i) Interest income 21 37,764.74 27,457.21

(ii) Fees and commission income 22 1,602.65 999.26

(iii) Net gain on fair value changes 23 458.85 291.85

(iv) Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost 
category

4,971.46 2,922.29

(I) Total revenue from operations 44,797.70 31,670.61

(II) Other income 24 1,182.80 609.22

(III) Total income (I+II) 45,980.50 32,279.83

Expenses

(i) Finance costs 25 14,833.86 10,534.81

(ii) Impairment on financial instruments 26 1,188.87 1,984.73

(iii) Employee benefits expenses 27 10,140.62 6,168.58

(iv) Depreciation and amortisation 28 653.90 509.84

(v) Other expenses 29 2,473.14 1,786.18

(IV) Total expenses 29,290.39 20,984.14

(V) Profit before tax (III-IV) 16,690.11 11,295.69

(VI) Tax expense: 30

(1) Current tax 3,183.62 2,477.20

(2) Deferred tax charge/(credit) 661.78 79.63

Total tax expense 3,845.40 2,556.83

(VII) Profit for the year (V-VI) 12,844.71 8,738.86

(VIII) Other comprehensive income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

-Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (92.12) (28.39)

-Income tax effect 23.18 7.15

(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss- net of taxes - -

Total other comprehensive income (68.94) (21.24)

(IX) Total comprehensive income for the year(VII+VIII) 12,775.77 8,717.62

(X) Earnings per equity share 40

Basic (Rs.) 29.60 20.39

Diluted (Rs.) 29.27 19.86

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 006711N/N500028

Aashish Gupta	 Anil Mehta	 Rupinder Singh
Partner	 Chairman and	 Managing Director and
Membership No.: 097343	 Non-Executive Director	 Chief Executive Officer
	 DIN: 02132315	 DIN: 09153382

	 Ashish Gupta	 Mukti Chaplot
Place: Gurugram	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Date: 12 May 2022		  Membership No. 38326

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 006711N/N500028

Aashish Gupta	 Anil Mehta	 Rupinder Singh
Partner	 Chairman and	 Managing Director and
Membership No.: 097343	 Non-Executive Director	 Chief Executive Officer
	 DIN: 02132315	 DIN: 09153382

	 Ashish Gupta	 Mukti Chaplot
Place: Gurugram	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Date: 12 May 2022		  Membership No. 38326

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Standalone Statement of profit and loss as at 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Standalone Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital 
Particulars Balance as at  

01 April 2020
Changes 

during the year
Balance as at  

31 March 2021
Changes 

during the year
Balance as at  

31 March 2022

Equity share capital  4,283.02  14.82  4,297.84  72.83  4,370.67 

A. Equity share capital 
Particulars

Share application 
money pending 

allotment

Reserves and Surplus Items of other 
comprehensive 

income

Total

Statutory 
reserve

Securities 
premium

Employee 
share 
based 

payment 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Re-measurements 
of defined benefit 

plans

Balance as at 31 March 2020 - 2,675.79 67,819.42 389.13 9,630.52 30.49 80,545.35

Transfer to statutory reserve - 1,747.77 - - (1,747.77) - -

Issue of share capital - - 4.94 - - - 4.94

Share options exercised during the year - - 0.23 (0.23) - - -

Share based payment to employees - - - 161.21 - - 161.21

Profit for the year - - - - 8,738.86 - 8,738.86

Other comprehensive income(net of taxes) - - - - - (21.24) (21.24)

Balance as at 31 March 2021 - 4,423.56 67,824.59 550.11 16,621.61 9.25 89,429.12

Transfer to statutory reserve - 2,568.94 - - (2,568.94) -

Issue of share capital - - 442.96 - - - 442.96

Share options exercised during the year - - 310.28 (310.28) - - -

Share based payment to employees - - - 594.12 12,844.71 - 13,438.83

Profit for the year - - - - - - -

Other comprehensive income(net of taxes) - - - - - (68.94) (68.94)

Balance as at 31 March 2022 - 6,992.50 68,577.83 833.95 26,897.38 (59.69) 1,03,241.97

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 006711N/N500028

Aashish Gupta	 Anil Mehta	 Rupinder Singh
Partner	 Chairman and	 Managing Director and
Membership No.: 097343	 Non-Executive Director	 Chief Executive Officer
	 DIN: 02132315	 DIN: 09153382

	 Ashish Gupta	 Mukti Chaplot
Place: Gurugram	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Date: 12 May 2022		  Membership No. 38326

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

(A) Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 16,690.11 11,295.69

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 653.90 509.84

Effective interest rate adjustment on financial assets 776.79 533.26

Effective interest rate adjustment on debt securities and borrowings (400.24) (9.59)

Share based payments to employees 594.12 161.21

Impairment on financial instruments 1,188.87 1,984.73

Impairment on assets held for sale 12.30 4.62

Net loss on derecognition of property, plant and equipment 6.38 14.65

Net unrealised gain on fair value change of investments (30.72) -

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category (4,971.46) (2,922.29)

Gain on termination of leases (8.22) (22.02)

Interest expense on lease liabilities 91.93 77.33

Operating profit before working capital changes 14,603.76 11,627.43

Movements in working capital

Increase in loans (66,058.59) (53,068.15)

Decrease in other financial assets 1,560.71 306.52

Decrease/(increase) in other non-financial assets 396.33 (137.21)

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables (3.35) 55.69

Increase in other financial liabilities 1,247.70 1,455.06

Increase in other non-financial liabilities 2,270.15 328.41

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 43.01 (104.69)

Decrease in interest accrued on debt securities and borrowings (840.23) (411.95)

Cash flows used in operating activities post working capital changes (46,780.51) (39,948.89)

Income tax paid (net) (2,747.86) (2,136.19)

Net cash flows used in operating activities (A) (49,528.37) (42,085.08)

(B) Cash flows from investing activities

Payments made for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (507.89) (177.95)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 22.32 0.76

(Payments)/proceeds from investments (17,501.28) 9,385.88

Investment in other bank balance (net) (590.90) (1,544.51)

Net cash used in investing activities (B) (18,577.75) 7,664.19
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Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

(C) Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity share capital 515.78 19.99

Proceeds from debt securities 16,500.00 1,500.00

Proceeds from borrowings(other than debt securities) 1,14,063.55 97,840.02

Repayment of borrowings (66,456.29) (25,184.81)

Repayment of debt securities (5,000.00) (17,857.15)

Payment towards lease liabilities (446.22) (321.68)

Net cash flows from financing activities (C) 59,176.82 55,996.37

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (8,929.30) 21,575.47

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 23,309.46 1,733.99

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14,380.16 23,309.46

Components of cash and cash equivalents:-

Cash on hand 117.26 53.61

Balances with banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)

(a) Balance with banks in current accounts 55.96 4,051.21

(b) Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 14,206.94 19,204.64

Total cash and cash equivalents 14,380.16 23,309.46

Note:

1.	 The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7 
‘Statement of Cash flows’ as specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.”

2.	 Refer note 15 for reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities.

3.	 Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever applicable.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 006711N/N500028

Aashish Gupta	 Anil Mehta	 Rupinder Singh
Partner	 Chairman and	 Managing Director and
Membership No.: 097343	 Non-Executive Director	 Chief Executive Officer
	 DIN: 02132315	 DIN: 09153382

	 Ashish Gupta	 Mukti Chaplot
Place: Gurugram	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Date: 12 May 2022		  Membership No. 38326

Standalone Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

1.	 Company overview/Corporate information
India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited ("the Company") is a Housing Finance Company registered under section 29A of The National 
Housing Bank Act, 1987 vide Registration Certificate No. 09.0087.10 dated 14 September 2010. The Company is engaged in providing 
secured retail home loans, home equity loans and loans against property to borrowers for a period up to twenty years. These loans are 
primarily to be used by the borrowers for home purchase, home improvements, home extension and for construction of dwelling units 
on plots owned by borrowers.

The Company does not accept public deposits, and utilises internal and external funds to provide loans to borrowers.

The Company’s registered office and principal place of business is situated at 6th Floor, Plot No-15, Sector 44, Gurugram- 122001. The 
debentures of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange.

1.1	 Basis of preparation

	 (i)	 Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

These standalone financial statements (“the Financial Statements”) have been prepared in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and National Housing Bank 
(NHB) to the extent applicable. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies for the periods presented in these 
financial statements.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 were authorised and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 
12 May 2022.

	 (ii)	 Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities which 
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as explained in relevant accounting policies. The financial statements 
have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation 
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or 
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement 
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for 
leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 'Leases' and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but 
are not fair value, such as value in use in Ind AS 36 'Impairment of Assets'.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to 
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in 
its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access at 
the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

2.	 Summary of significant accounting policies
These financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases summarised as below. 
These policies are applied consistently for all the periods presented in the financial statements, except where the Company has applied 
certain exemptions upon transition.

2.1.	 Revenue recognition

	 Interest and processing fee income on loans

Interest and processing fee income on financial assets is recognised on a time proportion basis considering the amount outstanding 
and the effective interest rate applicable.
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	 Effective Interest Rate (“EIR”)

The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial instrument through the expected life of the financial 
instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount. The future cash flows are estimated taking into account 
all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are incremental and directly attributable 
to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. For financial assets measured at Fair Value 
Through Profit and Loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortised 
cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets interest income 
is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the 
allowance for expected credit losses).

	 Interest/Dividend income on investment

Interest income on investments and fixed deposits is recognised on time proportionate basis with reference to EIR method. Dividend 
income is accounted for when the right to receive it is established.

	 Income from assignment

Gains arising out of direct assignment transactions comprise the difference between the interest on the loan portfolio and the applicable 
rate at which the direct assignment is entered into with the assignee, also known as the right of excess interest spread (EIS). The future 
EIS basis the scheduled cash flows on execution of the transaction, discounted at the EIR of underlying pool of loans rate entered into 
with the assignee is recorded upfront in the statement of profit and loss. EIS is evaluated and adjusted for ECL and expected prepayment.

	 Fee and Commission Income

Fee and commission income includes fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR method. The Company recognises the fee and 
commission income at fair value of the consideration received or receivable when the Company satisfies the performance obligation.

	 Other operating revenue

Interest on overdue of loans and other ancillary charges are recognised upon realisation. All other income is recognised on an accrual 
basis upon satisfaction of performance obligation, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate realisation/collection and income can 
be measured reliably.

2.2.	 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand (including imprest), demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments that 
are readily convertible into known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.3.	 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, whereby profit/loss before extraordinary 
items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts 
or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available 
information.

2.4.	 Property, plant and equipment

	 Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase 
taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use. It also includes the 
initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, wherever applicable.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All 
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

	 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight line method over the useful life of the assets as prescribed 
under Part ‘C’ of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, or in case of assets where the estimated useful life was determined basis 
technical evaluation carried out by the Company, over the useful life so determined.

Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is provided for full month in which acquisition of the assets is made. No depreciation is provided 
for the month of sale/disposal of asset. Leasehold improvements are amortised over a period of lease. Asset costing less than Rs. 10,000 
each are fully depreciated in the year of capitalisation.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Asset category Estimated useful life (in Years) Life as per Schedule II

Plant & Equipment- Computer and other related 
equipment

3 years 3 years

Office equipment 5 years 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years 10 years

Vehicles 8 years 8 years

Handheld communication devices (included in 
office equipment)

2 years 5 years

Leasehold improvements Over the period of the lease or the 
estimated useful life whichever is lesser.  

Over the period of the lease or the 
estimated useful life whichever is lesser.  

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

	 De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, 
when the asset is derecognised.

2.5.	 Intangible assets

	 Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties and other taxes 
(other than those subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities), borrowing cost if capitalisation criteria are met and directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

	 Amortisation method, estimated useful lives and residual value

Intangible assets are amortised over a period of 4 years from the date when the assets are available for use. The estimated useful life 
(amortisation period) of the intangible assets is arrived basis the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits and is reviewed 
at the end of each financial year and the amortisation period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

	 De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses 
arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset, are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.6.	  Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date. If there is any indication of impairment based on 
internal / external factors, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss wherever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash 
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a 
cash generating unit.

Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Value in use is 
the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end 
of its useful life.
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After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

If at the reporting date there is an indication that previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is 
reassessed, and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to maximum of depreciable historical cost.

2.7.	 Taxation

Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except to the extent it 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax comprises the tax payable or receivable on taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or 
receivable in respect of previous years. Current tax is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. The amount of current tax 
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering uncertainty related to 
income taxes, if any. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income or in equity).

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended 
to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

With effect from 1 April 2019, with introduction of Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019, where section 115BAA was introduced 
in the Income-tax Act, 1961 proposing option to compute income tax liability at revised taxation rates. Further, under section 115JB 
(MAT provisions) a sub-section was introduced stating non-applicability of Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) provisions on the companies 
exercising option to pay income tax under section 115BAA. The tax expense for the current financial year 2020-21 and previous year 
2019-2020, has been computed considering the revised tax provisions and thereby the provisions of MAT are not applicable to the 
Company.

MAT policy applicable before 1 April 2019, MAT under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 was recognised as current tax in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The credit available under the Income-tax Act, 1961 in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only 
when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT 
credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused tax loss, unused tax 
credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which 
they can be used. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable 
income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each 
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset 
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or 
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The 
measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the 
reporting date to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there 
is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis 
or simultaneously. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit 
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

2.8.	 Employee benefits

	 Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as a paid annual leave) where the absences 
are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing 
and bonuses payable within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and non-
monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis.

	 Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as under:

	 Defined contribution plans

The Company has a defined contribution plans namely provident fund, pension fund and employees state insurance scheme. The 
contribution made by the Company in respect of these plans are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Defined benefit plans

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. Where in the employee 
will receive on retirement is defined by reference to employee's length of service and last drawn salary. Under the defined benefit plans, 
the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. 
The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been set 
aside. The liability recognised in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of the Defined Benefit 
Obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of 
independent actuaries. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in other comprehensive 
income.

	 Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides the benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long-term employee 
benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to be availed after one year from the Balance 
Sheet date is estimated in the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit 
method as on the reporting date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which such gains or losses are determined.

	 Share based payment

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the option determined at the grant date of the equity settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight line basis 
over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase 
in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. 
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss such that the cumulative 
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

In respect of re-pricing of existing stock option, the incremental fair value of the option on the date of re-pricing is accounted for as 
employee cost over the remaining vesting period.

2.9.	 Expected credit losses and write-off of financial assets

	 Loan assets

Loans are classified into performing and non-performing assets in terms of policy adopted by the Company, subject to minimum 
classification and provisioning norms required under ‘Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021’ issued by RBI from 
time to time.

All loan exposures to borrowers with instalment structure are stated at disbursed value after netting off:

i.	 unearned income

ii.	 instalments appropriated up to the year end

Under Ind AS, the Company’s assets have been classified as follows based on Exposure at Default:

•	 Stage 1: Performing Assets

•	 Stage 2: Under Performing Assets

•	 Stage 3: Non-Performing Assets

Under Ind AS, asset classification and provisioning moves from the ‘rule based’, incurred losses model to the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 
model of providing for expected future credit losses. Thus, loan loss provisions are made on the basis of the Company’s historical loss 
experience, future expected credit loss and after factoring in various macro-economic parameters

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan 
assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default, defined as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per “Definition of 
default and credit-impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (12 months PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the 
obligation.

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022
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Loss Given Default (LGD) – LGD represents the Company’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type 
of counterparty, type and preference of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support.

Exposure at Default (EAD) – EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of default. For a revolving 
commitment, the Company includes the current drawn balance plus any further amount that is expected to be drawn up to the current 
contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.

Forward-looking economic information (including management overlay) is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD 
and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis.

	 Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement of loss 
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that 
result from all possible default events over the expected life of trade receivables.

	 Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased significantly since 
initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at 
an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial 
asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date 
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable 
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. 
The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset 
is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

	 Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Any 
subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instrument on statement of profit and loss.

2.10. Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount 
of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

•	 Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or

•	 Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related asset is disclosed.

2.11. Leases

	 Company as a Lessee:

At inception of a contract, Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease, a lease if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially 
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to 
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the 
end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined 
on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, 
if any, and adjusted for certain re measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. 
Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is re measured when there is a change in future 

lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be 
payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or 
termination option.

When the lease liability is re measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset 
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property and equipment’ and lease 
liabilities in ‘borrowings (other than debt securities)’ in the balance sheet.

2.12. Financial instruments

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity.

	 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial 
instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial 
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or 
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or 
financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

	 Financial assets

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when 
funds are disbursed to the customers

	 Classification and Subsequent measurement of financial assets

	 Financial assets are classified in to three categories for subsequent measurement:

•	 Financial asset at amortised cost

•	 Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

•	 Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss(FVTPL)

	 Financial asset at amortised cost

	 Financial instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment loss:

•	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

•	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on 
the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Financial assets (debt instruments) at FVOCI

	 Financial asset (debt instruments) is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

•	  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

•	 The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. Financial assets included within the above category are measured initially as 
well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, 
the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss. On 
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest 
earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

	 Financial Asset at FVTPL

Financial asset which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Financial 
assets classified under FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

	 De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) are derecognised (i.e. removed 
from the Company’s balance sheet) when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when 
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the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Company has not retained control, it shall 
also derecognise the financial asset and recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the 
transfer.

	 Financial liabilities

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance 
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of 
subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are 
determined based on the effective interest method.

	 Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method.

	 De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable 
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

2.13. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other 
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average 
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which 
could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if 
their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity 
shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential 
equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity 
shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

2.14. Foreign currency

	 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statement of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in 
which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Indian Rupees (INR), 
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

	 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, by applying the exchange rates on the foreign currency 
amounts at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to 
functional currency using the closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost 
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those at which 
they were initially recorded, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

2.15. Insurance Claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that there is no 
uncertainty in receiving the claims.

2.16. Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in 
cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months.

2.17. Share/Securities issue expense

Share/security issue expenses are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account as permissible under Section 52 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent any balance is available for utilisation in the Securities Premium Account. Share/security issue expenses in excess 
of the balance in the Securities Premium Account are expensed off in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.18. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowings of funds. Borrowing costs primarily include 
interest on amounts borrowed for the revenue operations of the Company. These are expensed to the statement of profit and loss using 
the EIR. All other Borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.19. Assets held for sale

Assets acquired by the Company under Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest 
Act, 2002. has been classified as assets held for sale, as their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale of asset. In 
accordance with Ind AS 105, the company is committed to sell these assets and they are measured at the lower of their carrying amount 
and the fair value less costs to sell.

2.20. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker 
(CODM). CODM is responsible for allocating the resources, assess the financial performance and position of the Company and make 
strategic decision.

2.21. Investment in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates

Investment in subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairment loss (if any) as per Ind AS 27- Separate Financial Statements.

2.22. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

	 Significant management judgements:

Expected credit loss (‘ECL’) – The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost 
requires use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. likelihood of 
customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Company makes significant judgements with regard to the following while assessing 
expected credit loss:

•	 Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

	 •	 Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the associated 
ECL; and

•	 Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

	 Significant estimates:

Provision for employee benefits - Provision for employee benefits, requires that certain assumptions such as expected future salary 
increases, average life expectancy and discount rates etc. are made in order to determine the amount to be recorded for retirement 
benefit obligations. Substantial changes in the assumed development of any of these variables may significantly change the Company’s 
retirement benefit obligations.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets – Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets 
at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic 
obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

	 Standard issued but not yet effective

No new standards as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"), through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules are effective for the current year.
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Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

3.	 Cash and cash equivalents	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

I. Cash on hand  117.26  53.61 

II. Balances with banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)

(a) Balance with banks in current accounts  55.96  4,051.21 

(b) Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months  14,206.94  19,204.64 

Sub-total (a and b)  14,262.90  23,255.85 

Total (I and II )  14,380.16  23,309.46 

4.	 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

I. Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months  14,779.54  14,612.61 

II. Deposit held as margin money under securitisation and borrowing agreements  3,869.67  3,445.70 

Total  18,649.21  18,058.31 

5.	 Loans	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

At amortised cost

Term loans  2,65,507.65  2,01,084.25 

Staff loans  179.62  133.04 

Total gross  2,65,687.27  2,01,217.29 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  3,434.82  3,100.33 

Total net  2,62,252.45  1,98,116.96 

Secured by tangible assets  2,65,687.27  2,01,217.29 

Total  2,65,687.27  2,01,217.29 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  3,434.82  3,100.33 

Total net  2,62,252.45  1,98,116.96 

Loans in India

Public sectors  -    -   

Others (individuals and other corporates)  2,65,687.27  2,01,217.29 

Total gross  2,65,687.27  2,01,217.29 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  3,434.82  3,100.33 

Total net  2,62,252.45  1,98,116.96 

5.1	 Loans granted by the Company are secured by equitable mortgage/registered mortgage of the property and/or undertaking to create 
a security by way of equitable mortgage of property.

5.2	 Loan details 
Particulars Principal Interest 

outstanding
Overcollateral Effective interest 

rate adjustment
Total

As at 31 March 2022 2,68,794.77 620.02 218.80 (3,946.32) 2,65,687.27

As at 31 March 2021 2,03,358.42 726.90 326.80 (3,194.83) 2,01,217.29

5.3	 There were no loans given against the collateral of gold jewellery and hence the percentage of such loans to the total outstanding asset 
is Nil (31 March 2021: Nil).

5.4	 Loans sanctioned but undisbursed amount to Rs.19,341.23 lakhs as on 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: 11,022.64 lakhs).

5.5	 The Company has securitised assets amounting to Rs.7,514.12 lakhs (31 March 2021: 6,143.84 lakhs). These loan assets have not been de-
recognised from the loan portfolio of the Company as these does not meet the de-recognition criteria. The Company is responsible for 
collection and servicing of this loan portfolio on behalf of buyers/investors. In terms of the said securitisation agreements, the Company 
pays to buyer/investor on monthly basis the prorated collection amount as per the respective agreement terms.

5.6	 During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has assigned pools of certain loans amounting to Rs. 27,326.80 lakh (31 March 2021: 
16,949.36 Lakhs) by way of a direct assignment transactions. These loans have been de-recognised from the loan portfolio of the 
Company as the sale of loan assets is an absolute assignment and transfer on a ‘no-recourse’ basis. The Company continues to act as a 
servicer to the assignment transaction on behalf of assignee. In terms of the assignment agreements, the Company pays to assignees, 
on a monthly basis, the pro-rata collection amounts.

	 The management has evaluated the impact of assignment transactions done during the year for its business model. Based on the future 
business plan, the Company’s business model remains to hold the assets for collecting contractual cash flows. 

5.7	 Expected credit loss
Expected credit loss is a calculation of the present value of the amount expected not to be recovered on a financial asset, for financial 
reporting purposes. Credit risk is the potential that the obligor and counterparty will fail to meet its financial obligations to the lender. 
This requires an effective assessment and management of the credit risk at both individual and portfolio level.

The references below show where the Company’s impairment assessment and measurement approach is set out in these notes. It 
should be read in conjunction with the Summary of significant accounting policies.

	 (i)	 Definition of default

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and considered it as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in 
all cases, when the borrower becomes more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments. The Probability of Default is an 
estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed year, 
if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

	 (ii)	 Exposure at default

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the financial instruments subject to the impairment calculation, 
addressing both the client’s ability to increase its exposure while approaching default and potential early repayments too.

	 iii)	 Loss given default

The Company segments its retail lending products into homogeneous portfolios, based on key characteristics that are relevant to 
the estimation of future cash flows. The data applied is collected loss data and involves a wider set of transaction characteristics (e.g., 
product type, wider range of collateral types, loan to value (LTV) ratio, expected realisation rate, etc.) as well as borrower characteristics. 

	 iv)	 Significant increase in credit risk

The Company continuously monitors all assets subject to ECL. In order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of 
instruments is subject to 12 month ECL or lifetime ECL, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit 
risk since initial recognition. The Company considers an exposure to have significantly increased in credit risk when contractual 
payments are more than 30 days past due.

When estimating ECL on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Company applies the same principles for assessing 
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

	 v)	 Delinquency buckets have been considered as the basis for the staging of all loans with:

0-30 days past due loans classified as stage 1,

31-90 days past due loans classified as stage 2 and

> 90 days past due loans classified as stage 3

- Accounts restructured during COVID as per RBI notification and standard as on 31 March 2022 are grouped under Stage 2.

- Pursuant to the RBI circular dated 12 November 2021- “Prudential norms on income recognition, Asset classification, and Provisioning 
pertaining to Advances-Clarifications”, the Company has aligned its system of asset classification norms as directed by RBI. Such 
alignment has resulted in transition of sub 90 DPD assets of INR 1,211.02 Lakhs as additional non-performing assets/Stage 3 as at 31 
March 2022.

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)
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	 vi)	 Macro economic factors

Macro-economic variables relevant to the underlying loan portfolio such as Gross Domestic Product, Inflation, Housing Price Index 
and 10 year bond yield were analysed for their correlation. Based on the analysis of trend, the Company has considered the 10 year 
bond yield as relevant macro-economic factor as it shows improved correlation with the portfolio performance.

	 vii)	 Credit quality of asset

The Company has classified all individual loans as amortised cost and has assessed it at the collective pool level. The individual loan 
book has been divided into the housing and non-housing (Loan against property) sub portfolios.

The vintage analysis methodology has been used to create the PD term structure which incorporates both 12 month (Stage 1 Loans) 
and lifetime PD (Stage 2 Loans). The vintage analysis captures a vintage default experience across a particular portfolio by tracking 
the yearly slippages from advances originating in a particular year. The vintage slippage experience/default rate is then used to build 
the PD term structure.

The workout methodology has been used to determine LGD wherein the recoveries of loans defaulted in past are tracked and 
discounted to the date of default using the effective interest rate. The worked out LGD for loans has been bucketed into various levels 
of collateral cover. LGD based on collateral cover has been applied to each loan in the portfolio based on specific collateral cover 
adjusted for the expected fall in valuation. The Company has used the adjusted collateral value based on management estimate to 
reflect the forward looking LGD given the expected fall in property price due to COVID19.

	 viii)	 An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loans is, as follows:

Reconciliation of gross carrying amount balance is as follows:

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Loans to customers at amortised cost

Balance as at 01 April 2020  1,47,074.63  2,087.05  1,956.93  1,51,118.61 

Transfer to Stage 1  798.34  (619.37)  (178.97)  -   

Transfer to Stage 2  (4,413.91)  4,560.49  (146.58)  -   

Transfer to Stage 3  (3,000.17)  (798.08)  3,798.25  -   

New financial assets originated  85,744.63  80.70  105.23  85,930.56 

Financial assets that have been de-recognised/repaid  (32,773.14)  (317.13)  (600.48)  (33,690.75)

Balance as at 31 March 2021  1,93,430.38  4,993.66  4,934.38  2,03,358.42 

Loans to customers at amortised cost

Balance as at 01 April 2021  1,93,430.38  4,993.66  4,934.38  2,03,358.42 

Transfer to Stage 1  2,218.23  (1,530.37)  (687.86)  -   

Transfer to Stage 2  (5,400.36)  6,532.42  (1,132.06)  -   

Transfer to Stage 3  (2,543.74)  (1,049.85)  3,593.59  -   

New financial assets originated  1,21,607.30  148.33  82.56  1,21,838.19 

Financial assets that have been de-recognised/repaid  (54,296.15)  (398.97)  (1,086.70)  (55,781.82)

Balance as at 31 March 2022  2,55,015.67  8,695.22  5,703.90  2,69,414.79 

		  Reconciliation of ECL balance is as follows:		
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Balance as at 01 April 2020  906.15  36.30  676.80  1,619.25 

Transfer to Stage 1  7.33  (5.81)  (1.52)  -   

Transfer to Stage 2  (134.95)  139.55  (4.60)  -   

Transfer to Stage 3  (1,015.17)  (246.82)  1,261.99  -   

ECL re-measurements due to changes in EAD/assumptions (net)  1,339.71  232.23  (100.89)  1,471.05 

New financial assets originated  363.79  2.44  27.91  394.14 

Financial assets that have been de-recognised/repaid  (89.05)  (4.52)  (290.54)  (384.11)

Balance as at 31 March 2021*  1,377.81  153.37  1,569.15  3,100.33 

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

5.7	 Expected credit loss (contd.)

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

5.7	 Expected credit loss (contd.)

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Balance as at 01 April 2021  1,377.81  153.37  1,569.15  3,100.33 

Transfer to Stage 1  16.61  (11.21)  (5.40)  -   

Transfer to Stage 2  (218.21)  324.36  (106.15)  -   

Transfer to Stage 3  (639.41)  (244.88)  884.29  -   

"ECL re-measurements due to  
changes in EAD/assumptions 
 (net)"

 654.15  232.79  (516.60)  370.34 

New financial assets originated  509.13  5.98  21.89  537.00 

Financial assets that have been de-recognised/repaid  (162.72)  (15.65)  (394.48)  (572.85)

Balance as at 31 March 2022*  1,537.36  444.76  1,452.70  3,434.82 

*includes ECL amount of Rs.3.32 lakhs(31 March 2021: 15.49 lakhs) created on securitised loans derecognised from the books which 
has been adjusted from EAD as at 31 March 2022.

	 ix)	 A comparison between provisions required under Income recognition, asset classification and provision norms (IRACP) and 
impairment allowances made under IND AS 109

		  As at 31 March 2022
Asset classification as per RBI 
Directions

Asset 
classifi-

cation as 
per Ind AS 

109

Gross 
carrying 

amount as 
per Ind AS*

Loss 
allowance 
as per Ind 

AS*

Net 
Carrying 
Amount

Provision 
required as 
per IRACP 

norms

Difference 
between 

Ind AS 109 
provisions and 
IRACP norms

Performing assets

Standard assets Stage 1 2,55,015.67 1,536.26 2,53,479.41 815.98 720.28

Stage 2 8,695.22 444.69 8,250.53 285.65 159.04

Sub-total 2,63,710.89 1,980.95 2,61,729.94 1,101.63 879.32

Non- performing assets (NPA)

Substandard Stage 3 4,475.84 1,100.26 3,375.58 920.27 179.99

Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 1,195.08 348.17 846.91 451.33 (103.16)

Doubtful - 1 to 3 years Stage 3 5.33 0.41 4.92 5.33 (4.92)

Doubtful - More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -

Sub-total for doubtful 1,200.41 348.58 851.83 456.66 (108.07)

Loss Stage 3 27.65 1.71 25.93 27.65 (25.93)

Sub-total for NPA 5,703.90 1,450.55 4,253.35 1,404.57 45.98

Other items such as guarantees, loan 
commitments, etc. which are in the 
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered 
under current (IRACP) norms

Stage 1 19,341.23 73.10 19,268.13 - 73.10

Stage 2 - - - -

Stage 3 - - - -

Subtotal 19,341.23 73.10 19,268.13 - 73.10

Total

Stage 1 2,74,356.90 1,609.36 2,72,747.54 815.98 793.38

Stage 2 8,695.22 444.69 8,250.53 285.65 159.04

Stage 3 5,703.90 1,450.55 4,253.35 1,404.57 45.98

Total 2,88,756.02 3,504.60 2,85,251.42 2,506.20 998.39
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5.7	 Expected credit loss (contd.)

		  As at 31 March 2021
Asset classification as per RBI 
Directions

Asset 
classifi-

cation as 
per Ind AS 

109

Gross 
carrying 

amount as 
per Ind AS*

Loss 
allowance 
as per Ind 

AS*

Net 
Carrying 
Amount

Provision 
required as 
per IRACP 

norms

Difference 
between 

Ind AS 109 
provisions and 
IRACP norms

Performing assets

Standard assets Stage 1*  1,93,430.38  1,373.54  1,92,056.84  626.12  747.42 

Stage 2  4,993.66  152.75  4,840.91  36.84  115.91 

Stage 3**  1,315.69  409.31  906.38  131.42  277.89 

Sub-total  1,99,739.73  1,935.60  1,97,804.13  794.38  1,141.22 

Non- performing assets (NPA)

Substandard Stage 3  2,857.44  895.79  1,961.65  462.47  433.32 

Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3  717.56  238.23  479.33  221.62  16.61 

Doubtful - 1 to 3 years Stage 3  20.27  6.38  13.89  10.76  (4.38)

Doubtful - More than 3 years Stage 3  -    -    -    -    -   

Sub-total for doubtful  737.83  244.61  493.22  232.38  12.23 

Loss Stage 3  23.43  8.84  14.59  23.43  (14.59)

Sub-total for NPA  3,618.70  1,149.24  2,469.46  718.28  430.97 

Other items such as guarantees, loan 
commitments, etc. which are in the 
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered 
under current (IRACP) norms

Stage 1  11,022.64  54.65  10,967.99  -    54.65 

Stage 2  -    -    -    -    -   

Stage 3  -    -    -    -    -   

Subtotal  11,022.64  54.65  10,967.99  -    54.65 

Total

Stage 1  2,04,453.02  1,428.19  2,03,024.83  626.12  802.07 

Stage 2  4,993.66  152.75  4,840.91  36.84  115.91 

Stage 3  4,934.39  1,558.55  3,375.84  849.71  708.85 

Total  2,14,381.06  3,139.49  2,11,241.58  1,512.66  1,626.83 

* Does not includes ECL amount of Rs. 3.32 lakhs(31 March 2021: Rs. 15.49 lakhs) created on securitised loans derecognised from the 
books which has been adjusted from EAD and EIR impact.

** Loans which were restructured during the year as per RBI notification no. RBI/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 
dated 6 August 2020 and standard as on 31 March 2021 have been classified under respective stage where they were prior to 
restructuring for the purpose of computation of ECL.

6.	 Investments 	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

At fair value through profit and loss

Investments in India

Mutual funds  17,532.00  -   

Total  17,532.00  -   

7.	 Other financial assets	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Security deposits 261.88  214.35 

Receivables on securitised loans (refer note a) 38.01  27.79 

EIS receivable on direct assignment (refer note b) 5903.74  2,425.87 

Other receivables 32.38  157.25 

Total gross  6,236.01  2,825.26 

Less: Impairment loss allowance (on EIS Receivable assets)  (40.80)  (16.71)

Total  6,195.21  2,808.55 

Note:

a)	 Receivables on securitised loans is amount receivable towards collections made, presently lying with buyers and recoverable by the 
Company as at the end of the year.

b)	 Under Ind AS, with respect to Assignment deals, Company has created an Excess Interest Spread (EIS) receivable, with corresponding 
credit to Statement of Profit and loss for the year, which has been computed by discounting EIS to present value.

8.	 Current tax assets/ (liabilities) (net)			 
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Income tax advance/ (liabilities)(net)  (432.22)  3.55 

Total  (432.22)  3.55 

9.	 Deferred tax assets (net)	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Deferred tax assets 

Provision for employee benefits  110.80  76.79 

Difference in written down value as per Companies Act and Income Tax Act  57.44  53.40 

Impairment loss allowance on loans  893.13  681.83 

Unamortised processing fees on loans  999.57  804.07 

Lease liabilities  31.32  26.11 

Provision for impairment on assets held for sale  15.41  9.01 

Others  -    1.10 

Deferred tax liabilities

Unamortised borrowing cost  (331.57)  (121.95)

EIS receivable on direct assignment  (1,481.04)  (596.71)

Net deferred tax assets  295.06  933.65 

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)
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Movement in deferred tax assets (net)
Particulars As at 

1 April 2021
(Charged)/ 
credited to 

statement of 
profit and loss

Credited/
(charged) 
to other 

comprehensive 
income

As at 
31 March 2022

Deferred tax assets 

Provision for employee benefits  76.79  10.83  23.18  110.80 

Difference in written down value as per Companies Act 
and Income Tax Act

 53.40  4.04  -    57.44 

Impairment loss allowance on loans  681.83  211.30  -    893.13 

Unamortised processing fees on loans  804.07  195.50  -    999.57 

Lease liability  26.11  5.21  -    31.32 

Provision for impairment on assets held for sale  9.01  6.40  -    15.41 

Others  1.10  (1.10)  -    0.00 

Deferred tax liabilities  -   

Unamortised borrowing cost  (121.95)  (209.62)  -    (331.57)

EIS receivable on direct assignment  (596.71)  (884.33)  -    (1,481.04)

Net deferred tax assets  933.65  (661.77)  23.18  295.06 

Movement in deferred tax assets (net)
Particulars As at 

1 April 2020
(Charged)/ 
credited to 

statement of 
profit and loss

Credited/
(charged) 
to other 

comprehensive 
income

As at 
31 March 2021

Deferred tax assets 

Provision for employee benefits  95.99  (26.35)  7.15  76.79 

Difference in written down value as per Companies Act 
and Income Tax Act

 43.89  9.51  -    53.40 

Impairment loss allowance on loans  295.77  386.06  -    681.83 

Unamortised processing fees on loans  669.86  134.21  -    804.07 

Lease liability  20.25  5.86  -    26.11 

Provision for impairment on assets held for sale  7.85  1.16  -    9.01 

Others  1.10  -    -    1.10 

Deferred tax liabilities

Fair valuation of financial instruments through profit and 
loss

 (9.03)  9.03  -    0.00 

Unamortised borrowing cost  (119.54)  (2.41)  -    (121.95)

EIS receivable on direct assignment  -    (596.71)  -    (596.71)

Net deferred tax assets  1,006.14  (79.63)  7.15  933.65 

9.	 Deferred tax assets (net) (contd.)

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

10.	 Property, plant and equipment
Gross block Freehold 

land
Plant and equipment 
- computer and other 

related equipment

Office 
equipment

Furniture 
and fixtures

Vehicles Leasehold 
improvements

Right-of-
use assets*

Total

Balance as at 01 April 2020 9.17 384.84 150.39 154.91 22.29 368.78 1,525.24 2,615.62

Additions during the year - 94.80 17.14 4.49 55.45 11.98 616.15 800.01

Disposals/adjustments - (57.37) (25.68) (8.75) - (20.72) (676.92) (789.44)

Balance as at 31 March 2021 9.17 422.27 141.85 150.65 77.74 360.04 1,464.47 2,626.19

Additions during the year - 223.25 48.83 0.44 214.42 20.96 447.87 955.77

Disposals/adjustments - (0.57) (4.29) (4.73) (39.08) (15.64) (315.92) (380.24)

Balance as at 31 March 2022 9.17 644.95 186.38 146.36 253.08 365.36 1,596.42 3,201.72

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 01 April 2020 - 301.76 87.99 67.33 10.00 187.58 339.77 994.43

Depreciation charge for the year 60.52 22.34 12.53 4.16 55.65 289.63 444.83

Disposals/adjustments (54.67) (24.85) (6.48) - (11.79) (118.41) (216.20)

Balance as at 31 March 2021 - 307.61 85.48 73.38 14.16 231.44 510.99 1,223.06

Depreciation charge for the year - 89.73 30.27 12.36 24.29 55.72 383.19 595.56

Disposals/adjustments - (0.37) (3.70) (3.27) (16.58) (15.47) (234.79) (274.18)

Balance as at 31 March 2022 - 396.97 112.05 82.47 21.87 271.69 659.39 1,544.44

Net block

Balance as at 31 March 2021 9.17 114.66 56.37 77.27 63.58 128.60 953.48 1,403.13

Balance as at 31 March 2022 9.17 247.98 74.33 63.89 231.21 93.67 937.03 1,657.28

11.	 Other intangible assets
Gross block Total

Balance as at 01 April 2020  295.43 

Additions during the year  9.22 

Balance as at 31 March 2021  304.65 

Additions during the year  -   

Disposal during the year  (24.47)

Balance as at 31 March 2022  280.18 

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 01 April 2020  131.90 

Amortisation charge during the year  65.01 

As at 31 March 2021  196.91 

Amortisation charge during the year  58.34 

Disposal during the year  (21.61)

Balance as at 31 March 2022  233.64 

Net block

Balance as at 31 March 2021  107.74 

Balance as at 31 March 2022  46.54 

12.	 Other non-financial assets
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Prepaid expenses 427.86  453.58 

Capital advances 40.35  15.95 

Advance to employees 47.02  44.46 

Advance to suppliers 112.44  88.07 

Balance with government authorities 149.99  572.91 

Total 777.66  1,174.97 
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13.	 Trade payables
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

(i)  total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 34)  -    12.12 

(ii)  total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 459.41  450.63 

Total 459.41  462.75 

Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022
Particulars MSME Others Disputed dues – 

MSME
Disputed dues - 

Others

 Less than 1 year  -    459.41  -    -   

 1-2 years  -    -    -    -   

 2-3 years  -    -    -    -   

 More than 3 years  -    -    -    -   

Total  -    459.41  -    -   

Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2021
Particulars MSME Others Disputed dues – 

MSME
Disputed dues - 

Others

 Less than 1 year  12.12  450.63  -    -   

 1-2 years  -    -    -    -   

 2-3 years  -    -    -    -   

 More than 3 years  -    -    -    -   

Total  12.12  450.63  -    -   

14.	 Debt securities (at amortised cost)
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Secured

Non-convertible debentures (including interest accrued)  18,659.85  8,222.38 

Total  18,659.85  8,222.38 

Debt securities in India  18,659.85  8,222.38 

Debt securities outside India -  -   

Total  18,659.85  8,222.38 

i)	 150 (31 March 2021: 150), @ 10.25% Secured listed non-convertible debentures (NCD) of face value Rs. 10,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 
1,500 lakhs repayable on 12 June 2023 . The date of allotment was 12 June 2020. The amount outstanding as on 31 March 2022 Rs.1500 
Lakh (31 March 2021: Rs. 1,500 Lakh).

	 (These NCD having exclusive first charge floating via a deed of hypothecation over specific standard asset portfolio of receivables to the 
extent equal to an amount aggregating to the total outstanding such that the value of security shall be equal of 1.10 times).

ii)	 5,000 (31 March 2021: Nil), @ 8.68% Secured listed non-convertible debentures (NCD) of face value Rs.1,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 
5,000 lakhs repayable on 27 December 2023. The date of allotment is 22 June 2021. The amount outstanding as 31 March 2022 Rs. 5,000 
Lakhs (31 March 2021: Nil).

	 (These NCD having exclusive first charge floating via a deed of hypothecation over specific standard asset portfolio of receivables to the 
extent equal to an amount aggregating to the total outstanding and interest accrued thereon shall be maintained at all times until the 
redemption of these NCD such that the value of security shall be equal of 1.28 times).

iii)	 500 (31 March 2021: Nil), @ 9.29% Secured listed non-convertible debentures of face (NCD) value Rs.10,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 
5,000 lakhs payable in 7 half yearly installment ending on 21 March 2025. The date of allotment of NCD was 23 November 2021. The 
amount outstanding as 31 March 2022 Rs. 5,000 lakhs (31 March 2021: Nil).

	 (These NCD are secured by way of a first ranking exclusive and continuing charge created pursuant to the deed of hypothecation over 
certain identified receivables of the Issuer. A security cover of 1.10 times of the value of the aggregate principal amount outstanding on 
the NCD and interest accrued thereon (if any) shall be maintained at all times until the redemption of these NCD). 

iv)	 300 (31 March 2021: Nil), @ 8.75% Secured listed non-convertible debentures of face (NCD) value Rs.10,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 
3,000 lakhs repayable on 31 August 2026. The date of allotment of NCD was 31 August 2021. The amount outstanding as at 31 March 
2022 Rs. 3,000 lakhs (31 March 2021: Nil).

	 (These NCD are secured by way of a first ranking exclusive and continuing charge created pursuant to the deed of hypothecation over 
certain identified receivables of the Issuer. A security cover of 1.10 times of the value of the aggregate principal amount outstanding on 
the NCD shall be maintained at all times until the redemption of these NCD). 

v)	 350 (31 March 2021: Nil), @ 9.25% Secured listed non-convertible debentures of face (NCD) value Rs.10,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 
3,500 lakhs repayable on 15 September 2026. The date of allotment of NCD was 15 September 2021. The amount outstanding as 31 
March 2022 Rs. 3,500 lakhs (31 March 2021: Nil).

	 (These NCD are secured by way of a first ranking exclusive and continuing charge created pursuant to the deed of hypothecation over 
certain identified receivables of the Issuer. A security cover of 1.28 times of the value of the aggregate principal amount outstanding on 
the NCD and interest accrued thereon (if any) shall be maintained at all times until the redemption of these NCD). 

vi)	 Amounts repayable from the date of balance sheet*
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

less than 1 year 1,500.00  -   

one to three years 10,000.00  1,500.00 

three to five years 6,500.00  5,000.00 

more than five years  -    -   

*All the above mentioned repayments disclosed as per the contractual maturities of principal amount of debt securities.

15.	 Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

At amortised cost

(a)	Term loans - Secured (including interest accrued)

	 (i)	 from banks  1,24,741.85  73,434.06 

	 (ii)	 from other parties

		  - National housing bank  34,404.92  52,854.52 

		  - Financial institutions  23,956.16  9,919.00 

(b)	Lease liabilities  1,061.43  1,057.19 

(c)	Liability against securitised assets (net of over collateralisation amount)  4,176.76  3,641.88 

Total  1,88,341.12  1,40,906.65 

Borrowings in India  1,88,341.12  1,40,906.65 

Borrowings outside India  -    -   

Total  1,88,341.12  1,40,906.65 

i)	 Secured term loans from National Housing Bank carry rate of interest in the range of 3% to 7.35% p.a (31 March 2021: 3.00% to 7.80%). 
The loans are having tenure of 1 to 15 years from the date of disbursement and are repayable in quarterly or yearly installments. These 
loans are secured by hypothecation (exclusive charge) of certain loans given by the Company.

ii)	 Secured term loans from banks and financial institutions include loans from various banks and financial institutions and carry rate of 
interest in the range of 7.5% to 11.2% p.a (31 March 2021: 7.65% to 11.20%). The loans are having tenure of 34 to 120 months from the 
date of disbursement and are repayable in monthly or quarterly installments. These loans are secured by hypothecation (exclusive 
charge) of certain loans given by the Company.

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

14.	 Debt securities (at amortised cost) (contd.)



130 | India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited   Annual Report 2021-22 | 131

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

iii)	 In addition to above, the term loans amounting to Rs. Nil (31 March 2021: Rs. 4,306 lakhs ) from banks and Rs. Nil (31 March 2021: Rs. 2,500 
lakhs) from National Housing Bank are also personally guaranteed by a director.

iv)	 The Company is not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender, in accordance with the guidelines on 
willful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India, during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

v)	 The Company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of loans and the quarterly details filed by 
the Company with the banks and financial institutions are in accordance with the books of accounts of the Company for the respective 
quarters.

vi)	 The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of debt, borrowings(other than debt securities) and interes thereon for the year ended 
31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

Terms of principal repayment of borrowings as at 31 March 2022*
Particulars Number of 

installments
Monthly 

repayment
Number of 

installments
Quarterly 

repayment
less than one year 557  31,201.15  112  16,448.85 
one to three years 939  53,928.88  182  25,000.15 
three to five years 542  28,868.31  113  12,636.96 
more than five years  267  10,649.92  97  10,451.12 

Terms of principal repayment of borrowings as at 31 March 2021*
Particulars Number of 

installments
Monthly 

repayment
Number of 

installments
Quarterly 

repayment
less than one year 372  17,209.20  97  17,728.06 
one to three years 677  32,932.06  225  25,801.10 
three to five years 315  15,165.62  145  16,528.68 
more than five years 105  4,334.20  131  11,441.61 

*All the above mentioned repayments disclosed as per the contractual maturities of principal amount of borrowings (other than debt 
securities).

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:
Particulars Debt securities Borrowings 

(other than debt 
securities)

Total

01 April 2020  24,588.20  68,872.16  93,460.36 
Cash flows:
-Repayments  (17,857.15)  (25,184.81)  (43,041.96)
-Proceeds  1,500.00  97,840.90  99,340.90 
-Payment of lease liability  -    (321.68)  (321.68)
Non-cash:
-Amortization of upfront fees and others (net)  182.97  (192.56)  (9.59)
-Accrued interest (net)  (191.64)  (220.31)  (411.95)
-Recognition of lease liabilities  -    112.95  112.95 
31 March 2021  8,222.38  1,40,906.65  1,49,129.03 
Cash flows:
-Repayments  (5,000.00)  (66,456.29)  (71,456.29)
-Proceeds  16,500.00  1,14,063.55  1,30,563.55 
-Payment of lease liability  -    (446.22)  (446.22)
Non-cash:
-Amortisation of upfront fees and others (net)  (137.98)  (261.35)  (399.33)
-Accrued interest (net)  (924.55)  84.32  (840.23)
-Recognition of lease liabilities  -    450.46  450.46 
31 March 2022  18,659.85  1,88,341.12  2,07,000.97 

15.	 Borrowings (Other than debt securities) (contd.) 16.	 Other financial liabilities 
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Employee related payable 1464.75  854.30 

Payable towards assignment transactions 1055.71  512.21 

Advance received from customers 410.28  376.54 

Payable towards securitisation transactions 305.99  225.05 

Insurance payables 99.78  120.71 

Total  3,336.51  2,088.81 

17.	 Provisions 
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Provisions for employee benefits

- Provision for gratuity (Refer note 36) 365.01  253.74 

- Provision for compensated absences 75.21  51.34 

Impairment loss allowance on Undrawn commitments  73.10  54.65 

Total  513.32  359.73 

18.	 Other non-financial liabilities 
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Book Overdraft 2615.24  297.09 

Statutory dues payables 151.80  199.80 

Total  2,767.04  496.89 

19.	 Equity share capital 
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

(a)	 Authorised capital

	 8,10,00,000 (31 March 2021: 81,000,000) equity shares of  Rs. 10 each  8,100.00  8,100.00 

(b)	 Issued capital

	 4,37,06,655 (31 March 2021: 4,29,78,405) equity shares of Rs. 10 each  4,370.67  4,297.84 

(c)	 Subscribed and paid up capital 

	 4,37,06,655 (31 March 2021: 4,29,78,405) equity shares of Rs. 10 each  4,370.67  4,297.84 

(d)	 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period 
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  4,29,78,405  4,28,30,155 

Issued during the year (Refer note (e) below)  7,28,250  1,48,250 

Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year  4,37,06,655  4,29,78,405 

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

(e)	 Issue of shares against exercise of ESOPs

A)	 During the current year, the Board of Directors have approved allotment of 7,28,250 equity shares to 14 option holders, who exercised 
their options as per the following:

a.	 92,250 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 3.27 each (aggregating to Rs. 12.24 lakhs) vide circular dated on 25 July 2021 & 06 
January 2022.
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b.	 5,000 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 4.18 each (aggregating to Rs. 0.71 lakhs) vide circular dated on 06 January 2022.

c.	 50,000 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs.10.32 each (aggregating to Rs. 10.16 lakhs) vide circular dated on 29 April 2021 & 25 
July 2021.

d.	 5,62,500 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs.73.20 each (aggregating to Rs. 468 lakhs) vide circular dated on 25 July 2021 , 08 
August 2021 & 23 August 2021

e.	 12,000 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs.108.48 each (aggregating to Rs. 14.22 lakhs) vide circular dated on 08 August 2021

f.	 6,000 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs.149.01 each (aggregating to Rs. 9.54 lakhs) vide circular dated on 08 August 2021

g.	 500 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs.169.92 each (aggregating to Rs. 0.90 lakhs) vide circular dated on 08 August 2021

B)	 During the previous year, the Board of Directors vide circular/resolution dated 10 January 2021 have approved allotment of 1,48,250 
equity shares to 9 option holders, who exercised their options as per the following:

a.	 1,38,250 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 3.27 each (aggregating to Rs. 18.35 lakhs).

b.	 10,000 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 4.18 each (aggregating to Rs. 1.42 lakhs).

(f )	 Terms and conditions of the main features of each class of shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per 
share. The Company will pay dividend as and when declared. The dividend as and when proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to 
the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible 
to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to shareholding.

(g)	 Detail of shareholders holding 5 percent or more
Name of shareholders As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021
No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding

Sequoia Capital India Investments III - 0.00% 14,48,776 3.37%
Nexus Ventures III Limited 99,61,798 22.79% 99,61,798 23.18%
Sequoia Capital India Growth Investments I - 0.00% 21,70,560 5.05%
WestBridge Crossover Fund, LLC 1,08,54,151 24.83% 1,08,54,151 25.25%
Milestone Trusteeship Services Private Limited acting as trustee for 
Madison India opportunity trust fund

23,79,954 5.45% 23,79,954 5.54%

Aravali Investment Holdings 1,42,11,409 32.52% 1,05,92,073 24.65%
Nexus Opportunity Fund II, Ltd. 29,10,037 6.66% 29,10,037 6.77%

(h)	 Shares held by promoter
Name of Promoter As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021
 % change 
during the 

yearNo. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding
Anil Mehta  8,20,367 1.88%  10,95,367 2.55% (25.11%)
WestBridge Crossover Fund, LLC (w.e.f 26 October 2021)  1,08,54,151 24.83%  -    -   
Aravali Investment Holdings (w.e.f 26 October 2021)  1,42,11,409 32.52%  -    -   

(i)	 Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares

The Company has reserved 30,38,344 (31 March 2021: 24,63,494) number of shares for a pool of employee stock options/right to 
subscribe to equity shares representing 6.50% (31 March 2021: 5.42%) of share capital for the benefit of employees on such terms and 
conditions as determined by the Investors and Board of Directors. This include 3,55,000 Rights to Subscribe to equity shares to Mr. Anil 
Mehta approved by Board of Directors in their meeting held on 28 April, 2016.

(j)	 The Company (except disclosed above) has not allotted any shares for consideration other than cash, bonus shares and shares bought 
back for the five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

(k)	 The Board of Directors have not proposed any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

19.	 Equity share capital (contd.)
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20.	 Other equity 	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Securities premium  68,577.83  67,824.59 

Statutory reserve  6,992.50  4,423.56 

Employee share based payment reserve  833.95  550.11 

Retained earnings  26,837.69  16,630.86 

Total  1,03,241.97  89,429.12 

Nature and purpose of other reserve

Securities premium

Securities premium represents premium received on issue of shares. The amount is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory reserve 

This reserve is created as per the provision of Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 (read with Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income-
tax Act, 1961).

The Company transfers amount at least 20% of the total comprehensive income after tax to Statutory reserve.

Employee share based payment reserve

This reserve is used to recognise the fair value of the options issued to employees of the Company under Company’s employee stock option 
plan.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.

21.	 Interest income (on financial assets measured at amortised cost)
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
Interest on loans  35,663.21  25,719.71 
Interest on investments  566.16  28.86 
Interest on deposits with banks  1,471.99  1,658.48 
Income on securitised loans  63.38  50.16 
Total  37,764.74  27,457.21 

22.	 Fees and commission income
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
Fee based income 1,602.65  999.26 
Total  1,602.65  999.26 

23.	 Net gain on fair value changes
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
On trading portfolio
- Investments 458.85  291.85 
Total net gain on fair value changes  458.85  291.85 
Fair value changes
- Realised 428.13  291.85 
- Unrealised  30.72  -   
Total net gain on fair value changes  458.85  291.85 
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24.	 Other income
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

Marketing support income  1,172.55  587.20 

Gain on termination of leases 8.22  22.02 

Liabilities no longer required, written back  2.03  -   

Total  1,182.80  609.22 

25.	 Finance costs (on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost)
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

(a)	 Interest expenses on

- Borrowings 13,264.25  8,352.47 

- Debt securities 1,043.86  1,611.33 

- Securitised loans 427.46  485.04 

(b)	 Other borrowing costs

- Securitisation expense 2.37  7.49 

- Interest expense on lease liabilities 91.93  77.33 

- Other interest expense 3.99  1.15 

Total  14,833.86  10,534.81 

26.	 Impairment on financial instruments (measured at amortised cost)
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

Impairment loss on loans  352.97  1,515.97 

Net loans written off*  811.81  452.05 

Impairment loss on EIS receivable  24.09  16.71 

Total  1,188.87  1,984.73 

*Net of bad debt recovery of INR 123.36 lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 66.06 lakhs)

27.	 Employee benefits expenses
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

Salaries, wages and bonus  8,913.41  5,665.43 

Contribution to provident and other funds  540.92  328.56 

Share based payments to employees  594.12  161.21 

Staff welfare expenses  92.17  13.38 

Total  10,140.62  6,168.58 

28.	 Depreciation and amortisation
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 10)  595.56  444.83 

Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 11)  58.34  65.01 

Total  653.90  509.84 

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

29.	 Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

Legal and professional charges 260.40  221.82 

Loan processing cost 284.48  161.30 

Advertisement and marketing expenses 132.09  77.88 

Rent and hire charges 84.53  67.63 

Travelling and conveyance 213.49  138.92 

Information technology expense 680.14  496.21 

Communication expenses 80.94  66.70 

Rates and taxes expenses 3.97  2.92 

Repairs and maintenance - others 52.63  50.95 

Office expenses 106.19  69.68 

Electricity and water expenses 88.95  55.56 

Printing, stationery and office supplies 24.43  23.92 

Workshop, seminar and conference expenses 15.70  5.66 

Insurance expenses 160.43  119.17 

Directors' sitting fees 27.47  31.07 

Auditor's remuneration (Refer note 29.1 below)  38.15  32.00 

Bank charges 34.90  36.67 

Loss on derecognition of property, plant and equipment  6.39  14.65 

Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer note 29.2 below) 146.54  90.00 

Loss on Stock of Acquired Properties 12.30  4.62 

Miscellaneous expenses 19.02  18.85 

Total  2,473.14  1,786.18 

29.1 Auditor’s remuneration
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

a)	 As auditors

- Statutory audit including limited review  31.00 27.50

- Certification and other charges  6.20  3.70 

b)	 for re-imbursement of expenses  0.95  0.80 

29.2 Expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, the Company 
is required to spend for CSR activities in accordance with its CSR policy. The details of the CSR expenses for the year are as under:

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

a)	 Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 146.54  90.00 

b)	 Amount spent during the year on:

i)	 Construction/acquisition of any asset  -    -   

ii)	 On purpose other than (a) above

	 Contribution towards Trust/NGOs  146.54  90.00 

c)	 Amount unpaid  -    -   
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30.	 Tax expense
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

In respect of the current year  3,183.62  2,477.20 

 3,183.62  2,477.20 

Deferred tax charge/(credit)  661.78  79.63 

 661.78  79.63 

Total income tax expense recognised (excluding tax recognised in other comprehensive 
income)

 3,845.40  2,556.83 

The major components of tax expense and the reconciliation of the expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate and the 
reported tax expense in statement of profit and loss, is as follows:

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

Profit before tax  16,690.11  11,295.69 

Applicable tax rate 25.17% 25.17%

Expected tax expense [A]  4,200.57  2,842.90 

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit  80.39  13.83 

Deductions under section 80JJAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961  (52.80)  (38.90)

Deductions under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961  (382.76)  (261.00)

Total  3,845.40  2,556.83 

With introduction of Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 in previous year, where section 115BAA was introduced in the Income-tax 
Act, 1961 proposing option to compute income tax liability at revised taxation rates, the Company has elected to exercise the option and 
thereby the applicable tax rates have reduced from 29.12% to 25.17%.The tax expense for the current financial year and previous financial 
year, has been computed considering the revised tax provisions.

Income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

Income tax relating to re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans  23.18  7.15 

Total  23.18  7.15 

31.	 Expenditure in foreign currency
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

Software license expense					     197.67  149.96 

Total  197.67  149.96 

The Company’s unhedged foreign currency exposure as on 31 March 2022 is Nil (31 March 2021: Nil).

For the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
Particulars Unhedged Hedged through forward or 

derivative
Natural 
hedge

</=1 
year

> 1 year Total </=1year > 1 year Total </=1 
year

Foreign currency (FCY) receivables

Exports  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Loans to Joint Venture/Wholly Owned Subsidiary (JV/
WOS)

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Others  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Particulars Unhedged Hedged through forward or 
derivative

Natural 
hedge

</=1 
year

> 1 year Total </=1year > 1 year Total </=1 
year

FCY payables

Imports  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Trade credits  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other FCY loans  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

INR to USD swaps  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

32.	 Segment reporting
The Company is a housing finance company registered with the National Housing Bank predominantly engaged in a single business 
segment i.e. providing housing loans and loan against properties in India only, which has similar nature of products and services, type/class 
of customers and the nature of the regulatory environment, risks and returns and accordingly there are no separately reportable business or 
geographical segments as per the Indian Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS’) 108 on Operating Segments. The aforesaid is in line with the way 
operating results are reviewed and viewed by the chief operating decision maker. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in these financial 
statements relate to the Company’s single business segment.

33.	 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

a)	 In respect of following:

- Income tax matters  445.23  445.23 

b)	 Commitments

- Undrawn loans commitments  19,341.23  11,022.64 

- Capital commitments  5.00  2.05 

Note:

The Company received income tax notice under section 143(3) of the Income Tax Act ,1961 (the Act) dated 25 December 2019 for tax demand 
amounting to Rs. 445.23 lakhs on account of unexplained credit under Section 68 of the Act for assessment year 2017-18. In response to such 
notice, the Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals). The Company has deposited Rs. 89.05 lakhs under 
protest. The legal proceeding when ultimately concluded will not, in the opinion of the management, have a material effect on the financial 
position of the Company. Above amount does not include the contingencies, the likelihood of which is remote.

34.	 Disclosures as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021
(i)	 the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier 

at the end of each accounting year;
- Principal due Nil 12.12
- Interest due Nil Nil

(ii)	 the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment 
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

Nil Nil

(iii)	 the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006;

Nil Nil

31.	 Expenditure in foreign currency (contd.)

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

(iv)	 the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting 
year; and

Nil Nil

(v)	 the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 
23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Nil Nil

35.	 Assets held for sale
The Company has obtained possession of certain properties mortgaged by customers, under Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial 
Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (The SARFAESI Act, 2002), which shall be sold to realise the loan and other amounts 
receivable by the Company. The Company is in the process of selling these properties and has classified these as assets held for sale.

36.	 Employee benefit plans
A)	 Defined contribution plans

Provident and other funds

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees 
towards provident fund and other funds which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than this to make 
the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as they accrue.

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

Employer's contribution to provident and other funds  540.92  328.56 

 540.92  328.56 

B)	 Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian Rupee) is calculated using a discount rate which is 
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

Interest risk

The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of 
providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability.

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants 
both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in 
future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the 
present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan’s liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31 
March 2022 by Mr. Ashok Kumar Garg (FIAI M.No. 00057), Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined 
benefit obligation, and the related current service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Principal assumptions 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Discount rate(s) 7.00% 7.00%

Expected rate(s) of salary increase 10.00% 10.00%

Retirement age 58 58

Withdrawal rate 8.00% 8.00%

In service mortality IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

Service cost:

Current service cost  148.93  89.74 

Interest cost  17.76  11.31 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss  166.69  101.05 

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:

Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from changes in financial assumptions  -    35.68 

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience adjustments  92.12  (7.29)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income  92.12  28.39 

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation  365.01  253.74 

Fair value of plan assets  -    -   

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation  365.01  253.74 

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2022

Year ended 
31 March 2021

Opening defined benefit obligation  253.74  161.62 

Current service cost  148.93  89.74 

Interest cost  17.76  11.31 

Remeasurement (gains)/losses:

Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from changes in financial assumptions  -    35.68 

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience adjustments  92.12  (7.29)

Past service cost, including losses/(gains) on curtailments  -    -   

Benefits paid  (147.54)  (37.32)

Closing defined benefit obligation  365.01  253.74 

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase, mortality, etc. 
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the 
end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

- If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher (lower), the defined benefit obligation would decrease by Rs. 37.95 lakhs (increase by Rs. 44.40 
lakhs) [31 March 2021: 24.82 lakhs (increase by Rs. 29.76 lakhs)].

- If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by 100 basis points, the defined benefit obligation would increase by Rs. 42.67 lakhs 
(decrease by Rs. 37.31 lakhs) [31 March 2021: increase by Rs. 28.58 lakhs (decrease by Rs. 24.40 lakhs)].

36.	 Employee benefit plans (contd.)
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Sensitivities due to change in mortality rate and change in withdrawal rate are not expected to be material and hence impact of such change 
is not calculated.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that 
the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the 
projected unit credit method at the end of reporting period.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Other disclosures

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligations

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Average duration of the defined benefit obligation (in years)

Less than 1 year  7.03  24.32 

Between 1-2 years  3.06  1.21 

Between 2-5 years  9.82  6.26 

Over 5 years  345.10  221.95 

 -The expected contributions to the plan for the next year is INR 219.03 lakh.

37.	 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
Assets 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 14,380.16 - 14,380.16 23,309.46 - 23,309.46
Bank balance other than cash and cash 
equivalents

17,789.59 859.62 18,649.21 16,062.94 1,995.37 18,058.31

Loans 36,602.66 2,25,649.79 2,62,252.45 9,870.88 1,88,246.08 1,98,116.96
Investments 17,532.00 - 17,532.00 - - -
Other financial assets 2,225.83 3,969.38 6,195.21 1,192.74 1,615.81 2,808.55
Non-financial assets -
Current tax assets (net) - - - - 3.55 3.55
Deferred tax assets (net) - 295.06 295.06 - 933.65 933.65
Property, plant and equipment - 1,657.28 1,657.28 - 1,403.13 1,403.13
Other intangible assets - 46.54 46.54 - 107.74 107.74
Other non-financial assets 556.52 221.14 777.66 427.21 747.76 1,174.97
Assets held for sale 336.54 - 336.54 347.85 - 347.85
Total assets 89,423.30 2,32,698.81 3,22,122.11 51,211.08 1,95,053.09 2,46,264.17
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
(i)	 total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 

and small enterprises
- - 12.12 - 12.12

(ii)	 total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

459.41 - 459.41 450.63 - 450.63

Debt securities 1,955.81 16,704.04 18,659.85 111.08 8,111.30 8,222.38
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 47,675.60 1,40,665.52 1,88,341.12 34,703.38 1,06,203.27 1,40,906.65
Other financial liabilities 3,336.51 - 3,336.51 2,088.81 - 2,088.81

36.	 Employee benefit plans (contd.)

Assets 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

Non-financial liabilities -
Provisions 84.58 428.74 513.32 84.89 274.84 359.73
Current tax liabilities (Net) 432.22 - 432.22 - - -
Other non-financial liabilities 2,767.04 - 2,767.04 496.89 - 496.89
Total liabilities 56,711.17 1,57,798.30 2,14,509.47 37,947.80 1,14,589.41 1,52,537.21
Net 32,712.12 74,900.50 1,07,612.64 13,263.28 80,463.68 93,726.96

Classification of assets & liabilities under maturity buckets is based on estimates and assumptions of the company.

38.	 Financial instruments
38.1Capital management
Capital

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy 
requirements of the National Housing Bank (NHB) and Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored using, 
among other measures, the regulations issued by NHB and RBI.

Capital management

The capital management objectives of the Company are:

- to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements, if any and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy 
capital ratios

- to ensure the ability to continue as a going concern

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Debt

Borrowings(other than debt securities)  1,88,341.12  1,40,906.65 

Debt securities  18,659.85  8,222.38 

Cash and cash equivalents  (14,380.16)  (23,309.46)

Net debt  1,92,620.81  1,25,819.57 

Total equity  1,07,612.64  93,726.96 

Net debt to equity ratio  1.79  1.34 

Management assesses the capital requirements of the Company in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company 
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the 
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends, issue new shares, 
moderate business growth or sell assets to reduce debt.

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022
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37.	 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (contd.)
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38.2 Categories of financial instruments
The carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities are as follows:

As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Fair value 

through profit 
or loss

Fair value through 
other comprehensive 

income

Amortised cost Total carrying 
value

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    14,380.16  14,380.16 

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  -    -    18,649.21  18,649.21 

Loans  -    -    2,62,252.45  2,62,252.45 

Investments  17,532.00  -    -    17,532.00 

Other financial assets  -    -    6,195.21  6,195.21 

Total financial assets  17,532.00  -    3,01,477.03  3,19,009.03 

Financial liabilities

Trade payables  -    -    459.41  459.41 

Debt securities  -    -    18,659.85  18,659.85 

Borrowings (Other than debt securities)  -    -    1,88,341.12  1,88,341.12 

Other financial liabilities  -    -    3,336.51  3,336.51 

Total financial liabilities  -    -    2,10,796.89  2,10,796.89 

As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Fair value 

through profit 
or loss

Fair value through 
other comprehensive 

income

Amortised cost Total carrying 
value

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    23,309.46  23,309.46 

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  -    -    18,058.31  18,058.31 

Loans  -    -    1,98,116.96  1,98,116.96 

Other financial assets  -    -    2,808.55  2,808.55 

Total financial assets  -    -    2,42,293.28  2,42,293.28 

Financial liabilities

Trade payables  -    -    462.75  462.75 

Debt securities  -    -    8,222.38  8,222.38 

Borrowings (Other than debt securities)  -    -    1,40,906.65  1,40,906.65 

Other financial liabilities  -    -    2,088.81  2,088.81 

Total financial liabilities  -    -    1,51,680.59  1,51,680.59 

38.3 Fair value measurement of assets and liabilities
- Fair value hierarchy

Assets and liabilities are measured at fair value in the financial statements and are grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three 
Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

• Level 1:	Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active markets;

• Level 2:	Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

• Level 3:	Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Asset measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Financial Assets carried at fair value through profit and loss

Investments in mutual fund  17,532.00  17,532.00 

Assets measured at fair value on a non recurring basis

Assets held for sale  -    336.54  -    336.54 

As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Asset measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Assets measured at fair value on a non recurring basis

Assets held for sale  -    347.85  -    347.85 

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are recorded and 
measured at fair value in the Company’s financial statements:

a)	 Mutual funds - Units held in Mutual funds are valued based on their published Net asset value (NAV) and such instruments are classified 
under Level 1.

b)	 Asset held for sale - Assets held for sale valuation are basis independent valuations by a specialist in valuing these type of assets. The 
best estimate of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar assets.

38.4 Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost
Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are calculated using Level 
3 inputs:

As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Carrying 

value
Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents  14,380.16  14,380.16  14,380.16 

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  18,649.21  18,649.21  18,649.21 

Loans  2,62,252.45  2,62,252.45  2,62,252.45 

Other financial assets  6,195.21  6,195.21  6,195.21 

 3,01,477.03  -    -    3,01,477.03  3,01,477.03 

Financial liabilities

Trade payables  459.41  -    -    459.41  459.41 

Debt securities  18,659.85  18,659.85  18,659.85 

Borrowings (Other than debt securities)  1,88,341.12  1,88,341.12  1,88,341.12 

Other financial liabilities  3,336.51  3,336.51  3,336.51 

 2,10,796.89  -    -    2,10,796.89  2,10,796.89 

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
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38.3 Fair value measurement of assets and liabilities (contd.)
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38.3 Fair value measurement of assets and liabilities (contd.)

As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Carrying 

value
Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents  23,309.46  -    -    23,309.46  23,309.46 

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  18,058.31  -    -    18,058.31  18,058.31 

Loans  1,98,116.96  -    -    1,98,116.96  1,98,116.96 

Other financial assets  2,808.55  -    -    2,808.55  2,808.55 

 2,42,293.28  -    -    2,42,293.28  2,42,293.28 

Financial liabilities

Trade payables  462.75  -    -    462.75  462.75 

Debt securities  8,222.38  -    -    8,222.38  8,222.38 

Borrowings (Other than debt securities)  1,40,906.65  -    -    1,40,906.65  1,40,906.65 

Other financial liabilities  2,088.81  -    -    2,088.81  2,088.81 

 1,51,680.59  -    -    1,51,680.59  1,51,680.59 

The management is of view that the fair value of bank balances and cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other financial 
assets, trade payables, borrowings including debt securities and other financial liabilities that are being carried at amortised cost, approximates 
to their respective net carrying value.

38.5. Financial risk management
Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed 
to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit risk Loan receivables, cash and bank 
balances, investments, financial 
assets measured at amortised cost

Expected loss analysis Credit risk analysis, diversification of 
customers/asset base, high rated bank 
deposits, credit limits and collateral.

Liquidity risk Business commitments and other 
liabilities

Rolling cash flow forecasts Maintaining adequate cash reserves and 
undrawn credit facilities, by continuously 
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, 
and by matching the maturity profiles of 
financial assets and liabilities.

Market risk - interest rate Borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis Funding strategies to ensure diversified 
resource-raising options to minimize cost 
and maximize stability of funds. and Asset 
Liability Management Committee supervise 
an interest rate sensitivity report periodically 
for assessment of interest rate risks.

The Board has the overall responsibility of risk management. There are two committees of the Board which takes care of managing overall 
risk in the organisation. In accordance with the RBI guidelines to enable Housing Finance Companies to adopt best practices and greater 
transparency in their operations, the Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee to review risk 
management in relation to various risks, namely, credit risk, and operational risk, and an Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) to 
review the liquidity and market risk.

a)	 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may occur from the failure of any party to abide by the terms and conditions of any contract, principally 
the failure to make required payments of amounts due to the Company. In its lending operations, the Company is principally exposed 
to credit risk.

The credit risk is governed by various product policies. The product policies outlines the type of products that can be offered, customer 
categories, the targeted customer profile and the credit approval process and limits. The Company measures, monitors and manages 
credit risk at an individual borrower level. The credit risk for individual borrowers is being managed at portfolio level for both Housing 
Loans and Non-housing Loans. The Company has a structured and standardised credit approval process, which includes a well-
established procedure of comprehensive credit appraisal.

	 Credit risk arises from loan financing, cash and cash equivalents, investments and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as 
shown below:

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Loans  2,62,252.45  1,98,116.96 
Cash and cash equivalents  14,380.16  23,309.46 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  18,649.21  18,058.31 
Investments  17,532.00  -   
Other financial assets  6,195.21  2,808.55 

	 Credit risk management

The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system and external ratings.

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying 
bank deposits and accounts in different banks across the country.

	 Loans

The customers are primarily low and middle -income, salaried and self-employed individuals. The credit officers evaluate credit proposals 
on the basis of active credit policies as on the date of approval. The criteria typically include factors such as the borrower’s income and 
obligations, the loan-to-value ratio and demographic parameters subject to regulatory guidelines. Any deviations need to be approved 
at the designated levels.

The various process controls such as PAN Number Check, CERSAI database scrubbing, Credit Bureau Report analysis are undertaken prior 
to approval of a loan. Individual loans are secured by the mortgage of the borrowers property.

	 Investments

Investments are generally made in mutual funds. Credit risk related to these investments is managed by monitoring the recoverability 
of such amounts continuously.

	 Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes security deposits and others. Credit risk related to these other financial assets 
is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously.

b)	 Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through 
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due.

Management of the Company monitors forecast of liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash 
flows. The Asset Liability Management Policy aims to align market risk management with overall strategic objectives, articulate current 
interest rate view and determine pricing, mix and maturity profile of assets and liabilities. The asset liability management policy involves 
preparation and analysis of liquidity gap reports and ensuring preventive and corrective measures. It also addresses the interest rate risk 
by providing for duration gap analysis and control by providing limits to the gaps. 

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022
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38.5. Financial risk management (contd.)
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38.5. Financial risk management (contd.)

Maturities of financial assets
31 March 2022	 Less than 1 

year
1-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 

years
Total

Cash and cash equivalents  14,380.16  -    -    -    14,380.16 

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  17,789.59  784.18  75.44  -    18,649.21 

Loans  37,114.84  73,535.98  58,811.42  99,952.55  2,69,414.79 

Investments  17,532.00  -    -    -    17,532.00 

Other financial assets  2,225.83  2,762.75  1,126.04  80.59  6,195.21 

Total  89,042.42  77,082.91  60,012.90  1,00,033.14  3,26,171.37 

31 March 2021 Less than 1 
year

1-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 
years

Total

Cash and cash equivalents  23,309.46  -    -    -    23,309.46 

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  16,062.94  1,868.43  101.64  25.30  18,058.31 

Loans  9,870.88  23,528.34  29,174.48  1,40,784.73  2,03,358.43 

Other financial assets  1,192.74  1,120.57  495.24  -    2,808.55 

Total  50,436.02  26,517.34  29,771.36  1,40,810.03  2,47,534.75 

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for 
all non-derivative financial liabilities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances 
as the impact of discounting is not significant.

31 March 2022	 Less than 1 
year

1-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 
years

Total

Borrowings (Other than debt securities)  47,972.87  78,929.03  41,505.27  21,101.04  1,89,508.21 

Debt securities  1,963.93  10,000.00  6,846.26  -    18,810.19 

Trade payables  459.41  -    -    -    459.41 

Other financial liabilities  3,336.51  -    -    -    3,336.51 

Total  53,732.72  88,929.03  48,351.53  21,101.04  2,12,114.32 

31 March 2021 Less than 1 
year

1-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 
years

Total

Borrowings (Other than debt securities)  35,175.87  58,733.16  31,694.30  15,775.81  1,41,379.14 

Debt securities  123.42  1,500.00  6,611.30  -    8,234.72 

Trade payables  462.75  -    -    -    462.75 

Other financial liabilities  2,088.81  -    -    -    2,088.81 

Total  37,850.85  60,233.16  38,305.60  15,775.81  1,52,165.42 

c.	 Public disclosure on Liquidity Risk of India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited as on 31 March 2022 in accordance with RBI circular No. 
RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC(PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 04 November 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for 
Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) including Core Investment Companies and RBI circular No. RBI/2020-21/60 DOR.NBFC(HFC).
CC.No.118/ 03.10.136/2020-21 dated 22 October 2020 for regulatory framework for Housing Finance Companies (HFCs).

Funding concentration based on significant counterparty*# (borrowings)
Number of significant counterparties				    As at  

31 March 2022

Amount % of total 
liabilities

29  1,97,713.82 92.17%

Number of significant counterparties				    As at  
31 March 2021

Amount % of total 
liabilities

20				     1,40,419.16 92.06%

*A significant counterparty is a single counterparty that has an amount outstanding for more than 1% of the total liabilities as on the 
reporting date.

Funding concentration based on significant instrument/product*#
Name of the instrument As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021
Amount % of total 

liabilities
Amount % of total 

liabilities
Term loans from banks and financial institutions  1,49,495.11 46.41%  83,574.58 54.79%
Term loans from National Housing Bank  34,415.56 10.68%  52,866.79 34.66%
Non-convertible debentures  18,000.00 5.59%  6,500.00 4.26%
Securitisation  4,176.76 1.30%  3,641.88 2.39%

 2,06,087.43  1,46,583.25 

*A significant instrument/product is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/products which in aggregate 
amount to more than 1% of the total liabilities.

Top 10 borrowings#
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021
Amount % of total 

borrowings
Amount % of total 

borrowings
Term Loan/NCD/Securitisation  1,20,527.77 58.48%  1,13,206.11 77.23%

#All the above mentioned outstanding borrowings are disclosed at principal contractual liability.

Stock Ratios:
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Commercial papers issued to total liabilities Nil Nil

Commercial papers issued to total assets Nil Nil

NCD (original maturity < one year) to total liabilities Nil Nil

NCD (original maturity < one year) to total assets Nil Nil

Other short-term liabilities to total liabilities 3.06% 2.00%

Other short-term liabilities to total assets 2.04% 1.24%

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

38.5. Financial risk management (contd.)

The tables below analyse the financial assets and liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual 
maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows except EIS receivables on direct assignment included 
in other financial assets. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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38.5. Financial risk management (contd.)

c)	 Market risk

	 Interest rate risk

	 Liabilities

The policy of the Company is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term loans and borrowings. As at 31 March 2022, 
the Company is exposed to changes in market interest rates through loans and bank borrowings at variable interest rates.

	 Interest rate risk exposure

	 Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Variable rate borrowing  1,73,329.79  1,03,837.45 
Fixed rate borrowing  28,580.89  39,103.92 
Total borrowings  2,01,910.68  1,42,941.37 

	 Sensitivity

Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity changes in interest rates:

Particulars Impact on profit before tax
Year ended 

31 March 2022
Year ended 

31 March 2021
Interest rate - Increase by 100 basis points*  1,368.45  697.28 
Interest rate - Decrease by 100 basis points*  (1,368.45)  (697.28)

* Holding all other variables constant

39.	 Related party transactions
List of related parties:

i. Holding Company WestBridge Crossover Fund, LLC (w.e.f 26 October 2021)
ii. Wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Company

India Shelter Capital Finance Limited (w.e.f 24 March 2022)

iii. Key management personnel a. Anil Mehta - Chairman and Non-Executive Director (w.e.f 23 November 2021, Managing 
Director and Chief Executive Officer ( till 22 November 2021))
b. Rupinder Singh- Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer  (w.e.f. 23 November 2021)* 
b. Ashish Gupta - Chief Financial Officer
c. Mukti Chaplot - Company Secretary
d. GV Ravishankar - Nominee Director (till 26 October 2021)
e Anup Gupta - Nominee Director
f. Sumir Chadha - Nominee Director
g. Anisha Motwani - Independent Director ( till 17 February 2021)
h. Shailesh J Mehta -  Nominee Director ( w.e.f 03 November 2021, Independent Director till 
2 November 2021)
i. Rachna Dikshit - Independent Director (w.e.f 12 February 2021)
j. Sudhin Choksey- Nominee Director (w.e.f. 3 November 2021)
k. Sunil Bhumralkar- Additional Independent Director (w.e.f. 31 March  2022)

iv. Entities having significance influence a. WestBridge Crossover Fund, LLC (Holder of Equity Shares) (till 25 October 2021)
b. Nexus Ventures III Ltd, Mauritius (Holder of Equity Shares)
c. Aravali Investment Holdings (Holder of Equity Shares)

v. Relative of key management personnel 
- (where there are transactions)

Gaj Singh Mehta - Father of Anil Mehta

Ankit Aggarwal - Husband of Mukti Chaplot

* Rupinder Singh has been appointed as Executive Director w.e.f. 12 May 2021 and re-designated as managing Director and Chief Executive 
officer w.e.f. 23 November 2021

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Transactions with related parties
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

Rent paid  3.41  3.56 

Transaction with key management personnel
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

Short- term benefits  942.51  555.81 

Contribution to pension funds and gratuity payment  178.81  15.27 

Sitting fees  26.25  28.50 

Proceeds from issue of equity shares  10.66  16.27 

Sale of Assets 8.63  -   

* Based on perquisite value computed as per Income tax Act,1961

Amount payable to key management personnel
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Short-term benefits  379.56  220.77 

Note 1: The KMPs are covered under the Company’s gratuity policy, compensated absences policy and ESOP scheme along with other 
eligible employees of the Company. Proportionate amount of gratuity expenses, provision for compensated absences and ESOP expenses 
are not included in the aforementioned disclosures as it cannot be separately ascertained.

Note 2: During the current year, the Board of Directors vide circular resolution dated 06 January 2022 allotted 75,000 equity shares (31 March 
2021: 1,20,000 equity shares) to Mr. Anil Mehta and 5,000 equity shares(31 March 2021: 2500) to Mrs. Mukti Chaplot pursuant to exercise 
of Employee Share Option Plan (ESOP) as per the ESOP schemes. Further, 10,40,000 ESOP (31 March 2021: 10,000) were granted to to Key 
Managerial personnel’s in the current year.

Note 3: Term loans amounting to Rs. Nil (31 March 2021: Rs. 4,306 lakhs ) from banks and Rs. Nil (31 March 2021: Rs. 2,500 lakhs) from National 
Housing Bank are personally guaranteed by Mr. Anil Mehta.

Note 4: The Company has incorporated wholly owned subsidiary India Shelter Capital Finance Limited on 24 March 2022 to carry on lending 
business as Non-Banking Finance Company subject to receipt of regulatory approvals.

Balances outstanding as at the year end 
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Share capital

WestBridge Crossover Fund, LLC  1,085.42  1,085.42 

Aravali Investment Holdings  1,421.14  1,059.21 

Nexus Ventures III Ltd  996.18  996.18 

Anil Mehta  82.04  109.54 

Ankit Aggarwal*  0.75  0.75 

Ashish Gupta  1.00  -   

Mukti Chaplot  1.35  0.25 

*Holds equity shares allotted before 4 February 2020 on exercise on employee stock options.

39.	 Related party transactions (contd.)
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40.	 Earnings per share
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

Profits for the year  12,844.71  8,738.86 

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic earnings per share  4,33,99,740  4,28,62,737 

Effect of dilutive potential equity shares- Employee Stock Options and right to subscribe  4,88,921  11,32,392 

Total weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted earnings per share  4,38,88,661  4,39,95,129 

Earnings per share on profit for the year (Face value of Rs. 10 per share)

a) Basic earnings per share (Rs.)  29.60  20.39 

b) Diluted earnings per share (Rs.)  29.27  19.86 

41.	 Lease related disclosures
The Company has leases for office building, branches and related facilities and cars. With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-
value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. Variable lease payments which 
do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded from the initial measurement of the lease liability and right-of-use assets. The Company 
classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner to its property, plant and equipment.

Each lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company to sublease the asset to another party, the 
right-of-use asset can only be used by the Company. Some leases contain an option to extend the lease for a further term.

A	 Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability

	 The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Short-term leases  84.53  67.63 

Leases of low value assets  -    -   

Variable lease payments  -    -   

B	 Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2022 was Rs. 446.22 lakhs (31 March 2021: 321.68 lakhs).

C	 The Company has total commitment for short-term leases as at 31 March 2022 Rs.Nil (31 March 2021: Nil ).

D	 Maturity of lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease payments were as follows:

31 March 2022 Minimum lease payments due

Within 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years More than 5 
years

Total

Lease payments  445.33  329.37  199.12  169.00  57.81  37.86  1,238.49 

Interest expense  78.74  49.29  27.16  13.96  5.84  2.07  177.06 

Net present values  366.59  280.08  171.96  155.04  51.97  35.79  1,061.43 

31 March 2021 Minimum lease payments due

Within 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years More than 5 
years

Total

Lease payments  384.41  355.68  204.84  113.36  93.83  58.96  1,211.08 

Interest expense  68.25  39.25  22.29  11.45  6.61  6.04  153.89 

Net present values  316.16  316.43  182.55  101.91  87.22  52.92  1,057.19 

E	 There are no variable lease agreements.

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022
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41.	 Lease related disclosures (contd.)

F	 Information about extension and termination options

	 As at 31 March 2022
Right of use assets Number of 

leases
Range of 

remaining 
term

Average 
remaining 
lease term

Number of leases 
with extension 

option

Number of leases 
with purchase 

option

Number of leases 
with termination 

option

Office premises 104 1 to 7 years 2.60 years 104 - 104

Car lease 2 1-2 years 1.5 years - - -

	 As at 31 March 2021
Right of use assets Number of 

leases
Range of 

remaining 
term

Average 
remaining 
lease term

Number of leases 
with extension 

option

Number of leases 
with purchase 

option

Number of leases 
with termination 

option

Office premises  122  1 to 8 years  2.60 years  122  -    122 

Car lease  5  3-4 years  2.5 years  -    -    -   

G	 The total future cash outflows as at 31 March 2022 for leases that had not yet commenced is of Rs. Nil (31 March 2021: Nil).

42.	 Employee Stock Option Scheme
The Company provides Employee Stock option schemes to its employees. For the year ended 31st March 2022 following Employee Stock 
Option Plans (ESOPs) were in existence. The relevant details of the schemes and the grants are as below:

Particulars ESOP 2012

Date of grant 01 October 2012 01 October 2013 15 March 2014 22 January 2015 08 June 2016

Exercise price Rs. 13.27 per 
option

Rs. 14.18 per 
option

Rs. 16.84 per 
option

Rs. 20.32 per 
option

Rs. 83.20 per 
option

Vesting dates:

Tranche I* 01 October 2013 01 October 2014 01 October 2014 21 January 2016 09 June 2017

Tranche II* 01 October 2014 01 October 2015 01 October 2015 21 January 2017 09 June 2018

Tranche III* 01 October 2015 01 October 2016 01 October 2016 21 January 2018 09 June 2019

Tranche IV* 01 October 2016 01 October 2017 01 October 2017 21 January 2019 09 June 2020

* Grant on 01 October 2012, 01 October 2013, 15 March 2014 and 22 January 2015 to be vested equally in each tranche. However, option 
granted on 08 June 2016 to be vested in the ratio of (3:5:5:7)

Particulars ESOP 2017

Date of grant 31 January 
2018

15 February 
2019

17 May 2019 13 August 
2019

04 November 
2019

01 July 2020 17 September 
2020

Exercise price Rs.118.48 per 
option

Rs. 159.01 per 
option

Rs. 179.92 per 
option

Rs. 184.55 per 
option

Rs. 189.56 per 
option

Rs. 197.80 per 
option

Rs. 197.80 per 
option

Vesting dates:

Tranche I (10% of the 
options granted)

31 January 
2019

15 February 
2020

17 May 2020 13 August 
2020

04 November 
2020

01 July 2021 17 September 
2021

Tranche II (20% of the 
options granted)

31 January 
2020

15 February 
2021

17 May 2021 13 August 
2021

04 November 
2021

01 July 2022 17 September 
2022

Tranche III (30% of the 
options granted)

31 January 
2021

15 February 
2022

17 May 2022 13 August 
2022

04 November 
2022

01 July 2023 17 September 
2023

Tranche IV (40% of the 
options granted)

31 January 
2022

15 February 
2023

17 May 2023 13 August 
2023

04 November 
2023

01 July 2024 17 September 
2024
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Particulars ESOP 2021

Date of grant 31 August 2021 02 November 2021 01 February 2022 31 March 2022

Exercise price Rs.309.59 per option Rs.315.57 per option Rs.315.57 per option Rs.340.71 per option

Vesting dates:

Tranche I (20% of the options granted) 31-Aug-22 02-Nov-22 01-Feb-23 31-Mar-23

Tranche II (20% of the options granted) 31-Aug-23 02-Nov-23 01-Feb-24 31-Mar-24

Tranche III (20% of the options granted) 31-Aug-24 02-Nov-24 01-Feb-25 31-Mar-25

Tranche IV (20% of the options granted) 31-Aug-25 02-Nov-25 01-Feb-26 31-Mar-26

Tranche V (20% of the options granted) 31-Aug-26 02-Nov-26 01-Feb-27 31-Mar-27

Reconciliation of options under each plan
Particulars ESOP 2012 ESOP 2017 ESOP 2021

Number of 
options

Amount Number of 
options

Amount Number of 
options

Amount

Outstanding as at 31 March 2021  8,09,750  511.43  5,41,000  968.27  -    -   

Granted during the year  -    -    -    -    19,04,595  5,973.66 

Forfeited during the year  -    -    -    -    22,500  69.99 

Exercised during the year  7,09,750  491.11  18,500  24.66  -    -   

Expired during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Outstanding as at 31 March 2022  1,00,000  20.32  5,22,500  943.61  18,82,095  5,903.67 

Exercisable at the end of the year  1,00,000  -    1,67,000  273.91  -    -   

The value of the underlying shares has been determined by an independent valuer. The following assumptions were used for calculation of 
fair value of grants in accordance with Black Scholes model, for options granted during the financial year:

Particulars

Risk free interest rate 5.19% to 6.38%

Expected life of option 3.6 yrs to 5.6 yrs

Expected Volatility 24% to 29%

Dividend yield 0%

The risk free interest rates are determined based on the Government bond yields with maturity equal to the expected term of the option. 
Volatility calculation is based on historical stock prices of relevant index using standard deviation of daily change in index price. The historical 
period is taken into account to match the expected life of the option. Dividend yield has been considered taking into account the historical 
and expected rate of dividend on equity share price as on grant date.

43	 Disclosures required by Reserve Bank of India(‘RBI’)
Additional disclosures required in terms of Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2021 RBI/2020-21/73/DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated 17 February, 2021 issued by RBI.

43.01  Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR)
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

CRAR % 55.87% 71.51%

CRAR-Tier I capital % 55.35% 70.81%

CRAR-Tier II capital % 0.52% 0.70%

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- II Capital  -    -   

Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments  -    -   

42.	 Employee Stock Option Scheme (contd.)

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

43.02  Reserve fund u/s 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987 ("NHB Act, 1987")
As per Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to transfer at least 20% of net profits every year to 
Reserve Fund. The Company has transferred an amount of Rs. 2,568.94 Lakh (March 31, 2021 Rs. 1,747.77 Lakh)

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year

a.	 Statutory reserve u/s 29 C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987  1,213.82  566.78 

b.	 Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act 1961 taken into account for 
the purposes of Statutory reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

 3,209.74  2,109.01 

Total  4,423.56  2,675.79 

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year

a.	 Add:- Amount transferred u/s 29 C of the NHB Act, 1987  868.94  647.04 

b.	 Add:- Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act 1961 taken into 
account for the purposes of Statutory reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

 1,700.00  1,100.73 

c.	 Less:- Amount appropriated from the Statutory reserve  u/s 29 C of the NHB Act, 1987  -    -   

d.	 Less:- Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act 
1961 which has been taken into account for the purposes of provision under Section 
29C of the NHB Act, 1987

 -    -   

Balance at the end of the year

a.	 Statutory Reserve u/s 29 C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987  2,082.76  1,213.82 

b.	 Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act 1961 taken into account for 
the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

 4,909.74  3,209.74 

Balance at the end of the year  6,992.50  4,423.56 

43.03 A) Investments
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Value of investments

(i)	 Gross value of investments

(a) In India  17,532.00  -   

(b) Outside India  -    -   

(ii)	Provisions for depreciation

(a) In India  -    -   

(b) Outside India  -    -   

(iii)	Net value of investments

(a) In India  17,532.00  -   

(b) Outside India  -    -   

B) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

(i)	 Opening balance - -

(ii)	 Add: Provisions made during the year - -

(iii)	 Less: Write-off/written back of excess provision during the year  -  -   

(iv)	 Closing balance  -    -   

43.04  Derivatives
1	 The Company has no transactions/exposure in derivatives in the current and previous year.

2	 The Company has no unhedged foreign currency exposure on 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: Nil).
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43.05  Asset Liability Management (Maturity pattern of certain items of asset and liabilities)

As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Liabilities Assets

Borrowings* Debt securities* Loans# Investments

1 to 7 days  413.64  -    654.16  -   

8 to 14 days  132.44  -    109.03  -   

Over 14 days to one month  2,199.43  -    2,382.26  17,532.00 

Over 1 Month upto 2 Months  3,098.65  750.00  3,132.58  -   

Over 2 Months upto 3 Months  5,246.54  -    3,111.33  -   

Over 3 Months upto 6 Months  12,177.38  -    9,321.56  -   

Over 6 Months upto 1 Year  24,381.87  750.00  18,403.93  -   

Over 1 Year upto 3 Years  78,929.03  10,000.00  73,535.98  -   

Over 3 Years upto 5 Years  41,505.27  6,500.00  58,811.40  -   

Over 5 Years upto 7 Years  17,970.14  -    44,482.17  -   

Over 7 Years upto 10 Years  2,794.11  -    44,098.73  -   

Over 10 Years  336.79  -    11,371.66  -   

Total  1,88,639.22  18,000.00  2,69,414.79  17,532.00 

# Considering behaviourlised prepayment adjustment

As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Liabilities Assets

Borrowings* Debt securities* Loans# Investments

1 to 7 days  215.54  -    563.71  -   

8 to 14 days  69.01  -    93.95  -   

Over 14 days to one month  1,146.09  -    281.86  -   

Over 1 Month upto 2 Months  1,880.14  -    768.67  -   

Over 2 Months upto 3 Months  1,577.33  -    777.86  -   

Over 3 Months upto 6 Months  14,229.36  -    2,381.31  -   

Over 6 Months upto 1 Year  14,619.06  -    5,003.52  -   

Over 1 Year upto 3 Years  56,135.83  1,500.00  23,528.34  -   

Over 3 Years upto 5 Years  30,846.20  5,000.00  29,174.48  -   

Over 5 Years upto 7 Years  10,096.80  -    32,896.41  -   

Over 7 Years upto 10 Years  5,410.85  -    49,510.51  -   

Over 10 Years  215.12  -    58,377.81  -   

Total  1,36,156.79  6,500.00  2,03,358.43  -   

* The disclosures made are based on the contractual obligations.

43.06  Exposure:
1	 Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

(i) Direct Exposure
A.	 Residential Mortgage :

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be 
occupied by the borrower or that is rented.

 2,69,058.32  2,02,940.84 

B.	 Commercial Real Estate :
Lending fully secured by mortgages on commercial real estates.  356.47  417.58 

C.	 Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities and other securitised exposures:
a. Resident  -    -   
b. Commercial Real estate  -    -   

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

(ii)	 Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB)  and 
Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

 -    -   

	 * The disclosures made are based on the contractual obligations.

2	 As on 31 March 2022, the Company does not have any exposure to Capital Market (31 March 2021: Nil).

3	 As on 31 March 2022, the Company has not financed any product of the parent Company (31 March 2021: Nil).

4	 As on March 31, 2022, the Company has not given any unsecured advances (31 March 2021: Nil).

5	 As on 31 March 2022, the Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limit prescribed by RBI and NHB for single borrower or 
group borrower (31 March 2021: Nil).

6	 As on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, no group Company is engaged in the business of real estate.

43.07  Regulator registrations
1	 National Housing Bank	 09.0087.10

2	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (CIN)	 U65922HR1998PLC042782

	 In addition to above, the Company’s non-convertible debentures (NCDs) are listed on stock exchange in India, thereby, regulations of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India are also applicable.

43.08  Disclosure of penalties imposed by National Housing Bank (NHB) and other regulators
During current year, National Housing Bank (NHB) levied a penalty of Rs. 15,000 for contravention of the provisions of paragraph 
22(2) of the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 and RBI circular No. DOR.NO.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20. 
During year ended 31 March 2021:- 7,45,000 for contravention of the provisions of paragraph 22(2) 2(i)(zc)(ii) of the Housing Finance 
Companies Directions, 2010 and provisions of NHB (ND)/DRS/Policy Circular No. 75/2016-17 in relation to inspection done for year ended 31 
March 2019).

43.09  Related party transactions
Refer note 39 For related party transactions.

43.10  Ratings assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration during the year
Nature of instrument Rating agency 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Bank term loans ICRA A stable(Outlook) A stable(Outlook)

Bank term loans CARE A Positive(outlook) A stable(Outlook)

Non-convertible debentures ICRA A stable(Outlook) A stable(Outlook)

During the year, CARE has upgraded the rating outlook of the Company from Stable to Positive

43.11  Remuneration of Directors
Remuneration of Directors has been disclosed separate note. Refer note 39.

43.12  Management
Management discussion and Analysis report shall form part of Board of Directors’ report.

43.13  During the year, no expense was accounted which was related to prior period (31 March 2021: Rs.Nil).

43.14  During the year, no item of revenue recognition has been postponed except as disclosed in accounting policy for revenue recognition.

43.15  The Company has a wholly owned Subsidiary and the Consolidated financial statements is prepared in accordance with Ind AS 110.

43.06  Exposure: (contd.)

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)
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Westbridge Crossover Fund LLC

India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited

India Shelter Capital Finance  Limited

(57.35% Holding)

(100% Holding)

43.16  The diagrammatical group structure of the Company is as follows:

43.17  Provisions and contingencies
A)	 Break-up of Provisions and Contingencies shown under the head expenditure in Profit and Loss account	
S . 
No

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

1 Provisions for depreciation on investment  -    -   

2 Provision made towards Income tax  3,183.62  2,477.20 

3 Provision towards NPA  301.31  472.43 

4 Provision for Standard assets - Residential Mortgage  45.72  1,003.11 

- CRE  (0.37)  (4.54)

5 Other provision and contingencies  177.68  (24.68)

(Provision for Gratuity, compensated absences, undrawn commitments and EIS 
receivables)

B)	 Break up of Loan & Advances and provisions thereon
particulars Housing  Non-housing 

For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

1 Standard assets
a)  Total outstanding amount  1,62,347.55  1,23,081.40  1,01,363.35  76,852.58 
b)  Provisions made  1,366.21  1,364.79  614.73  570.81 

2 Sub-standard assets
a)  Total outstanding amount  2,848.46  1,558.82  1,627.38  1,298.62 
b)  Provisions made  759.62  529.40  340.64  366.39 

3 Doubtful assets – Category-I
a)  Total outstanding amount  648.76  485.21  546.32  232.35 
b)  Provisions made  210.27  167.18  137.90  71.05 

4 Doubtful assets – Category-II
a)  Total outstanding amount  5.33  8.87  -    12.82 
b)  Provisions made  0.41  2.48  -    3.90 

5 Doubtful assets – Category-III
a)  Total outstanding amount  -    -   
b)  Provisions made  -    -   

particulars Housing  Non-housing 
For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2022
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
6 Loss assets

a)  Total outstanding amount  26.22  22.01  1.42  -   
b)  Provisions made  1.63  8.84  0.09  -   
TOTAL
a)  Total outstanding amount  1,65,876.32  1,25,156.31  1,03,538.47  78,396.37 
b)  Provisions made  2,338.14  2,072.69  1,093.36  1,012.15 

Disclosure above are based on the contractual repayments

43.18  There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: Nil).

43.19  Concentration of public deposits (for public deposit taking/holding HFCs)

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company has not accepted any public deposits, as per Certificate of 
Registration (CoR) issued by National Housing Bank (NHB) and as per the board resolution passed in the board meeting dated 12 May 
2021.

43.20  Concentration of Loans and Advances	
S . 
No

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

1 Total loans and advances to twenty largest borrowers  1,896.69  1,951.17 
2 Percentage of loans and advances of twenty largest borrowers to total advances of 

the Housing Finance Company
0.70% 0.96%

43.21  Concentration of all exposure (including off-balance sheet exposure)		
S . 
No

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

1 Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers  1,969.94  2,080.75 
2 Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers to total exposure of 

the HFC on borrowers / customers
0.64% 0.95%

43.22  Concentration of NPAs			 
S . 
No

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

1 Total exposure to top ten NPA accounts  470.24  367.80 

43.23  Sector-wise NPAs
S . 
No

Sector Percentage of NPAs to total advances in 
that sector

For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

1 Housing Loans:
a. Individuals 2.13% 1.66%
b. Builders/Project Loans  -    -   
c. Corporates  -    -   
d. Others (specify)  -    -   

2 Non-Housing Loans:
a. Individuals 2.10% 1.97%
b. Builders/Project Loans  -    -   
c. Corporates  -    -   
d. Others (specify)  -    -   

43.17  Provisions and contingencies (contd.)

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)



158 | India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited   Annual Report 2021-22 | 159

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

43.24  Movement of NPAs	
S . 
No

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

1 Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 1.60% 1.23%
2 Movement of NPAs (Gross)

a)  Opening balance  3,618.70  1,956.92 
b)  Additions during the year  4,115.89  2,781.99 
c)  Reductions during the year  2,030.69  1,120.21 
d)  Closing balance  5,703.90  3,618.70 

3 Movement of Net NPAs
a)  Opening balance  2,469.46  1,280.21 
b)  Additions during the year  3,053.23  1,889.07 
c)  Reductions during the year  1,269.34  699.82 
d)  Closing balance  4,253.35  2,469.46 

4 Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
a)   Opening balance  1,149.24  676.71 
b)   Provisions made during the year  1,062.66  892.92 
c)   Write-off/write-back of excess provisions  761.35  420.39 
d)   Closing balance  1,450.55  1,149.24 

43.25  The Company does not have any Overseas assets.

43.26  The Company does not have any Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms).

43.27  Customer complaints	
S . 
No

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

1 Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year  -   1
2 Number of complaints received during the year 100 17
3 Number of complaints redressed during the year 96 18
4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 4  -   

43.28  Frauds
During the financial year 2021-2022, the Company has reported 2 cases of fraud involving Rs. 10.35 lakhs (31 March 2021: reported 2 cases 
of Rs.23.52 lakhs) to NHB.

Additional disclosures required in terms of Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2021 RBI/2020-21/73/DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated 17 February 2021 issued by RBI.

43.29  Schedule to Balance Sheet	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021
Liabilities Side Amount 

outstanding
Amount 
overdue

Amount 
outstanding

Amount 
overdue

1 Loans and advances availed by the HFC inclusive of interest accrued 
thereon but not paid:	
(a) Debentures : Secured  18,659.85  -    8,222.38  -   
: Unsecured  -    -    -    -   
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits*)
(b) Deferred Credits  -    -    -    -   
(c) Term Loans  1,83,102.93  -    1,36,207.58  -   
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing  -    -    -    -   
(e) Commercial Paper  -    -    -    -   
(g) Public Deposits  -    -    -    -   
(h) Securitisation Loans  4,176.76  -    3,641.88  -   

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

Liabilities Side Amount 
outstanding

Amount 
overdue

Amount 
outstanding

Amount 
overdue

2 Break-up of (1)(f ) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of 
interest accrued thereon but not paid):	
(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures  -    -    -    -   
(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is 
a shortfall in the value of security

 -    -    -    -   

(c) Other public deposits  -    -    -    -   

		
Asset Side	 Amount 

outstanding as at  
31 March 2022

Amount 
outstanding  as at 

31 March 2021
3 Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those 

included in (4) below]:	
(a)	 Secured  2,62,252.45  1,98,116.96 
(b)	 Unsecured  -    -   

4 Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards 
asset financing activities	
(i)	 Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors

(a)	 Financial Lease  -    -   
(b)	 Operating Lease  -    -   

(ii)	 Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
(a)	 Asset on hire  -    -   
(b)	 Repossessed Assets  -    -   

(iii)	 Other loans counting towards asset financing activities
(a)	 Loans where assets have been repossessed  -    -   
(b)	 Loans other than (a) above  -    -   

5 Breakup of investments
Current investments
1	 Quoted
	 (i)	 Shares

(a)	 Equity  -    -   
(b)	 Preference  -    -   

(ii)	 Debentures and Bonds  -    -   
(iii)	 Units of mutual funds  17,532.00  -   
(iv)	 Government Securities  -    -   
(v)	 Others (please specify)  -    -   

2	 Unquoted
(i)	 Shares

(a)	 Equity  -    -   
(b)	 Preference  -    -   

(ii)	 Debentures and Bonds  -    -   
(iii)	 Units of mutual funds  -    -   
(iv)	 Government Securities  -    -   
(v)	 Others (please specify)  -    -   

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

43.29  Schedule to Balance Sheet (contd.)
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Asset Side	 Amount 
outstanding as at  

31 March 2022

Amount 
outstanding  as at 

31 March 2021
Long term investments
1	 Quoted
	 (i)	 Shares

(a)	 Equity  -    -   
(b)	 Preference  -    -   

(ii)	 Debentures and Bonds  -    -   
(iii)	 Units of mutual funds  -    -   

	 (iv)	 Government Securities  -    -   
(v)	 Others (please specify)  -    -   

2	 Unquoted
(i)	 Shares

(a)	 Equity  -    -   
(b)	 Preference  -    -   

(ii)	 Debentures and Bonds  -    -   
(iii)	 Units of mutual funds  -    -   
(iv)	 Government Securities  -    -   
(v)	 Others (please specify)  -    -   

6 Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) 
above:

Amount net of provisions 
as at 31 March 2022

Amount net of provisions 
as at 31 March 2022

Category Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured
1	 Related Parties

(a)	 Subsidiaries  -    -    -    -   
(b)	 Companies in the same group  -    -    -    -   
(c)	 Other related parties  -    -    -    -   

2	 Other than related parties  2,62,252.45  -    1,98,116.96  -   
Total  2,62,252.45  -    1,98,116.96  -   

7 Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long 
term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted) :

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Category Market 
Value / 

Break up or 
fair value or 

NAV

Book Value 
(Net of 

Provisions)

Market 
Value / 

Break up or 
fair value or 

NAV

Book Value 
(Net of 

Provisions)

1	 Related Parties
(a)	 Subsidiaries  -    -    -    -   
(b)	 Companies in the same group  -    -    -    -   
(c)	 Other related parties  -    -    -    -   

2	 Other than related parties  17,532.00  17,501.28  -    -   

43.29  Schedule to Balance Sheet (contd.)

8 Other information	 As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

(i)	 Gross Non-Performing Assets

(a)	 Related parties  -    -   

(b)	 Other than related parties  5,703.90  3,618.70 

(ii)	 Net Non-Performing Assets

(a)	 Related parties  -    -   

(b)	 Other than related parties  4,253.35  2,469.46 

(iii)	 Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt  -    -   

43.30  Disclosure on Principal business criteria
RBI vide its circular Number RBI/2020-21/60/DOR/NBFC (HFC) CC No 118/03.10.136/2020-21 dated October 22, 2020 has defined Principal 
Business Criteria for HFCs.

Details of principal business criteria as on March 31, 2022 is as follows
S . 
No

Other information	 As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

1 % of total asset towards housing finance 51.62% 51.09%

2 % of total asset towards housing finance for individuals 51.62% 51.08%

44.	 Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification RBI/2021-22/85 DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.177/2021-22 dated 24 September 2021

A)	 Disclosure as per NHB guidelines for securitisation transactions as an originator :
S . 
No

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

1 No. of special purpose vehicle's (SPV's) sponsored by HFC for securitisation transaction 4 4
2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of SPVs sponsored by the HFC  4,273.68  3,903.09 
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the HFC to comply with MRR 

i)	 Off-balance sheet exposures
a)	 First loss  -    -   
b)	 Others  -    -   

ii)	 On-balance sheet exposures
a)	 First Loss- Cash collateral 603.12  392.01 
b)	 Others- Over collateral 1,118.82  1,139.94 

4 Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR
i)	 Off-balance sheet exposures  -    -   

a)	 Exposure to own securitisations
First loss  -    -   
Others  -    -   

b)	 Exposure to third party securitisation 
First loss  -    -   
Others  -    -   

ii)	 On-balance sheet exposures towards credit enhancement
a)	 Exposure to own securitisations

First loss 638.05  638.05 
Others  205.17  -   

b)	 Exposure to third party securitisation transaction
First loss  -    -   
Others

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
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43.29  Schedule to Balance Sheet (contd.)
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44. (contd.)

S . 
No

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

As at  
31 March 2021

5 Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and gain/loss on sale on account 
of securitisation

 3,205.77  -   

6 Form and quantum (outstanding value) of services provided by way of, liquidity 
support, post-securitisation asset servicing, etc.

7 Performance of facility provided. Please provide separately for each facility viz. Credit 
enhancement, liquidity support, servicing agent etc. Mention percent in bracket as of 
total value of facility provided.
Credit Enhancement- Cash collateral
(a)	 Amount paid  237.23  -   
(b)	 Repayment received  26.12  -   
(c)	 Outstanding amount”  603.12  392.01 

8 Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past- Mortgage backed securities 1.85% 2.04%
9 Amount and number of additional/top up loan given on same underlying asset.  -    -   
10 Investor complaints 

(a)	 Directly/Indirectly received and;  -    -   
(b)	 Complaints outstanding  -    -   

B) Details of financial assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

During the year, the Company has not sold any financial assets to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction (31 
March 2021: Nil)

45.	 Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification RBI/2021-22/86 DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 24 September 2021

(a)	 Details of loans not in default transferred through assignment during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Entity Bank/ Financial 
Institutions

Count of loan accounts assigned 3,714

Amount of loan account assigned 27,326.80 Lakh

Retention of beneficial economic interest (MRR) 10%

Weighted average maturity (Residual Maturity) 8.93 Years

Weighted average holding period 1.55 Years

Coverage of tangible security coverage (LTV) 40.32%

Number of transactions 7

Rating wise distribution of rated loans Unrated

	 (b)	 The Company has not acquired any loan in default during the year ended 31 March 2022.

	 (c)	 The Company has not transferred/acquired any stressed loan during the year ended 31 March 2022.

46	 The COVID-19 pandemic has adversely impacted the economic activities across the globe and changed the customer behaviour, 
which may persist. Based on the available information from internal and external sources, the Company has used prudent judgements, 
estimates and possible forward-looking scenarios to assess the impact of COVID-19 on the provisions in accordance with the expected 
credit loss (ECL) method on loans and other financial assets. Given the dynamic and evolving nature of the pandemic, these estimates 
are subject to uncertainties and may be affected by the severity, duration of the pandemic and other variables.

47	 Key Analytical Ratios
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
As at  

31 March 2021

Debt -Equity Ratio  1.92 times 1.59 times

Total Debts to Total Assets
(Debt securities+ Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities}/Total Assets)

 0.64 0.61

Net Profit Margin (%)
(PAT/Revenue from operation)

28.67% 27.59%

Gross NPA ratio (DPD> 90 days)
(Gross DPD 90+ loans/Gross Loan Assets)

1.63% 1.78%

Gross NPA ratio
(Gross Stage 3 loans/Gross Loan Assets)

2.12% 1.78%

Net NPA ratio
(Net Stage 3 loans/Net Loan Assets)

1.60% 1.23%

Provision Coverage ratio
(Stage 3 Provision/Gross Stage 3 loans)

25.43% 31.59%

48	 Disclosure as per RBI notification no.DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated 21.08.2020 on resolution framework 
for COVID-19- related stress					   

Type of Borrower Exposure ($) to 
accounts classified as 
Standard consequent 
to implementation of 

resolution plan – Position 
as at the end of the 

previous half-year (A)

Of (A), 
aggregate 
debt that 

slipped into 
NPA during 

the half-year

Of (A) amount 
written off 
during the 
half-year

Of (A) amount 
paid by the 
borrowers 
during the 

half Year

Exposure (#) to 
accounts classified as 
Standard consequent 

to implementation 
of resolution plan – 

Position as at the end 
of this half-year

Personal Loan**  2,512.85  312.22  0.60  148.26  2,547.65 

Corporate Persons*  -    -    -    -    -   

of which MSMEs  -    -    -    -    -   

Others  -    -    -    -    -   

Total  2,512.85  312.22  0.60  148.26  2,547.65 

*As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

($) Principal outstanding (including capitalised interest) is for live restructured accounts classified as standard as on September 30, 2022.

(#) Principal outstanding (including capitalised interest) is for live restructured accounts (including sub-standard accounts as on Sep 30, 2021) 
classified as standard as on March 31, 2022 which includes accounts wherein resolution has been invoked as on September 30, 2021 and 
implemented during the Q3 of FY22.

**Personal loans includes housing loan & non housing loan.

49	 The Company does not hold any immovable property other than disclosed in Note 10 as on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. All the 
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company for properties where the Company is the lessee.

50	 No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder, as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

51	 The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 
of Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

52	 The Company has taken borrowings from banks and financial institutions and utilised them for the specific purpose for which they were 
taken as at the Balance sheet date. Unutilised funds as at 31 March 2022 are held by the Company in the form of short term deposits/
investments till the time the utilisation is made subsequently.

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)
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53	 There have been no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts, that have been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. There have 
been no previously unrecorded income and related assets which were to be properly recorded in the books of account during the year 
ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

54	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 
2021.

55	 The Company, as part of its normal business, grants loans and advances, makes investment, provides guarantees to and accept from 
its customers, other entities and persons. These transactions are part of Company’s normal business, which is conducted ensuring 
adherence to all regulatory requirements.

	 Other than the transactions described above, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall lend or invest in party 
identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate beneficiaries). The Company has also not received any fund from any parties 
(Funding party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified by or on behalf of the funding party (“Ultimate beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
ultimate beneficiaries

56	 All charges or satisfaction are registered with ROC within the statutory period for the financial years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 
2021. No charges or satisfactions are yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

57	 The figures of previous year have been rearranged/ regrouped to conform to the current year

For T R Chadha & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 006711N/N500028

Aashish Gupta	 Anil Mehta	 Rupinder Singh
Partner	 Chairman and	 Managing Director and
Membership No.: 097343	 Non-Executive Director	 Chief Executive Officer
	 DIN: 02132315	 DIN: 09153382

	 Ashish Gupta	 Mukti Chaplot
Place: Gurugram	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Date: 12 May 2022		  Membership No. 38326

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements
1.	 Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial 
statements of India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited 
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (the company and 
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which 
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 
2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement 
of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the 
Consolidated financial statements, including a summary of 
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated 
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the Consolidated state of affairs 
of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and Consolidated profit, 
Consolidated other comprehensive income, Consolidated 
changes in equity and its Consolidated cash flows for the year 

ended on that date.

2.	 Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of Consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Consolidated financial statements.

3.	 Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Consolidated financial statements of the current year. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
Consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. We have determined the matters described 
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report.

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the 
Member of 
India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

a. Impairment on Financial Instruments

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has reported gross loans 
assets amounting to Rs.2,65,687.28 lakhs and other 
financial assets amounting to Rs.6,236.01 lakhs against 
which impairment of Rs.3,434.82 lakhs and Rs.40.80 lakhs 
respectively have been recorded.

Ind AS 109 Financial instruments (Ind AS 109) requires 
the Company to provide for impairment of its financial 
instruments (designated as amortized cost or fair value 
through other comprehensive income) using the 
expected credit loss (ECL) approach.

ECL involves an estimation and a significant degree of 
judgement by the management for development of 
ECL model and its corresponding application in the ECL 
model. These judgement and estimates include:

Read and assessed the Group’s accounting policies for impairment of 
financial instruments (Refer 2.9) and their compliance with Ind AS 109 
and the governance framework approved by the Board of Directors.

Read and assessed the Group’s policy with respect to one-time 
restructuring offered to customers pursuant to the “Resolution 
Framework 2.0- Resolution of COVID-19-related Stress of Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises” issued by RBI on May 5, 2021 and tested the 
implementation of such policy on a sample basis.

We have evaluated the management response upon implementation 
of various RBI circulars and tested the implementation of requirements 
as per these circulars on sample basis.

We also performed end to end process walkthroughs to identify the key 
systems, applications and controls used in the ECL processes.
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Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

1.	 Estimating the behavioral life of the product

2.	 Data inputs in relation to ECL model

3.	 Application of the macroeconomic factors on a 
forward-looking basis 

4.	 Modification of assets in terms of restructuring

5.	 Determination of   loan book segmentation based 
on homogeneity, probability of defaults, loss given 
defaults and exposure at default.

6.	 Management Overlay based on risk assessment and 
qualitative adjustments

7.	 Compliance with RBI circulars and assess the level of 
credit impairment of financial instrument. 

8.	 Disclosures as required by IND AS 109 and RBI 
Circular

Refer Note no. 5 and 7 of the Consolidated financial 
statements.

We tested the relevant manual controls, general IT and application 
controls over key systems used in the ECL process.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the management estimates by 
understanding the process of ECL estimation and related assumptions 
and tested the controls around data extraction and validation.

We tested the operating effectiveness of the controls for staging of 
loans and advances based on their past-due status.

Tested a sample of performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether any 
Significant Increase in Credit Risk indicators were present requiring 
them to be classified under higher stages.

Assessing the appropriateness of changes made in macro-economic 
factors and management overlays to calibrate the risks that are not yet 
fully captured by the existing model.

We tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of ECL provision 
performed by the Company.

We assessed the disclosures included in the Ind-AS Consolidated 
financial statements with respect to such allowance / estimate are 
in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 107 
Financial Instruments: Disclosures and also as per RBI Guidelines.

b. Evaluation of Company’s IT systems and Controls

The Group’s key financial accounting and reporting 
processes are highly dependent on information systems 
including automated controls in information systems, 
such that there exists a risk that, gaps in the IT control 
environment could result in the financial accounting and 
reporting records being misstated.

We identified ‘IT systems and controls’ as key audit matter 
because of the high level of automation being used by 
management and the scale and complexity of the IT 
architecture.

Our audit procedures include assessment and identification of key IT 
applications, and further verifying, testing, and reviewing the design 
and operating effectiveness of the IT system on the basis of reports /
returns and other financial and non-financial information generated 
from the system on a test check basis. Our audit procedures included:

a)	 Obtained an understanding of the IT control environment, IT 
policies during the audit period.

b)	 Testing IT general controls related to User and Application controls, 
Change Management Controls and Data backup.

Where we identified the need to perform additional procedures, we 
placed reliance on manual reconciliations between systems and other 
information sources.

4.	 Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual 
report but does not include the Consolidated financial 
statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

5.	 Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated financial 
statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is 
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance, including other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Group in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) specified 
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the 
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 
the Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the group are also responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of the Group’s.

6.	 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the Consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated 
financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures in the Consolidated financial 
statements made by the Management and Board of 
Directors.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management 
and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as 
a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the Consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding 
the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for 
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of 
the financial statements of such entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements.

•	 Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
Consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions 
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of 
any identified misstatements in the Consolidated financial 
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
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our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

7.	 Other Matter

In respect of financial statements of 1 subsidiary company, 
we did not carry out the audit. The Consolidated financial 
statements have been prepared based on unaudited financial 
statements of subsidiary company. As informed by the 
management, the subsidiary company was incorporated on 
24th March 2022 and was not required to get the financial 
statement audited as the first financial year of the company 
can be upto 15 months . There were no revenue, no profit after 
tax, no assets and no cash flows of the subsidiary company 
during the period under audit which have been included in 
the consolidated financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in this respect

8.	 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

	 I.	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our 
audit we report that:

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

	 b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Group so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

	 c)	 The balance sheet, the statement of profit and 
loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of 
cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account.

	 d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
section 133 of the Act.

	 e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
are disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of 
the Act.

	 f )	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to Consolidated 
financial statements of the Group and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated Financial 
Statement.

	 g)	 With respect to the matter to be included in the 
Auditors’ Report under section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended:

		  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by 

the Company to its directors during the current year 
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of 
the Act

II.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

a)	 The Group has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its financial position 
in its Consolidated financial statements - Refer Note 
33 of Consolidated financial statements;

b)	 The Group did not have any long-term contracts 
including derivative contract for Which there were 
any material foreseeable losses;

c)	 There were no amounts which were required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Group;

d)	 (i)	 The Management has represented that, to the 
best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which 
are material either individually or in aggregate) 
have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Group to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii)	 The Management has represented, that, to 
the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been received by the Group 
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Group shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
and

(iii)	 Based on audit procedures that we have 
considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, 
contain any material misstatement.

e)	 During the year, the Group has not paid or declared 
any dividend.

f )	 The Consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared based on unaudited financial statements 
of subsidiary company. As per information provided 
by the management, the subsidiary company was 
incorporated on 24th March 2022 and was not 
required to get the financial statement audited as 
first financial year can be upto 15 months also there 
were no transaction till 31st March 2022, therefore, 
the financial statement was not audited. Accordingly, 
the report of the auditors of subsidiary company was 

not available for our comments as required by para 
xxi of para 3 and 4 of Companies (Auditors’ Report) 
Order, 2020.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Reg. No-: 006711N/N500028

Aashish Gupta
(Partner)

Place: Gurgaon	 Membership No. 097343
Date: 12 May 2022	 UDIN No- 22097343AIWDRV9137
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ANNEXURE – A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
OF INDIA SHELTER FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED-
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to  Consolidated financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference 
to  Consolidated financial statements of India Shelter Finance 
Corporation Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (the 
company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) as 
of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Group’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group 
considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to Group’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group’s internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial controls with reference 
to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
with reference to consolidated financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to 

consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Group’s internal financial controls system with reference to 
consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to  financial 
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of  financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control with reference to  financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of  financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect 
on the  financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference 
to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the Group has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system with reference 
to  consolidated financial statements and such internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal 
control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria 
established by the Group considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Reg. No-: 006711N/N500028

Aashish Gupta
(Partner)

Place: Gurgaon	 Membership No. 097343
Date: 12 May 2022	 UDIN No. 22097343AIWDRV9137
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Notes
As at  

31 March 2022

Assets

(1) Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 3  14,380.16 

(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4  18,649.21 

(c) Loans 5  2,62,252.45 

(d) Investments 6  17,532.00 

(e) Other financial assets 7  6,195.21 

(2) Non-financial assets

(a) Current tax assets (net) 8  -   

(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 9  295.06 

(c) Property, plant and equipment 10  1,657.28 

(d) Other intangible assets 11  46.54 

(e) Other non-financial assets 12  777.66 

(f ) Assets held for sale 336.54

Total assets  3,22,122.11 

Liabilities and equity

Liabilities

(1) Financial liabilities

(a) Trade payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 13  -   

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 13  459.41 

(b) Debt securities 14  18,659.85 

(c) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 15  1,88,341.12 

(d) Other financial liabilities 16  3,336.51 

(2) Non-financial liabilities

(a) Provisions 17  513.32 

(b) Current tax liabilities (Net) 8  432.22 

(c) Other non-financial liabilities 18  2,767.04 

Total liabilities  2,14,509.47 

(3) Equity

(a) Equity share capital 19  4,370.67 

(b) Other equity 20  1,03,241.97 

Total equity  1,07,612.64 

Total liabilities and equity  3,22,122.11 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the consolidated balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 006711N/N500028

Aashish Gupta	 Anil Mehta	 Rupinder Singh
Partner	 Chairman and	 Managing Director and
Membership No.: 097343	 Non-Executive Director	 Chief Executive Officer
	 DIN: 02132315	 DIN: 09153382

	 Ashish Gupta	 Mukti Chaplot
Place: Gurugram	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Date: 12 May 2022		  Membership No. 38326

Consolidated Statement of profit and loss as at 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Notes
For the year ended 

31 March 2022

Revenue from operations

(i) Interest income 21  37,764.74 

(ii) Fees and commission income 22  1,602.65 

(iii) Net gain on fair value changes 23  458.85 

(iv) Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category  4,971.46 

(I) Total revenue from operations  44,797.70 

(II) Other income 24  1,182.80 

(III) Total income (I+II)  45,980.50 

Expenses

(i) Finance costs 25  14,833.86 

(ii) Impairment on financial instruments 26  1,188.87 

(iii) Employee benefits expenses 27  10,140.62 

(iv) Depreciation and amortisation 28  653.90 

(v) Other expenses 29  2,473.14 

(IV) Total expenses  29,290.39 

(V) Profit before tax (III-IV)  16,690.11 

(VI) Tax expense: 30

(1) Current tax 3183.62

(2) Deferred tax charge/(credit) 661.78

Total tax expense  3,845.40 

(VII) Profit for the year (V-VI)  12,844.71 

(VIII) Other comprehensive income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

     -Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations  (92.12)

     -Income tax effect  23.18 

(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss- net of taxes  -   

Total other comprehensive income  (68.94)

(IX) Total comprehensive income for the year(VII+VIII)  12,775.77 

(X) Earnings per equity share 40

Basic (Rs.)  29.60 

Diluted (Rs.)  29.27 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the consolidated statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 006711N/N500028

Aashish Gupta	 Anil Mehta	 Rupinder Singh
Partner	 Chairman and	 Managing Director and
Membership No.: 097343	 Non-Executive Director	 Chief Executive Officer
	 DIN: 02132315	 DIN: 09153382

	 Ashish Gupta	 Mukti Chaplot
Place: Gurugram	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Date: 12 May 2022		  Membership No. 38326
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Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital 
Particulars Balance as at  

01 April 2021
Changes during the 

year
Balance as at  

31 March 2022

Equity share capital  4,297.84  72.83  4,370.67 

B. Other equity 
Particulars

Share application 
money pending 

allotment

Reserves and Surplus Items of other 
comprehensive 

income

Total

Statutory 
reserve

Securities 
premium

Employee 
share 
based 

payment 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Re-measurements 
of defined benefit 

plans

Balance as at 01 April 2021  -    4,423.56  67,824.59  550.11  16,621.61  9.25  89,429.12 

Transfer to statutory reserve  -    2,568.94  -    -    (2,568.94)  -   

Issue of share capital  -    -    442.96  -    -    -    442.96 

Share options exercised during the year  -    -    310.28  (310.28)  -    -    -   

Share based payment to employees  -    -    -    594.12  12,844.71  -    13,438.83 

Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other comprehensive income(net of taxes)  -    -    -    -    -    (68.94)  (68.94)

Balance as at 31 March 2022  -    6,992.50  68,577.83  833.95  26,897.38  (59.69)  1,03,241.97 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the consolidated statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 006711N/N500028

Aashish Gupta	 Anil Mehta	 Rupinder Singh
Partner	 Chairman and	 Managing Director and
Membership No.: 097343	 Non-Executive Director	 Chief Executive Officer
	 DIN: 02132315	 DIN: 09153382

	 Ashish Gupta	 Mukti Chaplot
Place: Gurugram	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Date: 12 May 2022		  Membership No. 38326

Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

(A) Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 16,690.11

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 653.90

Effective interest rate adjustment on financial assets 776.79

Effective interest rate adjustment on debt securities and borrowings (400.24)

Share based payments to employees 594.12

Impairment on financial instruments 1,188.87

Impairment on assets held for sale 12.30

Net loss on derecognition of property, plant and equipment 6.38

Net unrealised gain on fair value change of investments (30.72)

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category (4,971.46)

Gain on termination of leases (8.22)

Interest expense on lease liabilities 91.93

Operating profit before working capital changes 14,603.76

Movements in working capital

Increase in loans (66,058.59)

Decrease in other financial assets 1,560.71

Decrease/(increase) in other non-financial assets 396.33

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables (3.35)

Increase in other financial liabilities 1,247.70

Increase in other non-financial liabilities 2,270.15

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 43.01

Decrease in interest accrued on debt securities and borrowings (840.23)

Cash flows used in operating activities post working capital changes (46,780.51)

Income tax paid (net) (2,747.86)

Net cash flows used in operating activities (A) (49,528.37)

(B) Cash flows from investing activities

Payments made for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (507.89)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 22.32

(Payments)/proceeds from investments (17,501.28)

Investment in other bank balance (net) (590.90)

Net cash used in investing activities (B) (18,577.75)
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1.	 Corporate information
India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited ("the Company") is a Housing Finance Company registered under section 29A of The National 
Housing Bank Act, 1987 vide Registration Certificate No. 09.0087.10 dated 14 September 2010. The Group is engaged in providing 
secured retail home loans, home equity loans and loans against property to borrowers for a period up to twenty years. These loans are 
primarily to be used by the borrowers for home purchase, home improvements, home extension and for construction of dwelling units 
on plots owned by borrowers.

India Shelter Capital Finance Limited (“Subsidiary Company”) was incorporated on 24 March 2022 to carry on lending business as Non-
Banking Finance Company subject to receipt of regulatory approvals. The Subsidiary Company has neither obtained Certificate of 
Registration from Reserve Bank of India nor has commenced any business activity during the year ending March 31, 2022.

The above two companies are collectively referred to as the ("Group”).

This is the first year of consolidation, hence, previous year comparatives are not available.

1.1	 Basis of preparation

	 (i)	 Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

These Consolidated financial statements (“the Financial Statements”) of the Group have been prepared in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and 
National Housing Bank (NHB) to the extent applicable. The Group has uniformly applied the accounting policies for the periods 
presented in these financial statements.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 were authorised and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 
12 May 2022.

	 (ii)	 Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities which 
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as explained in relevant accounting policies. The financial statements 
have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation 
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability 
if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair 
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing 
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 'Leases' and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not 
fair value, such as value in use in Ind AS 36 'Impairment of Assets'.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to 
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in 
its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the 
measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

	 (iii)	 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries including controlled 
structured entities as at 31 March, 2022. The Company consolidates a subsidiary when it controls it. Control is achieved when the 
Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those 
returns through its power over the investee. Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. 
To support this presumption and when the Company has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the 

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
on consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022

(C) Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity share capital 515.78

Proceeds from debt securities 16,500.00

Proceeds from borrowings(other than debt securities) 1,14,063.55

Repayment of borrowings (66,456.29)

Repayment of debt securities (5,000.00)

Payment towards lease liabilities (446.22)

Net cash flows from financing activities (C) 59,176.82

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (8,929.30)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 23,309.46

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14,380.16

Components of cash and cash equivalents:-

Cash on hand 117.26

Balances with banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)

(a) Balance with banks in current accounts 55.96

(b) Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 14,206.94

Total cash and cash equivalents 14,380.16

Note:

The above consolidated statement of cash flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 
(Ind AS) - 7 ‘Statement of Cash flows’ as specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.	

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
This is the consolidated statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 006711N/N500028

Aashish Gupta	 Anil Mehta	 Rupinder Singh
Partner	 Chairman and	 Managing Director and
Membership No.: 097343	 Non-Executive Director	 Chief Executive Officer
	 DIN: 02132315	 DIN: 09153382

	 Ashish Gupta	 Mukti Chaplot
Place: Gurugram	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Date: 12 May 2022		  Membership No. 38326

Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)
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Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee.

• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements.

• The Company’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

• The size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights 
holders.

The Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or 
more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary 
and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or 
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Company gains control until 
the date the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar 
circumstances. If a member of the Company uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial 
statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Company member’s 
financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Company’s accounting 
policies.

	 (iv)	 Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited (the Company') and its subsidiary 
company.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

	 •	 The financial statements of all the entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn upto the same reporting date as that of 
the Company i.e., March 31, 2022.

	 •	 The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary company have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding 
together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances and intragroup transactions.

	 •	 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events 
in similar circumstances.

	 •	 India Shelter Capital Finance Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary has been considered in the preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements.

2.	 Summary of significant accounting policies
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases 
summarised as below. These policies are applied consistently for all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements, 
except where the Group has applied certain exemptions upon transition.

2.1.	 Revenue recognition

	 Interest and processing fee income on loans

Interest and processing fee income on financial assets is recognised on a time proportion basis considering the amount outstanding 
and the effective interest rate applicable.

	 Effective Interest Rate (“EIR”)

The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial instrument through the expected life of the financial 
instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount. The future cash flows are estimated taking into account 
all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are incremental and directly attributable 
to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. For financial assets measured at Fair Value 
Through Profit and Loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortised 

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
on consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets interest income 
is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the 
allowance for expected credit losses).

	 Interest/Dividend income on investment

Interest income on investments and fixed deposits is recognised on time proportionate basis with reference to EIR method. Dividend 
income is accounted for when the right to receive it is established.

	 Income from assignment

Gains arising out of direct assignment transactions comprise the difference between the interest on the loan portfolio and the applicable 
rate at which the direct assignment is entered into with the assignee, also known as the right of excess interest spread (EIS). The future 
EIS basis the scheduled cash flows on execution of the transaction, discounted at the EIR of underlying pool of loans rate entered into 
with the assignee is recorded upfront in the statement of profit and loss. EIS is evaluated and adjusted for ECL and expected prepayment.

	 Fee and Commission Income

Fee and commission income includes fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR method. The Group recognises the fee and 
commission income at fair value of the consideration received or receivable when the Group satisfies the performance obligation.

	 Other operating revenue

Interest on overdue of loans and other ancillary charges are recognised upon realisation. All other income is recognised on an accrual 
basis upon satisfaction of performance obligation, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate realisation/collection and income can 
be measured reliably.

2.2.	 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand (including imprest), demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments that 
are readily convertible into known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.3.	 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, whereby profit/loss before extraordinary 
items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts 
or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based on the available 
information.

2.4.	 Property, plant and equipment

	 Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase 
taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use. It also includes the 
initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, wherever applicable.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other 
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

	 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight line method over the useful life of the assets as prescribed 
under Part ‘C’ of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, or in case of assets where the estimated useful life was determined basis 
technical evaluation carried out by the Group, over the useful life so determined.

Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is provided for full month in which acquisition of the assets is made. No depreciation is provided 
for the month of sale/disposal of asset. Leasehold improvements are amortised over a period of lease. Asset costing less than Rs. 10,000 
each are fully depreciated in the year of capitalisation.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
on consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)
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Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
on consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Asset category Estimated useful life (in Years) Life as per Schedule II

Plant & Equipment- Computer and other related 
equipment

3 years 3 years

Office equipment 5 years 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years 10 years

Vehicles 8 years 8 years

Handheld communication devices (included in 
office equipment)

2 years 5 years

Leasehold improvements Over the period of the lease or the 
estimated useful life whichever is lesser.  

Over the period of the lease or the 
estimated useful life whichever is lesser.  

	 De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, 
when the asset is derecognised.

2.5.	 Intangible assets

	 Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties and other taxes 
(other than those subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities), borrowing cost if capitalisation criteria are met and directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Amortisation method, estimated useful lives and residual value

Intangible assets are amortised over a period of 4 years from the date when the assets are available for use. The estimated useful life 
(amortisation period) of the intangible assets is arrived basis the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits and is reviewed 
at the end of each financial year and the amortisation period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

	 De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses 
arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset, are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.6.	  Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date. If there is any indication of impairment based on 
internal / external factors, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss wherever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash 
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a 
cash generating unit.

Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Value in use is 
the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end 
of its useful life.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

If at the reporting date there is an indication that previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is 
reassessed, and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to maximum of depreciable historical cost.

2.7.	 Taxation

Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except to the extent it 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax comprises the tax payable or receivable on taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or 

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
on consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

receivable in respect of previous years. Current tax is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. The amount of current tax 
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering uncertainty related to 
income taxes, if any. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income or in equity).

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended 
to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

With effect from 1 April 2019, with introduction of Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019, where section 115BAA was introduced 
in the Income-tax Act, 1961 proposing option to compute income tax liability at revised taxation rates. Further, under section 115JB 
(MAT provisions) a sub-section was introduced stating non-applicability of Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) provisions on the companies 
exercising option to pay income tax under section 115BAA. The tax expense for the current financial year 2020-21 and previous year 
2019-2020, has been computed considering the revised tax provisions and thereby the provisions of MAT are not applicable to the 
Group.

MAT policy applicable before 1 April 2019, MAT under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 was recognised as current tax in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The credit available under the Income-tax Act, 1961 in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only 
when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT 
credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused tax loss, unused tax 
credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which 
they can be used. This is assessed based on the Group’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income 
and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting 
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or 
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The 
measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the 
reporting date to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there 
is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis 
or simultaneously. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit 
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

2.8.	 Employee benefits

	 Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as a paid annual leave) where the absences 
are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing 
and bonuses payable within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and non-
monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis.

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as under:

	 Defined contribution plans

The Group has a defined contribution plans namely provident fund, pension fund and employees state insurance scheme. The 
contribution made by the Group in respect of these plans are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Defined benefit plans

The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. Where in the employee 
will receive on retirement is defined by reference to employee's length of service and last drawn salary. Under the defined benefit plans, 
the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. 
The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Group, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been set 
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aside. The liability recognised in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of the Defined Benefit 
Obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of 
independent actuaries. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in other comprehensive 
income.

	 Other long-term employee benefits

The Group also provides the benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long-term employee benefit 
plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to be availed after one year from the Balance Sheet date 
is estimated in the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the 
reporting date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the year in which such gains or losses are determined.

	 Share based payment

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the option determined at the grant date of the equity settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight line basis 
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in 
equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The 
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss such that the cumulative expense 
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

In respect of re-pricing of existing stock option, the incremental fair value of the option on the date of re-pricing is accounted for as 
employee cost over the remaining vesting period.

2.9.	 Expected credit losses and write-off of financial assets

	 Loan assets

Loans are classified into performing and non-performing assets in terms of policy adopted by the Group, subject to minimum classification 
and provisioning norms required under ‘Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021’ issued by RBI from time to time.

All loan exposures to borrowers with instalment structure are stated at disbursed value after netting off:

i.	 unearned income

ii.	 instalments appropriated up to the year end

Under Ind AS, the Group’s assets have been classified as follows based on Exposure at Default:

•	 Stage 1: Performing Assets

•	 Stage 2: Under Performing Assets

•	 Stage 3: Non-Performing Assets

Under Ind AS, asset classification and provisioning moves from the ‘rule based’, incurred losses model to the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 
model of providing for expected future credit losses. Thus, loan loss provisions are made on the basis of the Group’s historical loss 
experience, future expected credit loss and after factoring in various macro-economic parameters

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan 
assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default, defined as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per “Definition of 
default and credit-impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (12 months PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the 
obligation.

Loss Given Default (LGD) – LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of 
counterparty, type and preference of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support.

Exposure at Default (EAD) – EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the time of default. For a revolving 
commitment, the Gropu includes the current drawn balance plus any further amount that is expected to be drawn up to the current 
contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.
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Forward-looking economic information (including management overlay) is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD 
and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis.

	 Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement of loss allowance 
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all 
possible default events over the expected life of trade receivables.

	 Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Group assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased significantly since initial 
recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount 
equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Group uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial asset. To 
make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk 
of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, 
that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group 
assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined 
to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

	 Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Any 
subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instrument on statement of profit and loss.

2.10. Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount 
of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

•	 Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Group or

•	 Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related asset is disclosed.

2.11. Leases

	 Group as a Lessee:

At inception of a contract, Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease, a lease if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially 
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to 
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the 
end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined 
on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, 
if any, and adjusted for certain re measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, 
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing 
rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
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The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is re measured when there is a change in future 
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be 
payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or 
termination option.

When the lease liability is re measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset 
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property and equipment’ and lease 
liabilities in ‘borrowings (other than debt securities)’ in the balance sheet.

2.12. Financial instruments

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity.

	 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial 
instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial 
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or 
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or 
financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

	 Financial assets

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the 
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when funds 
are disbursed to the customers

Classification and Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets are classified in to three categories for subsequent measurement:

•	 Financial asset at amortised cost

•	 Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

•	 Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss(FVTPL)

	 Financial asset at amortised cost

Financial instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment loss:

•	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

•	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on 
the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Financial assets (debt instruments) at FVOCI

Financial asset (debt instruments) is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

•	  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

•	 The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. Financial assets included within the above category are measured initially as well as 
at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group 
recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition of 
the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst 
holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.
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	 Financial Asset at FVTPL

Financial asset which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Financial 
assets classified under FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

	 De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) are derecognised (i.e. removed 
from the Group’s balance sheet) when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when 
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Group has not retained control, it shall also 
derecognise the financial asset and recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the 
transfer.

	 Financial liabilities

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance 
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of 
subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are 
determined based on the effective interest method.

	 Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method.

	 De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable 
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

2.13. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other 
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average 
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which 
could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if 
their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity 
shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential 
equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity 
shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

2.14. Foreign currency

	 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statement of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and 
presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.
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	 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, by applying the exchange rates on the foreign currency 
amounts at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to 
functional currency using the closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost 
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those at which 
they were initially recorded, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

2.15. Insurance Claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that there is no 
uncertainty in receiving the claims.

2.16. Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash 
or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months.

2.17. Share/Securities issue expense

Share/security issue expenses are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account as permissible under Section 52 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent any balance is available for utilisation in the Securities Premium Account. Share/security issue expenses in excess 
of the balance in the Securities Premium Account are expensed off in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.18. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowings of funds. Borrowing costs primarily include 
interest on amounts borrowed for the revenue operations of the Group. These are expensed to the statement of profit and loss using the 
EIR. All other Borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.19. Assets held for sale

Assets acquired by the Group under Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002. 
has been classified as assets held for sale, as their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale of asset. In accordance 
with Ind AS 105, the Group is committed to sell these assets and they are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair 
value less costs to sell.

2.20. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker 
(CODM). CODM is responsible for allocating the resources, assess the financial performance and position of the Group and make strategic 
decision.

2.21. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

	 Significant management judgements:

Expected credit loss (‘ECL’) – The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost 
requires use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. likelihood 
of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Group makes significant judgements with regard to the following while assessing 
expected credit loss:

•	 Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

•	 Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the associated 
ECL; and

•	 Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.
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	 Significant estimates:

Provision for employee benefits - Provision for employee benefits, requires that certain assumptions such as expected future salary 
increases, average life expectancy and discount rates etc. are made in order to determine the amount to be recorded for retirement 
benefit obligations. Substantial changes in the assumed development of any of these variables may significantly change the Group’s 
retirement benefit obligations.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets – Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets 
at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic 
obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

	 Standard issued but not yet effective

No new standards as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"), through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules are effective for the current year.
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3.	 Cash and cash equivalents	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

I. Cash on hand  117.26 

II. Balances with banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)

(a) Balance with banks in current accounts  55.96 

(b) Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months  14,206.94 

Sub-total (a and b)  14,262.90 

Total (I and II )  14,380.16 

4.	 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

I. Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months  14,779.54 

II. Deposit held as margin money under securitisation and borrowing agreements  3,869.67 

Total  18,649.21 

5.	 Loans	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

At amortised cost

Term loans  2,65,507.65 

Staff loans  179.62 

Total gross  2,65,687.27 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  3,434.82 

Total net  2,62,252.45 

Secured by tangible assets  2,65,687.27 

Total  2,65,687.27 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  3,434.82 

Total net  2,62,252.45 

Loans in India

Public sectors  -   

Others (individuals and other corporates)  2,65,687.27 

Total gross  2,65,687.27 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  3,434.82 

Total net  2,62,252.45 

5.1	 Loans granted are secured by equitable mortgage/registered mortgage of the property and/or undertaking to create a security by way 
of equitable mortgage of property.

5.2	 Loan details 
Particulars Principal Interest 

outstanding
Overcollateral Effective interest 

rate adjustment
Total

As at 31 March 2022  2,68,794.77  620.02  218.80  (3,946.32)  2,65,687.27 

5.3	 There were no loans given against the collateral of gold jewellery and hence the percentage of such loans to the total outstanding asset 
is Nil.

5.4	 Loans sanctioned but undisbursed amount to Rs.19,341.23  lakhs as on 31 March 2022.

5.5	 The Group has securitised assets amounting to Rs.7,514.12 lakhs. These loan assets have not been de-recognised from the loan portfolio 
of the Group as these does not meet the de-recognition criteria. The Group is responsible for collection and servicing of this loan 
portfolio on behalf of buyers/investors. In terms of the said securitisation agreements, the Group pays to buyer/investor on monthly 
basis the prorated collection amount as per the respective agreement terms.

5.6	 During the financial year 2021-22, the Group has assigned pools of certain loans amounting to Rs. 27,326.80 lakh by way of a direct 
assignment transactions. These loans have been de-recognised from the loan portfolio of the Group as the sale of loan assets is an 
absolute assignment and transfer on a ‘no-recourse’ basis. The Group continues to act as a servicer to the assignment transaction on 
behalf of assignee. In terms of the assignment agreements, the Group pays to assignees, on a monthly basis, the pro-rata collection 
amounts. 

	 The management has evaluated the impact of assignment transactions done during the year for its business model. Based on the future 
business plan, the Group’s business model remains to hold the assets for collecting contractual cash flows. 

5.7	 Expected credit loss
Expected credit loss is a calculation of the present value of the amount expected not to be recovered on a financial asset, for financial 
reporting purposes. Credit risk is the potential that the obligor and counterparty will fail to meet its financial obligations to the lender. 
This requires an effective assessment and management of the credit risk at both individual and portfolio level.

The references below show where the Group’s impairment assessment and measurement approach is set out in these notes. It should 
be read in conjunction with the Summary of significant accounting policies.

	 (i)	 Definition of default

The Group considers a financial instrument as defaulted and considered it as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in 
all cases, when the borrower becomes more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments. The Probability of Default is an 
estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed year, 
if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.”

	 (ii)	 Exposure at default

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the financial instruments subject to the impairment calculation, 
addressing both the client’s ability to increase its exposure while approaching default and potential early repayments too.”

	 iii)	 Loss given default

The Group segments its retail lending products into homogeneous portfolios, based on key characteristics that are relevant to the 
estimation of future cash flows. The data applied is collected loss data and involves a wider set of transaction characteristics (e.g., 
product type, wider range of collateral types, loan to value (LTV) ratio, expected realisation rate, etc.) as well as borrower characteristics.

	 iv)	 Significant increase in credit risk

The Group continuously monitors all assets subject to ECL. In order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of instruments 
is subject to 12 month ECL or lifetime ECL, the Group assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition. The Group considers an exposure to have significantly increased in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 
30 days past due.

When estimating ECL on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Group applies the same principles for assessing whether 
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

	 v)	 Delinquency buckets have been considered as the basis for the staging of all loans with:

0-30 days past due loans classified as stage 1,

31-90 days past due loans classified as stage 2 and

> 90 days past due loans classified as stage 3

- Accounts restructured during COVID as per RBI notification and standard as on 31 March 2022 are grouped under Stage 2.

- Pursuant to the RBI circular dated 12 November 2021- “Prudential norms on income recognition, Asset classification, and Provisioning 
pertaining to Advances-Clarifications”, the Group has aligned its system of asset classification norms as directed by RBI. Such alignment 
has resulted in transition of sub 90 DPD assets of INR 1,211.02 Lakhs as additional non-performing assets/Stage 3 as at 31 March 2022.
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5.7	 Expected credit loss (contd.)

	 ix)	 A comparison between provisions required under Income recognition, asset classification and provision norms (IRACP) and 
impairment allowances made under IND AS 109

		  As at 31 March 2022
Asset classification as per RBI 
Directions

Asset 
classifi-

cation as 
per Ind AS 

109

Gross 
carrying 

amount as 
per Ind AS*

Loss 
allowance 
as per Ind 

AS*

Net 
Carrying 
Amount

Provision 
required as 
per IRACP 

norms

Difference 
between 

Ind AS 109 
provisions and 
IRACP norms

Performing assets

Standard assets Stage 1  2,55,015.67  1,536.26  2,53,479.41  815.98  720.28 

Stage 2  8,695.22  444.69  8,250.53  285.65  159.04 

Sub-total  2,63,710.89  1,980.95  2,61,729.94  1,101.63  879.32 

Non- performing assets (NPA)

Substandard Stage 3  4,475.84  1,100.26  3,375.58  920.27  179.99 

Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3  1,195.08  348.17  846.91  451.33  (103.16)

Doubtful - 1 to 3 years Stage 3  5.33  0.41  4.92  5.33  (4.92)

Doubtful - More than 3 years Stage 3  -    -    -    -    -   

Sub-total for doubtful 1,200.41 348.58 851.83 456.66 (108.07)

Loss Stage 3 27.65 1.71 25.93 27.65 (25.93)

Sub-total for NPA 5,703.90 1,450.55 4,253.35 1,404.57 45.98

Other items such as guarantees, loan 
commitments, etc. which are in the 
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered 
under current (IRACP) norms

Stage 1 19,341.23 73.10 19,268.13 - 73.10

Stage 2 - - - -

Stage 3 - - - -

Subtotal 19,341.23 73.10 19,268.13 - 73.10

Total

Stage 1 2,74,356.90 1,609.36 2,72,747.54 815.98 793.38

Stage 2 8,695.22 444.69 8,250.53 285.65 159.04

Stage 3 5,703.90 1,450.55 4,253.35 1,404.57 45.98

Total 2,88,756.02 3,504.60 2,85,251.42 2,506.20 998.39

		  * Does not includes ECL amount of Rs. 3.32 lakhs created on securitised loans derecognised from the books which has been 
adjusted from EAD and EIR impact.

6.	 Investments 	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

At fair value through profit and loss

Investments in India

Mutual funds  17,532.00 

Total  17,532.00 

7.	 Other financial assets	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

Security deposits 261.88

Receivables on securitised loans (refer note a) 38.01

EIS receivable on direct assignment (refer note b) 5,903.74

Other receivables 32.38

Total gross  6,236.01 
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	 vi)	 Macro economic factors

Macro-economic variables relevant to the underlying loan portfolio such as Gross Domestic Product, Inflation, Housing Price Index 
and 10 year bond yield were analysed for their correlation. Based on the analysis of trend, the Group has considered the 10 year bond 
yield as relevant macro-economic factor as it shows improved correlation with the portfolio performance. 

	 vii)	 Credit quality of asset

The Group has classified all individual loans as amortised cost and has assessed it at the collective pool level. The individual loan book 
has been divided into the housing and non-housing (Loan against property) sub portfolios.

The vintage analysis methodology has been used to create the PD term structure which incorporates both 12 month (Stage 1 Loans) 
and lifetime PD (Stage 2 Loans). The vintage analysis captures a vintage default experience across a particular portfolio by tracking 
the yearly slippages from advances originating in a particular year. The vintage slippage experience/default rate is then used to build 
the PD term structure.

The workout methodology has been used to determine LGD wherein the recoveries of loans defaulted in past are tracked and 
discounted to the date of default using the effective interest rate. The worked out LGD for loans has been bucketed into various 
levels of collateral cover. LGD based on collateral cover has been applied to each loan in the portfolio based on specific collateral 
cover adjusted for the expected fall in valuation. The Group has used the adjusted collateral value based on management estimate 
to reflect the forward looking LGD given the expected fall in property price due to COVID19.

	 viii)	 An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loans is, as follows:

Reconciliation of gross carrying amount balance is as follows:

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Balance as at 01 April 2021  1,93,430.38  4,993.66  4,934.38  2,03,358.42 

Transfer to Stage 1  2,218.23  (1,530.37)  (687.86)  -   

Transfer to Stage 2  (5,400.36)  6,532.42  (1,132.06)  -   

Transfer to Stage 3  (2,543.74)  (1,049.85)  3,593.59  -   

New financial assets originated  1,21,607.30  148.33  82.56  1,21,838.19 

Financial assets that have been de-recognised/repaid  (54,296.16)  (398.97)  (1,086.70)  (55,781.83)

Balance as at 31 March 2022  2,55,015.66  8,695.22  5,703.90  2,69,414.79 

		  Reconciliation of ECL balance is as follows:		
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Balance as at 01 April 2021  1,377.81  153.37  1,569.15  3,100.33 

Transfer to Stage 1  16.61  (11.21)  (5.40)  -   

Transfer to Stage 2  (218.21)  324.36  (106.15)  -   

Transfer to Stage 3  (639.41)  (244.88)  884.29  -   

"ECL re-measurements due to  
changes in EAD/assumptions 
 (net)"

 654.15  232.79  (516.60)  370.34 

New financial assets originated  509.13  5.98  21.89  537.00 

Financial assets that have been de-recognised/repaid  (162.72)  (15.65)  (394.48)  (572.85)

Balance as at 31 March 2022*  1,537.36  444.76  1,452.70  3,434.82 

*includes ECL amount of Rs.3.32 lakhs created on securitised loans derecognised from the books which has been adjusted from 
EAD as at 31 March 2022.

5.7	 Expected credit loss (contd.)
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Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

Less: Impairment loss allowance (on EIS Receivable assets)  (40.80)
Total  6,195.21 

Note:

a)	 Receivables on securitised loans is amount receivable towards collections made, presently lying with buyers and recoverable by the 
Group as at the end of the year.

b)	 Under Ind AS, with respect to Assignment deals, Group has created an Excess Interest Spread (EIS) receivable, with corresponding credit 
to Statement of Profit and loss for the year, which has been computed by discounting EIS to present value.

8.	 Current tax assets/ (liabilities) (net)			 
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
Income tax advance/ (liabilities)(net)  (432.22)
Total  (432.22)

9.	 Deferred tax assets (net)	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
Deferred tax assets 
Provision for employee benefits  110.80 
Difference in written down value as per Companies Act and Income Tax Act  57.44 
Impairment loss allowance on loans  893.13 
Unamortised processing fees on loans  999.57 
Lease liabilities  31.32 
Provision for impairment on assets held for sale  15.41 
Others  -   
Deferred tax liabilities
Unamortised borrowing cost  (331.57)
EIS receivable on direct assignment  (1,481.04)
Net deferred tax assets  295.06 

Movement in deferred tax assets (net)
Particulars As at 

1 April 2021
(Charged)/ 
credited to 

statement of 
profit and loss

Credited/
(charged) 
to other 

comprehensive 
income

As at 
31 March 2022

Deferred tax assets 
Provision for employee benefits  76.79  10.82  23.18  110.80 
Difference in written down value as per Companies Act 
and Income Tax Act

 53.40  4.04  -    57.44 

Impairment loss allowance on loans  681.83  211.30  -    893.13 
Unamortised processing fees on loans  804.07  195.50  -    999.57 
Lease liability  26.11  5.21  -    31.32 
Provision for impairment on assets held for sale  9.01  6.40  -    15.41 
Others  1.10  (1.10)  -    0.00 
Deferred tax liabilities -
Unamortised borrowing cost  (121.95)  (209.62)  -    (331.57)
EIS receivable on direct assignment  (596.71)  (884.33)  -    (1,481.04)
Net deferred tax assets  933.65  (661.78)  23.18  295.06 

7.	 Other financial assets (contd.) 10.	 Property, plant and equipment
Gross block Freehold 

land
Plant and equipment 
- computer and other 

related equipment

Office 
equipment

Furniture 
and fixtures

Vehicles Leasehold 
improvements

Right-of-
use assets*

Total

Balance as at 01 April 2021  9.17  422.27  141.85  150.65  77.74  360.04  1,464.47  2,626.19 

Additions during the year  -    223.25  48.83  0.44  214.42  20.96  447.87  955.77 

Disposals/adjustments  -    (0.57)  (4.29)  (4.73)  (39.08)  (15.64)  (315.92)  (380.22)

Balance as at 31 March 2022  9.17  644.95  186.38  146.36  253.08  365.36  1,596.42  3,201.72 

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 01 April 2021  -    307.61  85.48  73.38  14.16  231.44  510.99  1,223.06 

Depreciation charge for the year  -    89.73  30.27  12.36  24.29  55.72  383.19  595.56 

Disposals/adjustments  -    (0.37)  (3.70)  (3.27)  (16.58)  (15.47)  (234.79)  (274.18)

Balance as at 31 March 2022  -    396.97  112.05  82.47  21.87  271.69  659.39  1,544.44 

Net block

Balance as at 31 March 2022  9.17  247.98  74.33  63.89  231.21  93.67  937.03  1,657.28 

11.	 Other intangible assets
Gross block Computer software

Balance as at 01 April 2021  304.65 

Additions during the year  -   

Disposal during the year  (24.47)

Balance as at 31 March 2022  280.18 

Accumulated amortisation

As at 01 April 2021  196.91 

Amortisation charge during the year  58.34 

Disposal during the year  (21.61)

Balance as at 31 March 2022  233.64 

Net block

Balance as at 31 March 2022  46.54 

12.	 Other non-financial assets
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

Prepaid expenses 427.86

Capital advances 40.35

Advance to employees 47.02

Advance to suppliers 112.44

Balance with government authorities 149.99

Total 777.66

13.	 Trade payables
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

(i)  total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 34)  -   

(ii)  total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 459.41

Total 459.41

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
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(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)



194 | India Shelter Finance Corporation Limited   Annual Report 2021-22 | 195

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
on consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

13.	 Trade payables (contd.)

Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022
Particulars MSME Others Disputed dues – 

MSME
Disputed dues - 

Others

 Less than 1 year  -    459.41  -    -   

 1-2 years  -    -    -    -   

 2-3 years  -    -    -    -   

 More than 3 years  -    -    -    -   

Total  -    459.41  -    -   

14.	 Debt securities (at amortised cost)
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

Secured

Non-convertible debentures (including interest accrued)  18,659.85 

Total  18,659.85 

Debt securities in India  18,659.85 

Debt securities outside India -

Total  18,659.85 

i)	 150, @ 10.25% Secured listed non-convertible debentures (NCD) of face value Rs. 10,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 1,500 lakhs 
repayable on 12 June 2023 . The date of allotment was 12 June 2020. The amount outstanding as on 31 March 2022 Rs.1,500 Lakh. 
(These NCD having exclusive first charge floating via a deed of hypothecation over specific standard asset portfolio of receivables to the 
extent equal to an amount aggregating to the total outstanding such that the value of security shall be equal of 1.10 times).”

ii)	 5000, @ 8.68% Secured listed non-convertible debentures (NCD) of face value Rs.1,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 5,000 lakhs repayable 
on 27 December 2023. The date of allotment is 22 June 2021. The amount outstanding as 31 March 2022 Rs. 5,000 Lakhs.

	 (These NCD having exclusive first charge floating via a deed of hypothecation over specific standard asset portfolio of receivables to the 
extent equal to an amount aggregating to the total outstanding and interest accrued thereon shall be maintained at all times until the 
redemption of these NCD such that the value of security shall be equal of 1.28 times).

iii)	 500, @ 9.29% Secured listed non-convertible debentures of face (NCD) value Rs.10,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 5,000 lakhs payable in 
7 half yearly installment ending on 21 March 2025. The date of allotment of NCD was 23 November 2021. The amount outstanding as 31 
March 2022 Rs. 5,000 lakhs.

	 (These NCD are secured by way of a first ranking exclusive and continuing charge created pursuant to the deed of hypothecation over 
certain identified receivables of the Issuer. A security cover of 1.10 times of the value of the aggregate principal amount outstanding on 
the NCD and interest accrued thereon (if any) shall be maintained at all times until the redemption of these NCD).  

iv)	 300, @ 8.75% Secured listed non-convertible debentures of face (NCD) value Rs.10,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 3,000 lakhs repayable 
on 31 August 2026. The date of allotment of NCD was 31 August 2021. The amount outstanding as at 31 March 2022 Rs. 3,000 lakhs.

	 (These NCD are secured by way of a first ranking exclusive and continuing charge created pursuant to the deed of hypothecation over 
certain identified receivables of the Issuer. A security cover of 1.10 times of the value of the aggregate principal amount outstanding on 
the NCD shall be maintained at all times until the redemption of these NCD).  

v)	 350, @ 9.25% Secured listed non-convertible debentures of face (NCD) value Rs.10,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 3,500 lakhs repayable 
on 15 September 2026. The date of allotment of NCD was 15 September 2021. The amount outstanding as 31 March 2022 Rs. 3,500 lakhs.

	 (These NCD are secured by way of a first ranking exclusive and continuing charge created pursuant to the deed of hypothecation over 
certain identified receivables of the Issuer. A security cover of 1.28 times of the value of the aggregate principal amount outstanding on 
the NCD and interest accrued thereon (if any) shall be maintained at all times until the redemption of these NCD).  
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14.	 Debt securities (at amortised cost) (contd.)

vi)	 Amounts repayable from the date of balance sheet*
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

less than 1 year 1,500.00

one to three years 10,000.00

three to five years 6,500.00

more than five years  -   

*All the above mentioned repayments disclosed as per the contractual maturities of principal amount of debt securities.

15.	 Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

At amortised cost

(a)	Term loans - Secured (including interest accrued)

	 (i)	 from banks  1,24,741.85 

	 (ii)	 from other parties

		  - National housing bank  34,404.92 

		  - Financial institutions  23,956.16 

(b)	Lease liabilities  1,061.43 

(c)	Liability against securitised assets (net of over collateralisation amount)  4,176.76 

Total  1,88,341.12 

Borrowings in India  1,88,341.12 

Borrowings outside India  -   

Total  1,88,341.12 

i)	 Secured term loans from National Housing Bank carry rate of interest in the range of 3% to 7.35% p.a. The loans are having tenure of 1 to 
15 years from the date of disbursement and are repayable in quarterly or yearly installments. These loans are secured by hypothecation 
(exclusive charge) of certain loans given by the Group.

ii)	 Secured term loans from banks and financial institutions include loans from various banks and financial institutions and carry rate of 
interest in the range of 7.5% to 11.2% p.a. The loans are having tenure of 34 to 120 months from the date of disbursement and are 
repayable in monthly or quarterly installments. These loans are secured by hypothecation (exclusive charge) of certain loans given by 
the Group. 

iii)	  The Group is not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender, in accordance with the guidelines on 
willful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India, during the year ended 31 March 2022.

iv)	 The Group has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of loans and the quarterly details filed by the 
Group with the banks and financial institutions are in accordance with the books of accounts of the Group for the respective quarters.

v)	 The Group has not defaulted in the repayment of debt, borrowings(other than debt securities) and interes thereon for the year ended 
31 March 2022.

Terms of principal repayment of borrowings as at 31 March 2022*
Particulars Number of 

installments
Monthly 

repayment
Number of 

installments
Quarterly 

repayment
less than one year 557  31,201.15  112  16,448.85 
one to three years 939  53,928.88  182  25,000.15 
three to five years 542  28,868.31  113  12,636.96 
more than five years  267  10,649.92  97  10,451.12 

*All the above mentioned repayments disclosed as per the contractual maturities of principal amount of borrowings (other than debt 
securities).
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15.	 Borrowings (Other than debt securities) (contd.)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Particulars Debt securities Borrowings 
(other than debt 

securities)

Total

01 April 2021  8,222.38  1,40,906.65  1,49,129.03 

Cash flows:

-Repayments  (5,000.00)  (66,456.29)  (71,456.29)

-Proceeds  16,500.00  1,14,063.55  1,30,563.55 

-Payment of lease liability  -    (446.22)  (446.22)

Non-cash:

-Amortisation of upfront fees and others (net)  (137.98)  (261.35)  (399.33)

-Accrued interest (net)  (924.55)  84.32  (840.23)

-Recognition of lease liabilities  -    450.46  450.46 

31 March 2022  18,659.85  1,88,341.12  2,07,000.96 

16.	 Other financial liabilities 
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

Employee related payable 1,464.75

Payable towards assignment transactions 1,055.71

Advance received from customers 410.28

Payable towards securitisation transactions 305.99

Insurance payables 99.78

Total  3,336.51 

17.	 Provisions 
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

Provisions for employee benefits

- Provision for gratuity (Refer note 36) 365.01

- Provision for compensated absences 75.21

Impairment loss allowance on Undrawn commitments  73.10 

Total  513.32 

18.	 Other non-financial liabilities 
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

Book Overdraft 2,615.24

Statutory dues payables 151.80

Total  2,767.04 

19.	 Equity share capital 
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

(a)	 Authorised capital

	 8,10,00,000 equity shares of  Rs. 10 each				     8,100.00 

(b)	 Issued capital

	 4,37,06,655 equity shares of Rs. 10 each				     4,370.67 

(c)	 Subscribed and paid up capital 

	 4,37,06,655 equity shares of Rs. 10 each				     4,370.67 

(d)	 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period 
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  4,29,78,405 

Issued during the year (Refer note (e) below)  7,28,250 

Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year  4,37,06,655 

(e)	 Issue of shares against exercise of ESOPs

A)	 During the current year, the Board of Directors have approved allotment of 7,28,250 equity shares to 14 option holders, who exercised 
their options as per the following:

a.	 92,250 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 3.27 each (aggregating to Rs. 12.24 lakhs) vide circular dated on 25 July 2021 & 06 
January 2022.

b.	 5,000 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 4.18 each (aggregating to Rs. 0.71 lakhs) vide circular dated on 06 January 2022.                      

c.	 50,000 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs.10.32 each (aggregating to Rs. 10.16 lakhs) vide circular dated on 29 April 2021 & 25 
July 2021.

d.	 5,62,500 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs.73.20 each (aggregating to Rs. 468 lakhs) vide circular dated on 25 July 2021 , 08 
August 2021 &  23 August 2021

e.	 12,000 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs.108.48 each (aggregating to Rs. 14.22 lakhs) vide circular dated on 08 August 2021

f.	 6,000 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs.149.01 each (aggregating to Rs. 9.54 lakhs) vide circular dated on 08 August 2021

g.	 500 shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs.169.92 each (aggregating to Rs. 0.90 lakhs) vide circular dated on 08 August 2021

(f )	 Terms and conditions of the main features of each class of shares

The Group has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. 
The Group will pay dividend as and when declared. The dividend as and when proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to 
receive the remaining assets of the Group after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to shareholding.

(g)	 Detail of shareholders holding 5 percent or more
Name of shareholders As at  

31 March 2022
No. of shares % of holding

Nexus Ventures III Limited 99,61,798 22.79%
 WestBridge Crossover Fund, LLC 1,08,54,151 24.83%
Milestone Trusteeship Services Private Limited acting as trustee for Madison India opportunity trust fund 23,79,954 5.45%
Aravali Investment Holdings 1,42,11,409 32.52%
Nexus Opportunity Fund II, Ltd. 29,10,037 6.66%
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19.	 Equity share capital (contd.)

(h)	 Shares held by promoter
Name of Promoter As at  

31 March 2022
 % change 
during the 

yearNo. of shares % of holding
Anil Mehta  8,20,367 1.88% (25.11%)
WestBridge Crossover Fund, LLC (w.e.f 26 October 2021)  1,08,54,151 24.83%
Aravali Investment Holdings (w.e.f 26 October 2021)  1,42,11,409 32.52%

(i)	 Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares

The Group has reserved 30,38,344 number of shares for a pool of employee stock options/right to subscribe to equity shares representing 
6.50% of share capital for the benefit of employees on such terms and conditions as determined by the Investors and Board of Directors. 
This include 3,55,000 Rights to Subscribe to equity shares to Mr. Anil Mehta approved by Board of Directors in their meeting held on 28 
April, 2016.

(i)	 The Group (except disclosed above) has not allotted any shares for consideration other than cash, bonus shares and shares bought back 
for the five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

(k)	 The Board of Directors have not proposed any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022.

20.	 Other equity 	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

Securities premium  68,577.83 

Statutory reserve  6,992.50 

Employee share based payment reserve  833.95 

Retained earnings  26,837.69 

Total  1,03,241.97 

Nature and purpose of other reserve

Securities premium

Securities premium represents premium received on issue of shares. The amount is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory reserve

 This reserve is created as per the provision of Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 (read with Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income-
tax Act, 1961). 

The Group transfers amount at least 20% of the total comprehensive income after tax to Statutory reserve.

Employee share based payment reserve

This reserve is used to recognise the fair value of the options issued to employees of the Group under Group’s employee stock option plan.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents the amount of accumulated earnings of the Group.

21.	 Interest income (on financial assets measured at amortised cost)
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022

Interest on loans  35,663.21 

Interest on investments  566.16 

Interest on deposits with banks  1,471.99 

Income on securitised loans  63.38 

Total  37,764.74 
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22.	 Fees and commission income
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022

Fee based income 1,602.65

Total  1,602.65 

23.	 Net gain on fair value changes
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

On trading portfolio

- Investments 458.85

Total net gain on fair value changes  458.85 

Fair value changes

- Realised 428.13

- Unrealised  30.72 

Total net gain on fair value changes  458.85 

24.	 Other income
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022

Marketing support income  1,172.55 

Gain on termination of leases 8.22

Liabilities no longer required, written back  2.03 

Total  1,182.80 

25.	 Finance costs (on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost)
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022

(a)	 Interest expenses on

- Borrowings 13,264.25

- Debt securities 1,043.86

- Securitised loans 427.46

(b)	 Other borrowing costs

- Securitisation expense 2.37

- Interest expense on lease liabilities 91.93

- Other interest expense 3.99

Total  14,833.86 

26.	 Impairment on financial instruments (measured at amortised cost)
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022

Impairment loss on loans  352.97 

Net loans written off*  811.81 

Impairment loss on EIS receivable  24.09 

Total  1,188.87 

*Net of bad debt recovery of INR 123.36 lakhs
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27.	 Employee benefits expenses
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus  8,913.41 
Contribution to provident and other funds  540.92 
Share based payments to employees  594.12 
Staff welfare expenses  92.17 
Total  10,140.62 

28.	 Depreciation and amortisation
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 10)  595.56 

Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 11)  58.34 

Total  653.90 

29.	 Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
Legal and professional charges 260.40

Loan processing cost 284.48

Advertisement and marketing expenses 132.09

Rent and hire charges 84.53

Travelling and conveyance 213.49

Information technology expense 680.14

Communication expenses 80.94

Rates and taxes expenses 3.97

Repairs and maintenance - others 52.63

Office expenses 106.19

Electricity and water expenses 88.95

Printing, stationery and office supplies 24.43

Workshop, seminar and conference expenses 15.70

Insurance expenses 160.43

Directors' sitting fees 27.47

Auditor's remuneration (Refer note 29.1 below)  38.15 

Bank charges 34.90

Loss on derecognition of property, plant and equipment  6.39 

Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer note 29.2 below) 146.54

Loss on Stock of Acquired Properties 12.30

Miscellaneous expenses 19.02

Total  2,473.14 

29.1 Auditor’s remuneration
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022

a)	 As auditors

- Statutory audit including limited review  31.00 

- Certification and other charges  6.20 

b)	 for re-imbursement of expenses  0.95 

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
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29.2 Expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, the Group is 
required to spend for CSR activities in accordance with its CSR policy. The details of the CSR expenses for the year are as under:

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

a)	 Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 146.54
b)	 Amount spent during the year on:

i)	 Construction/acquisition of any asset  -   
ii)	 On purpose other than (a) above
	 Contribution towards Trust/NGOs  146.54 

c)	 Amount unpaid  -   

30.	 Tax expense
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
In respect of the current year  3,183.62 

 3,183.62 
Deferred tax charge/(credit)  661.78 

 661.78 
Total income tax expense recognised (excluding tax recognised in other comprehensive income)  3,845.40 

The major components of tax expense and the reconciliation of the expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate and the 
reported tax expense in statement of profit and loss, is as follows:

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

Profit before tax  16,690.11 
Applicable tax rate 25.17%
Expected tax expense [A]  4,200.57 

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit  80.39 
Deductions under section 80JJAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961  (52.80)
Deductions under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961  (382.76)
Total  3,845.40 

With introduction of Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 in previous year, where section 115BAA was introduced in the Income-tax 
Act, 1961 proposing option to compute income tax liability at revised taxation rates, the Group has elected to exercise the option and thereby 
the applicable tax rates have reduced from 29.12% to 25.17%.The tax expense for the current financial year and previous financial year, has 
been computed considering the revised tax provisions.

Income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
Income tax relating to re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans  23.18 
Total  23.18 

31.	 Expenditure in foreign currency
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022
Software license expense					     197.67
Total  197.67 

The Group’s unhedged foreign currency exposure as on 31 March 2022 is Nil.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
Particulars Unhedged Hedged through forward or 

derivative
Natural 
hedge

</=1 
year

> 1 year Total </=1year > 1 year Total </=1 
year

Foreign currency (FCY) receivables

Exports  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Loans to Joint Venture/Wholly Owned Subsidiary (JV/
WOS)

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Others  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

FCY payables

Imports  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Trade credits  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other FCY loans  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

INR to USD swaps  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

32.	 Segment reporting
The Group is predominantly engaged in a single business segment i.e. providing housing loans and loan against properties in India only, 
which has similar nature of products and services, type/class of customers and the nature of the regulatory environment, risks and returns 
and accordingly there are no separately reportable business or geographical segments as per the Indian Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS’) 108 
on Operating Segments. The aforesaid is in line with the way operating results are reviewed and viewed by the chief operating decision 
maker. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in these financial statements relate to the Group’s single business segment.

33.	 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022

a)	 In respect of following:

- Income tax matters  445.23 

b)	 Commitments

- Undrawn loans commitments  19,341.23 

- Capital commitments  5.00 

Note:

The Group received income tax notice under section 143(3) of the Income Tax Act ,1961 (the Act) dated 25 December 2019 for tax demand 
amounting to Rs. 445.23 lakhs on account of unexplained credit under Section 68 of the Act for assessment year 2017-18. In response to such 
notice, the Group has filed an appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals). The Group has deposited Rs. 89.05 lakhs under protest. 
The legal proceeding when ultimately concluded will not, in the opinion of the management, have a material effect on the financial position 
of the Company. Above amount does not include the contingencies, the likelihood of which is remote.

34.	 Disclosures as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 	
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022
(i)	 the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 

accounting year;
- Principal due Nil
- Interest due Nil

(ii)	 the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 
day during each accounting year;

Nil

31.	 Expenditure in foreign currency (contd.)
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Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

(iii)	 the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but 
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

Nil

(iv)	 the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and Nil
(v)	 the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when 

the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Nil

35.	 Assets held for sale
The Company has obtained possession of certain properties mortgaged by customers, under Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial 
Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (The SARFAESI Act, 2002), which shall be sold to realise the loan and other amounts 
receivable by the Company. The Company is in the process of selling these properties and has classified these as assets held for sale.

36.	 Employee benefit plans
A)	 Defined contribution plans

Provident and other funds

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees 
towards provident fund and other funds which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than this to make 
the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as they accrue.

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

Employer's contribution to provident and other funds  540.92 

 540.92 

B)	 Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

These plans typically expose the Group to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian Rupee) is calculated using a discount rate which is 
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

Interest risk

The plan exposes the Group to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of 
providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability.

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants 
both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in 
future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the 
present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan’s liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31 
March 2022 by Mr. Ashok Kumar Garg (FIAI M.No. 00057), Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of India.  The present value of the defined 
benefit obligation, and the related current service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

34.	 Disclosures as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (contd.)
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Principal assumptions 31 March 2022

Discount rate(s) 7.00%

Expected rate(s) of salary increase 10.00%

Retirement age 58

Withdrawal rate 8.00%

In service mortality IALM (2012-14)

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022

Service cost:

Current service cost  148.93 

Interest cost  17.76 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss  166.69 

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:

Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from changes in financial assumptions  -   

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience adjustments  92.12 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income  92.12 

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation  365.01 

Fair value of plan assets  -   

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation  365.01 

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2022

Opening defined benefit obligation  253.74 

Current service cost  148.93 

Interest cost  17.76 

Remeasurement (gains)/losses:

Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from changes in financial assumptions  -   

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience adjustments  92.12 

Past service cost, including losses/(gains) on curtailments  -   

Benefits paid  (147.54)

Closing defined benefit obligation  365.01 

Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase, mortality, etc. 
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the 
end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

- If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher (lower), the defined benefit obligation would decrease by Rs. 37.95 lakhs (increase by Rs. 44.40 
lakhs).

- If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by 100 basis points, the defined benefit obligation would increase by Rs. 42.67 lakhs 
(decrease by Rs. 37.31 lakhs).

36.	 Employee benefit plans (contd.)

Sensitivities due to change in mortality rate and change in withdrawal rate are not expected to be material and hence impact of such change 
is not calculated.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that 
the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the 
projected unit credit method at the end of reporting period.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Other disclosures

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligations

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

Average duration of the defined benefit obligation (in years)
Less than 1 year  7.03 
Between 1-2 years  3.06 
Between 2-5 years  9.82 
Over 5 years  345.10 

-The expected contributions to the plan for the next year is INR 219.03 lakh.

37.	 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
Assets 31 March 2022

Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  14,380.16  -    14,380.16 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  17,789.59  859.62  18,649.21 
Loans  36,602.66  2,25,649.79  2,62,252.45 
Investments  17,532.00  -    17,532.00 
Other financial assets  2,225.83  3,969.38  6,195.21 
Non-financial assets  -   
Current tax assets (net)  -    -    -   
Deferred tax assets (net)  -    295.06  295.06 
Property, plant and equipment  -    1,657.28  1,657.28 
Other intangible assets  -    46.54  46.54 
Other non-financial assets  556.52  221.14  777.66 
Assets held for sale  336.54  -    336.54 
Total assets  89,423.30  2,32,698.82  3,22,122.11 
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
(i)	 total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   
(ii)	 total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  459.41  -    459.41 
Debt securities  1,955.81  16,704.04  18,659.85 
Borrowings (Other than debt securities)  47,675.60  1,40,665.52  1,88,341.12 
Other financial liabilities  3,336.51  -    3,336.51 
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions  84.58  428.74  513.32 
Current tax liabilities (Net)  432.22  -    432.22 
Other non-financial liabilities  2,767.04  -    2,767.04 
Total liabilities  56,711.17  1,57,798.29  2,14,509.47 
Net  32,712.12  74,900.52  1,07,612.64 

Classification of assets & liabilities under maturity buckets is based on estimates and assumptions of the company.

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
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36.	 Employee benefit plans (contd.)
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38.	 Financial instruments

38.1Capital management

Capital

The Group maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy 
requirements of the National Housing Bank (NHB) and Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The adequacy of the Group’s capital is monitored using, 
among other measures, the regulations issued by NHB and RBI.

Capital management

The capital management objectives of the Group are:

- to ensure that the Group complies with externally imposed capital requirements, if any and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy 
capital ratios

- to ensure the ability to continue as a going concern

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

Debt
Borrowings(other than debt securities)  1,88,341.12 
Debt securities  18,659.85 
Cash and cash equivalents  (14,380.16)
Net debt  1,92,620.81 
Total equity  1,07,612.64 
Net debt to equity ratio  1.79 

Management assesses the capital requirements of the Group in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Group manages 
the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying 
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends, issue new shares, moderate 
business growth or sell assets to reduce debt.

38.2 Categories of financial instruments
The carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities are as follows:

As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Fair value 

through profit 
or loss

Fair value through 
other comprehensive 

income

Amortised cost Total carrying 
value

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    14,380.16  14,380.16 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  -    -    18,649.21  18,649.21 
Loans  -    -    2,62,252.45  2,62,252.45 
Investments  17,532.00  -    -    17,532.00 
Other financial assets  -    -    6,195.21  6,195.21 
Total financial assets  17,532.00  -    3,01,477.03  3,19,009.03 
Financial liabilities
Trade payables  -    -    459.41  459.41 
Debt securities  -    -    18,659.85  18,659.85 
Borrowings (Other than debt securities)  -    -    1,88,341.12  1,88,341.12 
Other financial liabilities  -    -    3,336.51  3,336.51 
Total financial liabilities  -    -    2,10,796.89  2,10,796.89 

38.3 Fair value measurement of assets and liabilities
- Fair value hierarchy

Assets and liabilities are measured at fair value in the financial statements and are grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three 
Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

• Level 1:	Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active markets;

• Level 2:	Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

• Level 3:	Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Asset measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Financial Assets carried at fair value through profit and loss

Investments in mutual fund  17,532.00  17,532.00 

Assets measured at fair value on a non recurring basis

Assets held for sale  -    336.54  -    336.54 

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are recorded and 
measured at fair value in the Group’s financial statements:

a)	 Mutual funds - Units held in Mutual funds are valued based on their published Net asset value (NAV) and such instruments are classified 
under Level 1.

b)	 Asset held for sale - Assets held for sale valuation are basis independent valuations by a specialist in valuing these type of assets. The 
best estimate of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar assets.

38.4 Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost
Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are calculated using Level 
3 inputs:

As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Carrying 

value
Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents  14,380.16  14,380.16  14,380.16 

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  18,649.21  18,649.21  18,649.21 

Loans  2,62,252.45  2,62,252.45  2,62,252.45 

Other financial assets  6,195.21  6,195.21  6,195.21 

 3,01,477.03  -    -    3,01,477.03  3,01,477.03 

Financial liabilities

Trade payables  459.41  -    -    459.41  459.41 

Debt securities  18,659.85  18,659.85  18,659.85 

Borrowings (Other than debt securities)  1,88,341.12  1,88,341.12  1,88,341.12 

Other financial liabilities  3,336.51  3,336.51  3,336.51 

 2,10,796.89  -    -    2,10,796.89  2,10,796.89 

The management is of view that the fair value of bank balances and cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other financial 
assets, trade payables, borrowings including debt securities and other financial liabilities that are being carried at amortised cost, approximates 
to their respective net carrying value.

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
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38.5. Financial risk management
Risk Management

The Group’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to 
and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit risk Loan receivables, cash and bank 
balances, investments, financial 
assets measured at amortised cost

Expected loss analysis Credit risk analysis, diversification of 
customers/asset base, high rated bank 
deposits, credit limits and collateral.

Liquidity risk Business commitments and other 
liabilities

Rolling cash flow forecasts Maintaining adequate cash reserves and 
undrawn credit facilities, by continuously 
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, 
and by matching the maturity profiles of 
financial assets and liabilities.

Market risk - interest rate Borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis Funding strategies to ensure diversified 
resource-raising options to minimize cost 
and maximize stability of funds. and Asset 
Liability Management Committee supervise 
an interest rate sensitivity report periodically 
for assessment of interest rate risks.

The Board has the overall responsibility of risk management. There are two committees of the Board which takes care of managing 
overall risk in the organisation. In accordance with the RBI guidelines to enable Housing Finance Companies to adopt best practices and 
greater transparency in their operations, the Board of Directors of the Group has constituted a Risk Management Committee to review risk 
management in relation to various risks, namely, credit risk, and operational risk, and an Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) to 
review the liquidity and market risk.

a)	 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may occur from the failure of any party to abide by the terms and conditions of any contract, principally 
the failure to make required payments of amounts due to the Group. In its lending operations, the Group is principally exposed to credit 
risk.

The credit risk is governed by various product policies. The product policies outlines the type of products that can be offered, customer 
categories, the targeted customer profile and the credit approval process and limits. The Group measures, monitors and manages 
credit risk at an individual borrower level. The credit risk for individual borrowers is being managed at portfolio level for both Housing 
Loans and Non-housing Loans. The Group has a structured and standardised credit approval process, which includes a well-established 
procedure of comprehensive credit appraisal.

	 Credit risk arises from loan financing, cash and cash equivalents, investments and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as 
shown below:

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

Loans  2,62,252.45 
Cash and cash equivalents  14,380.16 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  18,649.21 
Investments  17,532.00 
Other financial assets  6,195.21 

	 Credit risk management

The Group assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system and external ratings. 

	 Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying 
bank deposits and accounts in different banks across the country.

	 Loans

The customers are primarily low and middle -income, salaried and self-employed individuals. The credit officers evaluate credit proposals 
on the basis of active credit policies as on the date of approval. The criteria typically include factors such as the borrower’s income and 
obligations, the loan-to-value ratio and demographic parameters subject to regulatory guidelines. Any deviations need to be approved 
at the designated levels.

The various process controls such as PAN Number Check, CERSAI database scrubbing, Credit Bureau Report analysis are undertaken prior 
to approval of a loan. Individual loans are secured by the mortgage of the borrowers property.

	 Investments

Investments are generally made in mutual funds. Credit risk related to these investments is managed by monitoring the recoverability 
of such amounts continuously.

	 Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes security deposits and others. Credit risk related to these other financial assets 
is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously.

b)	 Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through 
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. 

Management of the Group monitors forecast of liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The 
Asset Liability Management Policy aims to align market risk management with overall strategic objectives, articulate current interest rate 
view and determine pricing, mix and maturity profile of assets and liabilities. The asset liability management policy involves preparation 
and analysis of liquidity gap reports and ensuring preventive and corrective measures. It also addresses the interest rate risk by providing 
for duration gap analysis and control by providing limits to the gaps. 

The tables below analyse the financial assets and liabilities of the Group into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual 
maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows except EIS receivables on direct assignment included 
in other financial assets. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Maturities of financial assets
31 March 2022	 Less than 1 

year
1-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 

years
Total

Cash and cash equivalents  14,380.16  -    -    -    14,380.16 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  17,789.59  784.18  75.44  -    18,649.21 
Loans  37,114.84  73,535.98  58,811.42  99,952.55  2,69,414.79 
Investments  17,532.00  -    -    -    17,532.00 
Other financial assets  2,225.83  2,762.75  1,126.04  80.59  6,195.21 
Total  89,042.42  77,082.91  60,012.90  1,00,033.14  3,26,171.37 

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the financial liabilities of the Group into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all 
non-derivative financial liabilities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances 
as the impact of discounting is not significant.

31 March 2022	 Less than 1 
year

1-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 
years

Total

Borrowings (Other than debt securities)  47,972.87  78,929.03  41,505.27  21,101.04  1,89,508.21 
Debt securities  1,963.93  10,000.00  6,846.26  -    18,810.19 
Trade payables  459.41  -    -    -    459.41 
Other financial liabilities  3,336.51  -    -    -    3,336.51 
Total  53,732.72  88,929.03  48,351.53  21,101.04  2,12,114.32 

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
on consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

38.5. Financial risk management (contd.)
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38.5. Financial risk management (contd.)

c.	 Public disclosure on Liquidity Risk of Group as on 31 March 2022 in accordance with RBI circular No. RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC(PD) CC. 
No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 04 November 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies 
(NBFCs) including Core Investment Companies and RBI circular No. RBI/2020-21/60 DOR.NBFC(HFC).CC.No.118/ 03.10.136/2020-21 
dated 22 October 2020 for regulatory framework for Housing Finance Companies (HFCs).

Funding concentration based on significant counterparty*# (borrowings)
Number of significant counterparties				    As at  

31 March 2022

Amount % of total 
liabilities

29  1,97,713.82 92.17%

*A significant counterparty is a single counterparty that has an amount outstanding for more than 1% of the total liabilities as on the 
reporting date.

Funding concentration based on significant instrument/product*#
Name of the instrument As at  

31 March 2022

Amount % of total 
liabilities

Term loans from banks and financial institutions  1,49,495.11 46.41%

Term loans from National Housing Bank  34,415.56 10.68%

Non-convertible debentures  18,000.00 5.59%

Securitisation  4,176.76 1.30%

 2,06,087.43 

*A significant instrument/product is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/products which in aggregate 
amount to more than 1% of the total liabilities.

Top 10 borrowings#
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

Amount % of total 
borrowings

Term Loan/NCD/Securitisation  1,20,527.77 58.48%

#All the above mentioned outstanding borrowings are disclosed at principal contractual liability.

Stock Ratios:
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

Commercial papers issued to total liabilities Nil

Commercial papers issued to total assets Nil

NCD (original maturity < one year) to total liabilities Nil

NCD (original maturity < one year) to total assets Nil

Other short-term liabilities to total liabilities 3.06%

Other short-term liabilities to total assets 2.04%

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
on consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

c)	 Market risk

	 Interest rate risk

	 Liabilities

‘The policy of the Group is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term loans and borrowings. As at 31 March 2022, 
the Group is exposed to changes in market interest rates through loans and bank borrowings at variable interest rates.

	 Interest rate risk exposure

	 Below is the overall exposure of the Group to interest rate risk:

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

Variable rate borrowing  1,73,329.79 
Fixed rate borrowing  28,580.89 
Total borrowings  2,01,910.68 

	 Sensitivity

Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity changes in interest rates:

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Interest rate - Increase by 100 basis points*  1,368.45 
Interest rate - Decrease by 100 basis points*  (1,368.45)

* Holding all other variables constant

39.	 Related party transactions
List of related parties:

i. Holding Company WestBridge Crossover Fund, LLC (w.e.f 26 October 2021)
ii. Key management personnel a. Anil Mehta - Chairman and Non-Executive Director (w.e.f 23 November 2021, Managing 

Director and Chief Executive Officer ( till 22 November 2021))
b. Rupinder Singh- Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer  (w.e.f. 23 November 2021)* 
b. Ashish Gupta - Chief Financial Officer
c. Mukti Chaplot - Company Secretary
d. GV Ravishankar - Nominee Director (till 26 October 2021)
e Anup Gupta - Nominee Director
f. Sumir Chadha - Nominee Director
g. Anisha Motwani - Independent Director ( till 17 February 2021)
h. Shailesh J Mehta -  Nominee Director ( w.e.f 03 November 2021, Independent Director till 
2 November 2021)
i. Rachna Dikshit - Independent Director (w.e.f 12 February 2021)
j. Sudhin Choksey- Nominee Director (w.e.f. 3 November 2021)
k. Sunil Bhumralkar- Additional Independent Director (w.e.f. 31 March  2022)

iii. Entities having significance influence a. WestBridge Crossover Fund, LLC (Holder of Equity Shares) (till 25 October 2021)
b. Nexus Ventures III Ltd, Mauritius (Holder of Equity Shares)
c. Aravali Investment Holdings (Holder of Equity Shares)

iv. Relative of key management personnel 
- (where there are transactions)

Gaj Singh Mehta - Father of Anil Mehta

Ankit Aggarwal - Husband of Mukti Chaplot

38.5. Financial risk management (contd.)
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39.	 Related party transactions (contd.)

Transactions with related parties
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022

Rent paid  3.41 

Transaction with key management personnel
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022

Short- term benefits  942.51 

Contribution to pension funds and gratuity payment  178.81 

Sitting fees  26.25 

Proceeds from issue of equity shares  10.66 

Sale of Assets 8.63

Amount payable to key management personnel
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

Short-term benefits  379.56 

Note 1: The KMPs are covered under the Group’s gratuity policy, compensated absences policy and ESOP scheme along with other eligible 
employees of the Company. Proportionate amount of gratuity expenses, provision for compensated absences and ESOP expenses are not 
included in the aforementioned disclosures as it cannot be separately ascertained.

Note 2: The Company has incorporated wholly owned subsidiary India Shelter Capital Finance Limited on 24 March 2022 to carry on lending 
business as Non-Banking Finance Company subject to receipt of regulatory approvals.

Balances outstanding as at the year end 

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

Share capital

WestBridge Crossover Fund, LLC  1,085.42 

Aravali Investment Holdings  1,421.14 

Nexus Ventures III Ltd  996.18 

Anil Mehta  82.04 

Ankit Aggarwal*  0.75 

Ashish Gupta  1.00 

Mukti Chaplot  1.35 

*Holds equity shares allotted before 4 February 2020 on exercise on employee stock options.

40.	 Earnings per share
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022

Profits for the year  12,844.71 

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic earnings per share  4,33,99,740 

Effect of dilutive potential equity shares- Employee Stock Options and right to subscribe  4,88,921 

Total weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted earnings per share  4,38,88,661 

Earnings per share on profit for the year (Face value of Rs. 10 per share)

a) Basic earnings per share (Rs.)  29.60 

b) Diluted earnings per share (Rs.)  29.27 

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
on consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

41.	 Lease related disclosures
The Group has leases for office building, branches and related facilities and cars. With the exception of short-term leases and leases 
of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. Variable lease 
payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded from the initial measurement of the lease liability and right-of-use 
assets. The Group classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner to its property, plant and equipment.

Each lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Group to sublease the asset to another party, 
the right-of-use asset can only be used by the Group. Some leases contain an option to extend the lease for a further term. 	

A	 Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability

	 The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2022
Short-term leases  84.53 
Leases of low value assets  -   
Variable lease payments  -   

B	 Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2022 was Rs. 446.22 lakhs.

C	 The Group has total commitment for short-term leases as at 31 March 2022 Rs.Nil.

D	 Maturity of lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease payments were as follows:

31 March 2022 Minimum lease payments due
Within 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years More than 5 

years
Total

Lease payments  445.33  329.37  199.12  169.00  57.81  37.86  1,238.49 
Interest expense  78.74  49.29  27.16  13.96  5.84  2.07  177.06 
Net present values  366.59  280.08  171.96  155.04  51.97  35.79  1,061.43 

E	 There are no variable lease agreements.

F	 Information about extension and termination options

	 As at 31 March 2022
Right of use assets Number of 

leases
Range of 

remaining 
term

Average 
remaining 
lease term

Number of leases 
with extension 

option

Number of leases 
with purchase 

option

Number of leases 
with termination 

option
Office premises 104 1 to 7 years 2.60 years 104 - 104
Car lease 2 1-2 years 1.5 years - - -

G	 The total future cash outflows as at 31 March 2022 for leases that had not yet commenced is of Rs. Nil.

42	 Additional Information as required by paragraph 2 of the General Instruction for preparation of Consolidated Financial 
Statements to Division III-Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013

As at 31 March 2022
Net Assets i.e Total Assets 

minus total liabilities
Share in profit and loss Share in other comprehensive 

income
Share in total comprehensive 

income
As a %of 

consolidated 
net assets

Amount As a %of 
consolidated 

profit and 
loss

Amount As a %of other 
comprehensive 

income

Amount As a %of 
consolidated 

total 
comprehensive 

income

Amount

Parent Company
India Shelter Finance 
Corporation Limited

100%  1,07,612.64 100%  12,844.71 100%  (68.94) 100%  12,775.77 

Indian Subsidiary
India Shelter Capital 
Finance Limited

0%  -   0%  -   0%  -   0%  -   
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43.	 Employee Stock Option Scheme
The Group provides Employee Stock option schemes to its employees. For the year ended 31st March 2022 following Employee Stock Option 
Plans (ESOPs) were in existence. The relevant details of the schemes and the grants are as below:

Particulars ESOP 2012
Date of grant 01 October 2012 01 October 2013 15 March 2014 22 January 2015 08 June 2016
Exercise price Rs. 13.27 per 

option
Rs. 14.18 per 

option
Rs. 16.84 per 

option
Rs. 20.32 per 

option
Rs. 83.20 per 

option
Vesting dates:
Tranche I* 01 October 2013 01 October 2014 01 October 2014 21 January 2016 09 June 2017
Tranche II* 01 October 2014 01 October 2015 01 October 2015 21 January 2017 09 June 2018
Tranche III* 01 October 2015 01 October 2016 01 October 2016 21 January 2018 09 June 2019
Tranche IV* 01 October 2016 01 October 2017 01 October 2017 21 January 2019 09 June 2020

* Grant on 01 October 2012, 01 October 2013, 15 March 2014 and 22 January 2015 to be vested equally in each tranche. However, option 
granted on 08 June 2016 to be vested in the ratio of (3:5:5:7)

Particulars ESOP 2017

Date of grant 31 January 
2018

15 February 
2019

17 May 2019 13 August 
2019

04 November 
2019

01 July 2020 17 September 
2020

Exercise price Rs.118.48 per 
option

Rs. 159.01 per 
option

Rs. 179.92 per 
option

Rs. 184.55 per 
option

Rs. 189.56 per 
option

Rs. 197.80 per 
option

Rs. 197.80 per 
option

Vesting dates:
Tranche I (10% of the 
options granted)

31 January 
2019

15 February 
2020

17 May 2020 13 August 
2020

04 November 
2020

01 July 2021 17 September 
2021

Tranche II (20% of the 
options granted)

31 January 
2020

15 February 
2021

17 May 2021 13 August 
2021

04 November 
2021

01 July 2022 17 September 
2022

Tranche III (30% of the 
options granted)

31 January 
2021

15 February 
2022

17 May 2022 13 August 
2022

04 November 
2022

01 July 2023 17 September 
2023

Tranche IV (40% of the 
options granted)

31 January 
2022

15 February 
2023

17 May 2023 13 August 
2023

04 November 
2023

01 July 2024 17 September 
2024

Particulars ESOP 2021
Date of grant 31 August 2021 02 November 2021 01 February 2022 31 March 2022
Exercise price Rs.309.59 per option Rs.315.57 per option Rs.315.57 per option Rs.340.71 per option
Vesting dates:
Tranche I (20% of the options granted) 31-Aug-22 02-Nov-22 01-Feb-23 31-Mar-23
Tranche II (20% of the options granted) 31-Aug-23 02-Nov-23 01-Feb-24 31-Mar-24
Tranche III (20% of the options granted) 31-Aug-24 02-Nov-24 01-Feb-25 31-Mar-25
Tranche IV (20% of the options granted) 31-Aug-25 02-Nov-25 01-Feb-26 31-Mar-26
Tranche V (20% of the options granted) 31-Aug-26 02-Nov-26 01-Feb-27 31-Mar-27

Reconciliation of options under each plan
Particulars ESOP 2012 ESOP 2017 ESOP 2021

Number of 
options

Amount Number of 
options

Amount Number of 
options

Amount

Outstanding as at 01 Apr 2021  8,09,750  511.43  5,41,000  968.27  -    -   
Granted during the year  -    -    -    -    19,04,595  5,973.66 
Forfeited during the year  -    -    -    -    22,500  69.99 
Exercised during the year  7,09,750  491.11  18,500  24.66  -    -   
Expired during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Outstanding as at 31 March 2022  1,00,000  20.32  5,22,500  943.61  18,82,095  5,903.67 
Exercisable at the end of the year  1,00,000  -    1,67,000  273.91  -    -   

43.	 Employee Stock Option Scheme (contd.)

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
on consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rs. lakh, unless otherwise stated)

The value of the underlying shares has been determined by an independent valuer. The following assumptions were used for calculation of 
fair value of grants in accordance with Black Scholes model, for options granted during the financial year:

Particulars

Risk free interest rate 5.19% to 6.38%

Expected life of option 3.6 yrs to 5.6 yrs

Expected Volatility 24% to 29%

Dividend yield 0%

The risk free interest rates are determined based on the Government bond yields with maturity equal to the expected term of the option. 
Volatility calculation is based on historical stock prices of relevant index using standard deviation of daily change in index price. The historical 
period is taken into account to match the expected life of the option. Dividend yield has been considered taking into account the historical 
and expected rate of dividend on equity share price as on grant date.

44.	 Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification RBI/2021-22/85 DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.177/2021-22 dated 24 September 2021

A)	 Disclosure as per NHB guidelines for securitisation transactions as an originator :
S . 
No

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

1 No. of special purpose vehicle's (SPV's) sponsored by HFC for securitisation transaction 4
2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of SPVs sponsored by the HFC 4,273.68
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the HFC to comply with MRR 

i)	 Off-balance sheet exposures
a)	 First loss  -   
b)	 Others  -   

ii)	 On-balance sheet exposures
a)	 First Loss- Cash collateral 603.12
b)	 Others- Over collateral 1, 118.82

4 Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR
i)	 Off-balance sheet exposures  -   

a)	 Exposure to own securitisations
First loss  -   
Others  -   

b)	 Exposure to third party securitisation 
First loss  -   
Others  -   

ii)	 On-balance sheet exposures towards credit enhancement
a)	 Exposure to own securitisations

First loss 638.05
Others  205.17 

b)	 Exposure to third party securitisation transaction
First loss  -   
Others

5 Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and gain/loss on sale on account of securitisation  3,205.77 
6 Form and quantum (outstanding value) of services provided by way of, liquidity support, post-securitisation 

asset servicing, etc.
-

7 Performance of facility provided. Please provide separately for each facility viz. Credit enhancement, liquidity 
support, servicing agent etc. Mention percent in bracket as of total value of facility provided.
Credit Enhancement- Cash collateral
(a)	 Amount paid  237.23 
(b)	 Repayment received  26.12 
(c)	 Outstanding amount”  603.12 
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S . 
No

Particulars As at  
31 March 2022

8 Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past- Mortgage backed securities 1.85%
9 Amount and number of additional/top up loan given on same underlying asset.  -   
10 Investor complaints 

(a)	 Directly/Indirectly received and;  -   
(b)	 Complaints outstanding  -   

B)	 Details of financial assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

During the year, the Company has not sold any financial assets to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction.

45	 During the year, the Company has not sold any financial assets to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction (31 
March 2021: Nil)

	 (a) Details of loans not in default transferred through assignment during the year ended 31 March 2022.			 

Entity Bank/ Financial 
Institutions

Count of loan accounts assigned 3,714

Amount of loan account assigned 27,326.80 Lakh

Retention of beneficial economic interest (MRR) 10%

Weighted average maturity (Residual Maturity) 8.93 Years

Weighted average holding period 1.55 Years

Coverage of tangible security coverage (LTV) 40.32%

Number of transactions 7

Rating wise distribution of rated loans Unrated

	 (b)	 The Group has not acquired any loan in default during the year ended 31 March 2022.

	 (c)	 The Group has not transferred/acquired any stressed loan during the year ended 31 March 2022.			 

46	 The COVID-19 pandemic has adversely impacted the economic activities across the globe and changed the customer behaviour, which 
may persist. Based on the available information from internal and external sources, the Group has used prudent judgements, estimates 
and possible forward-looking scenarios to assess the impact of COVID-19 on the provisions in accordance with the expected credit loss 
(ECL) method on loans and other financial assets. Given the dynamic and evolving nature of the pandemic, these estimates are subject 
to uncertainties and may be affected by the severity, duration of the pandemic and other variables.

47	 Key Analytical Ratios
Particulars As at  

31 March 2022

Debt -Equity Ratio  1.92 times 

Total Debts to Total Assets
(Debt securities+ Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities}/Total Assets)

 0.64 

Net Profit Margin (%)
(PAT/Revenue from operation)

28.67%

Gross NPA ratio (DPD> 90 days)
(Gross DPD 90+ loans/Gross Loan Assets)

1.63%

Gross NPA ratio
(Gross Stage 3 loans/Gross Loan Assets)

2.12%

Net NPA ratio
(Net Stage 3 loans/Net Loan Assets)

1.60%

Provision Coverage ratio
(Stage 3 Provision/Gross Stage 3 loans)

25.43%

44. (contd.) 48	 The Group does not hold any immovable property other than disclosed in Note 10 as on 31 March 2022. All the lease agreements are 
duly executed in favour of the Group for properties where the Group is the lessee.

49	 No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder, as at 31 March 2022.

50	 The Group does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of 
Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended 31 March 2022.

51	 The Group has taken borrowings from banks and financial institutions and utilised them for the specific purpose for which they were 
taken as at the Balance sheet date. Unutilised funds as at 31 March 2022 are held by the Group in the form of short term deposits/
investments till the time the utilisation is made subsequently.

52	 There have been no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts, that have been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year ended 31 March 2022, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. There have been no previously 
unrecorded income and related assets which were to be properly recorded in the books of account during the year ended 31 March 
2022.

53	 The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended 31 March 2022.

54	 The Group, as part of its normal business, grants loans and advances, makes investment, provides guarantees to and accept from its 
customers, other entities and persons. These transactions are part of Group’s normal business, which is conducted ensuring adherence 
to all regulatory requirements.

	 Other than the transactions described above, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall lend or invest in party 
identified by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate beneficiaries). The Group has also not received any fund from any parties (Funding 
party) with the understanding that the Group shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
by or on behalf of the funding party (“Ultimate beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate 
beneficiaries

55	 All charges or satisfaction are registered with ROC within the statutory period for the financial years ended 31 March 2022. No charges 
or satisfactions are yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
on consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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